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14,513,521

2019
“T-hE
HK$'000

BT

14,885,044

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EEMBHEE

2020
—ECTE

HK$’000
BETF T

14,939,550

2021
BT -F
HK$'000
BRI

16,183,872

2022
—E_CF
HK$'000
BETT

15,832,646

2,116,453 2,414,824 2,214,167 2,949,461 3,172,651
12,397,068 12,470,220 12,665,383 13,234,411 12,659,989
BEHKS32.75m  BEHKS32.947  BEHKS33.457m  BEHKS3A967T  EMHKS33.44R
1,014,267 429,984 162,560 421,302 86,148
HEHKS2.68 7 BEHKSL. 147 EEHKS0.43 7 EEHKS1.137 A%HKS0.23 7
HAEHK$0.707 A% HK$0.60 7 A% HK$0.407 ABHKS$0.46 7 #MHKS0.38
26% 53% 93% 41% 165%




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS CHARTS ZF#HBHER X
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XTFEH&E=

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s business
performance together with some observations from the overall
economic environment of 2022 and expectations for the year
ahead.

2022 REVIEW

Two wars, the worldwide war against inflation and the Russian
war in Ukraine, together with the remnant of the Covid-19
pandemic, dominated the global economic scene of the year:
The global GDP growth of the year 2022 is projected to be
between 3.2%—-3.4% down from 6% in 2021. By the end of the
year, some pundits have revised both the 2022 and 2023
annual growth rate estimates based on stronger-than-expected
GDP performance in the third to fourth quarter of 2022 in both
major developed and emerging economies.

This economic growth came from higher than projected
consumer spending; business investment increases, and greater
than anticipated fiscal support. More importantly, inflation
seems to have peaked in the third quarter of 2022. Both fuel
and non-fuel commodities prices declined in the third quarter,
and food prices appeared to stabilize by the fourth quarter. We
also see supply-side bottleneck easing with reductions in
transportation costs, allowing for a recovery in previously
constrained industries such as the motor industry.

The worldwide financial market suffered from anti-inflation
measures of major central banks: The FED has raised interest
rates several times with a total magnitude of 4.15%. The ECB
and the BOE 8 times,
totalling an increase of 3.25%. Equity fell in all major markets
except the UK, where the FTSE 100 posted a small gain lifted
by the defence and energy sectors. The three US key stock

four times, with a total rise of 3%,

indices have their worst fall since 2008. The Dow fared best
with a drop of 8.8%, the S&P 500 was down nearly 20%, and
Nasdaq suffered the worst, sinking 33% from 2021, with Apple,
Amazon, Microsoft, and Tesla all posting market capitalization
decreases of over US$600 billion. Europe’s Stoxx 600 fell by
about 12% in 2022, its worse performance in 4 years. The
MSCI All-Country World Index lost some 20% of its value in
2022.

REMMRR :

EANRRAE BTE2HRAEF_ZT -
FZFRAMORE > UKk ANHERLEIR
BZBRS > HREERZAL

—EF-_FmE
ZRRBRNBEFESRENERS
BFE  URMEMXBENRRTE
FETTEIFENEREERS =
ST FRIKENEELE ﬁ%éﬁﬁ&
32%FE34% 22 BR-ZZEZ—FH
6% ° Bl T FE > FEFIELHEBME
R - —FE=ESEEENEE
NEANEEEERTRY  —LEERE
WEETZE_"FN_S_=FMF
B Rt o

REERFENEBRANEESH - &%
?zﬁigbﬂlx&'%%ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁi$% o &5

BEENE BRUFE-ZE-_"FF=
=ERIE > F=FEMHERMNIERH
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ME & /N> T Bk8.8% > HZ & 500 ki
20% ’ METERKRRARE ) 82 —F
TB#33% ER - mHEE -~ M S
HIY94ERBIB 6000 EETTHITHE © BUM
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XTFEH&E=

Chong Hing Bank Centre BIE$R{T il

Bonds performed poorly with rising interest rates. US Treasures
and German Bond lost 17% and 25%, respectively, in dollar
terms. From the end of September to mid-October, the world
also witnessed a roller-coaster ride of both the Pound Sterling
and the Gilt price, which ended with a change of the British
Prime Minister. In terms of currencies, the US dollar posted a
7.9% gain against a basket of currencies, a 6%, 11%, 9%, and
14% gain against the Euro, Pound Sterling, RMB, and Yen,
respectively, with Swiss Franc remaining steady versus the
dollar.

By the end of the year, most commodity prices have dropped to
varying degrees, mainly because of an actual slowing down and
a more pessimistic outlook of economic activities. Nonetheless,
they remained high by historical standards. But Crude oil and
natural gas prices were reduced in the summer of 2022 and
had fallen back to the pre-Ukraine invasive levels. Other prices
of non-energy commodities, metal prices, in particular, have
declined alongside weak demands.

BERAMEKREAMKRERE - ZEEGR
MERABRIRAETHETERT 17%
M25% - HAAEF+AHE » £HEH
BE 7 BB REARERNB LB IR
RCENEEAEEEHR - EEEHE
ERR—BFEBAETTI% ZE

EE- ANRBNBESNAET
6%~ 11% ~9% M 14% > Min LA
ETAIFRTSRE °

ATHEE REHBmEBTEABE
EKiE > TERAAKE B ERKE
REASKREMERER - BEWIL > €
FIMARIKELESA > BERRBHMRA
REBE_S__FEF T LEE
HARSRERIBIKT » HMIESERE
mNES LEHEBERS  WEBEF
SRIZERT FEX o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XTFEH&E=

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & Serviced Residences ONE-EIGHT-ONE j&[ERBRFH X T

In 2022, the US managed GDP growth of 2%. The economic
news was dominated by decade-high inflation and the Fed’s
interest rate rise. The former led to higher prices in housing and
daily consumer items, and the latter led to an eventual cooling
of the housing market, slowing down the construction industry,
exports, and business spending. The economy shrank in the first
half of the year, but with steady consumer spending and federal
government spending, the economy returned to growth in the
second half. The labour market has been stable throughout the
year.

The EU GDP grew by 3.5% in 2022. Like the US, the 2022 EU
economy was defined by stubborn inflation, particularly energy
prices, but with an additional uncertainty of the spreading
westward of the Russian-Ukraine War. Inflation peaked in
October after reaching an alltime high of 10.6%, while the
economic growth momentum also aborted in the third quarter.
That the EU avoided the recession widely predicted in the fourth
quarter was mainly due to several positive factors: a successful
diversification of energy supplies, sound government fiscal
support policies, and a robust labour market throughout the

year.

“ECHF XERANEEREER
2% > REH AT AR+ RS @ AR KBk
EMEBFAEE > fIESCHEENAEHE
mfEfg L7k BEREREMETHE
o BEE-HOMEESIHBE £
FELEZRE BEEHEE M
MBEAHRE @ THEEHEREER
BE}NHBEEERGRE °

BE—E__FHERNEEREERT
3.5% BEE— > —T__FEHAK
BNRHEEERKRESAT  LEZE
FERENS  HFEERASRFNASEIE
NABERZ BRETAMGERT
10.6%NESEHHE > FFEEILEREN
WEF=ZFEFE > RATENFTEE
RTARFEANRE > TETHNEE
BIBEZE : sEREENZ T~ BE
BB FRERNEFRUNFEEH T
M5 o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XTFEH&E=

UK has a 4.0% annual GDP growth for 2022. This growth,
however, is a follow on from the 2021 economic recovery from
the Covid-19 pandemic; throughout 2022, the economy has not
grown but shrunk by 0.5% in December. Similar to all
developed economies, the UK suffered badly from inflation
peaked in October after it hit a new high of 11%, mainly driven
by energy prices. This inflation, with unprecedented political
turmoil and monetary instability, prohibited private consumption

as well as business investment.

The Japanese economy grew an annual 1.1% in 2022, dropping
from 2.1% in 2021. With the relaxation of Covid-19 measures,
both private consumption and business investment, with
respective increases of around 2%, were the main drivers for the
economic expansion. However, the weak Yen policy worsened
the already high prices of imported energy, food, and raw
materials. Fortunately, there were government measures that
have helped to keep inflation relatively mutedly.

The Australian economy expanded by about 2.7% in 2022. The
growth rate dropped sharply in the fourth quarter, but it is
believed that inflation also peaked simultaneously. The
contributing factors were strong domestic demands supported
by a robust employment figure and a healthy agricultural and
raw materials export. On the other hand, the interest rate rises
from developed economies have dampened consumption,
especially in the housing market.

The whole of China, from Mainland, Hong Kong to Taiwan, was
hit badly by Covid-19 in 2022. Notwithstanding social and
commercial disruptions thus caused, the Mainland still
managed a GDP growth of 3%, surpassed only by the Euro Area
of all the major economies, with the total GDP exceeding the
RMB120 trillion mark (US$18 trillion) for the first time.

FE_Z__FHNEANEEHREER
4.0% > BREKHER-ZZEZ—FEHEMRK
BEPEHENIEEmME - BEA-T"Z
FHHAKLBERAER RmEz+ZA
RULHE T 0.5% ° BLPR B B iEK RS

B BENZRITERNBREITE £
+HBMGEIT1I1I%NHNE » TEZER
BRES - BERRM LA RE NI
AEENEEAEEN > H THANAH
BNEERE -

A —_ZT__FEAEELREER
1.1% > B =T = —FH2.1% o FEEH
MK IERRE > AAHENMEERE
DHIERA2% > BAKERERNEEEE
B A SSHEBRMETAES
EREDORER « RmMRMEEERS -
ZENE > BUFREEE @ AR R T
EARELRABIIKT o

BN EE= WRTH2.7% >
FHFEREKREBETE > EHEGERD
BFRIE > TEZRENMEHEMN R
BREEMERMEE O TR
BERFZ—FHHE > BECERMEH
H®THE  LHEREBMESS

&= — —

= —

WREAR  EHIAE > BETEHE
SRR THEMRNRET

EoREALER T HHEMAETS
WFE > EREAEDABERTERE
E,\JEZ%%E’JF‘E ERRETEEER
ERE > BNEEREEEERNERAR
FH.%‘120{% Bt (18 & fE3ETT) KR o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XTFEH&E=

Half of the growth came from capital and infrastructure
investment of the government, anchoring an economy weakened
by the pandemic, in particular, in private consumption, which
has a 33% share of the economy as compared to over 50% in
2021. Despite the restriction imposed by Covid-19, the
manufacturing industry has managed positive growth, and
export, down from the previous year, achieved a 7%
improvement rate. The highest growth came from the
information and technology sector, with a 9% increase.

The Mainland China property market has remained weak in
2022. Investment in real estate continued to fall. Property sales
and new home prices have also declined, with the restructuring
of large property developers still in progress.

According to our in-house data, in the Pearl River Delta, where
the Foshan area is situated, the percentage drop of residential
property transacted in terms of square meters was in line with
the country at large. The selling prices of first hand residential
properties stood firm vis-a-vis 2021.

Shanghai remained the top city in terms of GDP in 2022. It has
bounced back from the Covid-19 disruption. According to
research reports, Shanghai is still the favourite city for foreign
companies to set up business on the Mainland. The overall
Grade A office rental only dropped marginally from 2021 due to
the strong rental growth of the first quarter. CBD vacancy year
to year was up 10%. Professional service and TMT sectors had
the most demand in office space, accounting for 48% of leasing
activities, while manufacturing and finance industries at 13%
and 12%, respectively.

Central and local authorities undertook a series of policies to
help redress the property market situation by introducing
mortgage repayment moratoria for unfinished building projects
and a lending mechanism funded by the Central government to
complete unfinished properties. There were also aids to provide
funding to developers through bond guarantee schemes,
quantitative credit growth targets for banks, and others,
including bank forbearance.

—F B R B BFNE RN ER RN
RE > XETREBMAISSHEE > L
HEMWNHE  EEZEEBEREFE33%H
HEE > ME_SZ—FRIBBT50% °
BEZRICHEMKX > RNEXENAER
TEER HOREFETE BERT
7% MR ER - B REBHZEESMKM
#0855 1BINT 9% o

PREAENEMETSE_T - _FN
AR - BHEREBRERSE - EEH
EMHEERTAER T  MAREM
EREBNERNTETR -

RIFFZMIBI AR > FBULFERIRT
ZANME - EEMERZEE TEN
BOLAEZEELR - —FEEWE
MEBR_Z_—FHLLERFEE -

EBEZS__FERNEEREHFSHR
MAMEREE > eBtHEmXEBER
BHRIREREK - IRIBEARKRS > LiBMN
BINEEFERMMBREFIIE N
HRE—ZEHETRYER > BEAR
RrEEEER_T_—FRATE
ZOBMEEEZERFILERI0% > FX
RBMBFHEEEERMAZENE
REK - LEEFFHNAI8% > MHREE
MERMED R 13%F12% o

FRRM Mt BRI T —RIIBEREKE
B ERMETIZEE » SFEHRTT
BEAREBTRIBGENIER » UkFR
BRHRTIEEEMREHEINES - B
FRBRFEFRHE  RTELEEE
REGMEMS X (BERITES) BF
BLERMHESE -



For the economy as a whole, the Mainland government has
proactively put forward both fiscal and monetary measures to
rebalance the economy racked by Covid-19. Fiscal policies
included tax rebates: refunding, waiving, and reducing Corporate
Income Tax, VAT as well as Individual Income Tax. Many such
actions aimed to provide relief to small and medium size
enterprises. There was also a continuation from 2021 of the
issuance of local government special-purpose bonds (SPB) to
assist local authorities in funding local infrastructure and public
projects.

In 2022, the Chinese monetary policies were both
accommodative and prudent. The accommodation came in the
forms of reducing the loan prime rate, bank reserve requirement
ratio, and deposit rate; fund injection to the medium-term
lending facilities and expanding the re-lending program to SME
and hard-hit sectors. The principle behind the monetary
measures was expansive but without “flooding” the market with
liquidity. It has helped China maintain a stable price of goods
and a stable currency, despite turbulence in international
financial markets, throughout the year while supporting the
economy simultaneously.

Hong Kong’s economy shrank from a growth of 6.4% in 2021 to
a GDP contraction of 3.5% in 2022. The Hang Seng Index
responded correspondingly, hitting a new low of 14,687 in
October since the Financial Tsunami in 2009. The 5th wave of
Covid-19 caused havoc in Hong Kong society in the first four
months of the year. The poor external environment followed this,
and rises in interest rates in the US led to an increase in the
Hong Kong mortgage interest rate from 1.5% to about 3.4%.
The residential property market adjusted accordingly. The mass
residential and luxury market values fell 11% and 4%,
respectively. The overall office market vacancy rate rose from
9% at the beginning of the year to around 12% in November,
but Grade A office rental only declined slightly by 3% or so.
Health protection measures restricted personal consumption;
rentals of high street shops were down 11% and were at a level
of 75% below the market peak in 2014; prime shopping malls
only fell by some 5%. Vacancy in high street shops of 2021 has
been made worse this year, with a vacancy rate reaching 17%.

Of the other industry sectors, the worse hit was Import and
Export, down 9%; accommodations and food services, down
13%; and transportation, down 7%.

MEREEMS > PEKERNEGE
BT MEMEEER  UEHTPERN
T Fif K FT B B AETE - AR B4R I
RIE R~ & BEEFRSR - BERN
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XTFEH&E=

The Rockpool BifEds

In 2022/23, the Hong Kong government provided a series of
much needed relief measures for both individuals and
enterprises through reductions in taxes and fees, together with
certain payments of benefits. For individuals, the most
significant is the HK$10,000 per person Consumption Voucher
Scheme, costing HK$66.4 billion. For enterprises, the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme increased the loan ceiling from
HK$6 million to HK$9 million and the repayment period from 8
to 10 years. As a result of these measures, the labour market
has remained stable.

G/ ZE=FE > EBBE
BRAEREMEBRENESR > AE
AMBEREET —RINGFEIEHE o HE
AME REEMESAEE 10,0007t
HEHESTE > EBE B4 BT H
TtEMmMS > PINEEMRERRFRFERE
X L BR 7 1 600 & rT i /= E B #6900
B BRHRKSELERTI0FE - H
BT BI85 » HEHIBRERE



BUSINESS RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a

profit of HK$88.8 million, which represents a decrease of 79%

when compared with the year 2021.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend, at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 25 May
2023, the payment of the final cash dividend of HK$0.20 per
share. Together with the interim cash dividend of HK$0.18 per
share paid on 19 September 2022, the total cash dividend
amounted to HK$0.38 per share for the year 2022.

A detailed business review and analysis are to be found in the

“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual

Report. In summary:

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total rent
received by the Group amounted to HK$301.1 million,
reduced by HK$4.7 million, a drop of 1.5% compared with
the year 2021. For our major properties, the aggregate
occupancy rate is 73%.

As to property development in Foshan, The Grand Riviera,
a total of 99%, 100% , 100%, and 97% of residential
units of phases 1, 2, 3, and 4 respectively, had been sold
by the end of 2022. As of 31 December 2022, the total
sale proceeds of the whole development project amounted
to some HK$6 billion. A significant income will be
generated as and when all the remaining residential units,
car parks, and shops are sold in the future.

”

Construction of “Elegance Garden,” our residential
property project that started in Sanshui District of Foshan
with a total buildable area of 142,908 sg.m. in October
2020, has now been completed in December 2022. Sales
of residential units are scheduled for 2023; the precise

timing will depend on the local property market conditions.
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One-Eight-One Hotel and Serviced Residences opened in
December 2019 and was one of the top quarantine hotels
of the past two years. As of 31 December 2022, the
income received by the hotel amounted to HK$99.3
million, a drop of 5% compared with the year 2021.

In December 2021, the Group completed the acquisition
in Kimpton Kitalay Samui, a five star hotel in Koh Samui
managed by the InterContinental Hotels Group (IHG). With
the end of the pandemic and the opening up of Thailand,
tourism is gradually returning to normal. As of 31
December 2022, the revenue received by the hotel
amounted to HK$47.2 million.

In 2022, the Group has made two overseas investments
jointly with Value Partners group (stock code 806. HK):
one office building in Australia in April and one warehouse
in Hokkaido, Japan, in August. Our Group's effective
holdings of these properties are 12.5% and 50%,
respectively.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of six
overseas investments: four warehouses in Japan and two
office buildings in Australia, all of which are long-term
investments co-invested with Value Partners group. All
these investments have generated satisfactory returns.
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OUTLOOK OF 2023

Economists change their minds once every two or three months
about the GDP estimates for 2023. In January this year, IMF
was forecasting global growth of 2.9%, up 0.2% from their
October estimate. Lately, a more pessimistic view has been
spreading. All the above are due to the unpredictability of how
inflation and interest rates go, and the progress and outcome of
the war in Ukraine, the two most dominant factors affecting the
world economies. The other two critical factors, indirectly
related to the above, are the respective performances of the US
and Chinese economies.

The majority verdict of major banks is that the US is facing an
economic downturn this year. IMF was only predicting a 1.4%
growth of the US economy in 2023. The housing sector is in
recession and will likely be followed by the manufacturing
industry shortly. Both before and after the New Year, there was
repeated news of staff layoffs by giant tech firms. While job cuts
are still not apparent in the broader job market, weaknesses in
temp hiring have been reported. It does look like the FED’s
interest rate rises are biting now, and some economists expect a
mid-year recession. Things may turn very unpleasant if inflation
is still not tamed, leading to more interest rate rises.

According to the IMF, Chinese economic performance has a
substantial impact on global well-being, such that every 1%
growth in China will lead to a 0.3% growth in other countries. In
contrast to the US, the prospect of the Chinese economy,
forecast to be around 5%, is looking much brighter in 2023.
Following the lifting of pandemic restrictions, mobility and
activity have picked up. By the time of writing, there is strong
evidence that all societal activities are back to normal.
Therefore, it is reasonable to expect both private consumption
and investment to return to the pre Covid-19 level.

According to news reports and from professionals in the sector,
the sentiment of the property market is returning, backed by
banks and local government support. The market sentiment
index in 50 key cities has its biggest jump in January since
2022. Certain large provincial cities have eased their home
purchase and sales restrictions, and price restrictions. Other
cities, except the first-tier ones, are about to follow suit. It
would be safe to assume that further private and investment
demands will be released, demonstrating the appropriateness of
policies introduced throughout 2022.
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The confidence in a full recovery of the Chinese economy is
backed further by the annual Central Economic Work Conference
in December last year. The meeting demanded making
economic stability a top priority. China may end up having an
actual growth rate higher than the set 5% target.

Contrasted to a relatively optimistic Chinese economy, the
uncertainties of inflation and the war in Ukraine lead to more
somber forecasts for the rest of the developed economies. IMF
projected the Euro area growth of only 0.7%. The UK will be in
a 0.6% contraction with “tighter fiscal and monetary policies
and financial conditions and still-high energy retail prices”,
choking private consumption. Japan is expected to have a
growth increase to 1.8% with higher business investment as a
result of a weak Yen leading to a higher corporate profit.
Australia is also projected to have a lower growth rate, down to
2% in 2023, as private consumption may be undermined by
higher inflation and a reduction in savings.

The Hong Kong government lifted the final Covid-19 restriction
of the “Wearing of Mask” requirement on 1 March, signaling
Hong Kong is entirely back to normal. With the forthcoming
recovery of the Chinese economy and free travelling between the
two places, the Hong Kong economy is forecast to grow between
3.5% and 5.5%. The final figures would also be determined by
the US interest rate movement, which directly affects the home
mortgage rates and, thus, the residential property market.

In conclusion, barring unforeseen events such as a run-away
global inflation, an enlargement of war in Europe, or a much
worsening of the Sino-US relations, 2023 would be a year with
more stability and prosperity, at least in this part of the world.

BUSINESS PREVIEW

Through years of professional and prudent management, our
Group has a healthy balance sheet with good cash flow.
Therefore, we have the benefit of selecting optimal timing to
sell our property units in Foshan to maximize our shareholders’
value. Similarly, with ample financial resources available, we
can select projects that we believe are good bargains, aboard or
at home.
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We expect our Thai Hotel, Kimpton Kitalay Samui, will perform
closer to its potential after the normalization in East Asia. It
may do even better if the economy of Europe picks up this year.

One-Eight-One Hotel and Serviced Residences, the premier
quarantine hotel, will be adopting a new business model. It will
add a neo-classical Chinese restaurant in the second quarter of
this year. With modern cooking skills applied to traditional
Cantonese Cuisine and local produce, the restaurant is to serve
not only hotel guests but also to draw on new patrons as a
destination venue. One-Eight-One has a formidable reputation
gained in the last two years. With the recovery of inbound
visitors, we expect the hotel to deliver a reasonable return to our
Group.

Leasing for any shopping mall is hard when an economy suffers
a contraction of 3.5%. To preserve the value of Rockpool,
formerly Chong Yip Centre, leasing activities have emphasized
acquiring quality tenants rather than swiftly filling up all rental
spaces. Close to 70% of the rental area has now been leased to
reputable retailers, the majority are already in operation. The
Hong Kong consumer market is on an upward swing, and a full
opening is expected in the second half of this year.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to
stakeholders and shareholders for their continued trust and
support, to all my fellow directors for their wise stewardship,
and to our senior management and our staff for their
commitment and dedication.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2023
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The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders its
annual report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are property investment, property development,
investment holding and hotel operations. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in
notes 41 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review of the
business and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2022, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the “Five-

LTS

Year Financial Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement”, “Summary
of Financial Highlights”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of the

Annual Report. The above sections form part of this report.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that
date are set out on pages 164 to 284 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.18 per share was paid to
shareholders on 19 September 2022. The Board recommends a
final cash dividend of HK$0.20 per share, making a total cash
dividend of HK$0.38 per share for the year.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2022 comprised the accumulated profits of
HK$7,521,841,000 (2021: HK$7,547,584,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements in investment properties during the year are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Movements in property, plant and equipment/Right-of-use
assets during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES
HELD FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development for sale/properties
held for sale during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group
has no capitalized interest during the year. (2021: HK$nil)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are shown on page 125 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in
office, shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

In accordance with Article 105 and 106 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher and Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo shall retire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM") of the Company. The Company intends to comply with
code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, which provides, among
other things, that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The biographical details of directors and senior management are
set out on pages 131 to 140.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and the Company considered all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules throughout the review period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the directors and the
Chief Executive Officer in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")) which have been notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
or have been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers were as follows:
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INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF EELAT REHEEEB MR RHER

THE COMPANY AND IT’S ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS Bg (% BB R 2%
THE COMPANY b /N
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited ERET¥ERAT

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD 4 &iBRR R (A & E

Family interests Total interests as
(interests of spouse or Corporate interests approximate % of the
child under 18) (interests of controlled relevant issued
Long/short Personal interests e corporation) share capital
Name of director position (held as beneficial owner) (FofBeg 18 5% G Total interests ESEREERT
EEpE FEIKE AL (BEHE) MUTFFLR2E) (RERAT 2 RE) R REBNELE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 24,000 — 213,683,000 213,707,000 56.45%
35|40 (notes 1 and 2)
BAERE 58 (W1 R2)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai,  Long 2,756,867 — — 2,756,867 0.73%
Winston 5=}
notes: sk
1. 132,326,710 shares in the Company are beneficially held by Liu’s Holdings Limited, of which 1. BIREEABRKRERERATZKRE  Z TG
Mr. Liu Lit Chi are amongst its shareholders. The above numbers of shares are duplicated BREAARATMRA 132,326,710 & - RIERE > £
under the corporate interests for each of these directors. BREZETZATRRIBANER °
2. Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders, 2. BB AERERBATAEEERERARZRE
beneficially holds 81,356,290 shares in the Company, and thus is included in the corporate FATBEERRNATRMSL,356,290 % » LA
interests of Mr. Liu Lit Chi. BIEEERTZARREERR °
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER

PERSONS

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Company,
the following persons (other than the directors or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

FERRRAEMALTOED

A ZEZF+ZRA=+—H > mEa
SIPTEN > FYIRRER (R AT ERHITHAE
HBRIM) RA QB Z AR K ABRARR AR R #E
BERBEESRIAGRGIEXVEE 2R E
3NHFZRERMRRBINE 2RI K
B NEEIBEEEREIEEFBRT
RAEEFEAEMKEATRKRREARE L
KREZEFERRASEE 5% U L2 #

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the # :
Group:

No. of % of the
Name of substantial shareholder Long/short position Capacity ordinary share held issued share capital
TERREE FEI%E g7 PSS B HE EEBTREERLE
Liu’s Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132,326,710 34.95%
EREAERAR 5= BEERAA ((;1;’:; 11))
Alba Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 81,356,290 21.49%
EREBARAT i RifEA m
notes: M5
1. Liu's Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by, amongst 1. BREBERADDNRERIMBLZIAALE

others, Mr. Liu Lit Chi. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under
“Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by Mr. Liu Lit
Chi and his associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under
“Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by
any person (other than the directors or Chief Executives Officer
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more as
at 31 December 2022 which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

BEAOREBIERE - ZERARETER LHRA
TEXEFARREEERES 2 REER D HIR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, “Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had, whether directly or indirectly, have
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was partied to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers and the Group’s turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were both less
than 30%. None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Board owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company and
its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
shares in the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EXEg®R&SE

SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION HRREE
TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS HRERSM10(IRR
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31 RIEXRATKREILHANER > R
December 2022, the top 10 largest shareholders are as follows: ——HF+—-"B=+—BFREREMN 10
fIRGERUIT :
Number of
shares held %
Name of shareholder RRRRE RRERMYE BRL

1. HKSCC Nominees Limited EBRRLH (REAN) ERAT 157,894,006 41.71
2. Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited IS (R12) BIRAT 138,463,288 36.57
3. Alba Holdings Limited EEEEBRAT 35,000,222 9.25
4. MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited 10,000,000 2.64
5. Wragg Limited Wragg Limited 5,000,000 1.32
6. Cheng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 3,160,000 0.83
7. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 3,100,000 0.82
8. Leung Lai Yee Leung Lai Yee 1,948,000 0.51
9. Leung Kwok Choi Leung Kwok Choi 1,324,000 0.35
10. Leung Lai Fong Leung Lai Fong 1,300,000 0.34
Total At 357,189,516 94.34
LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS RRER M
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31 RIEBARAATKEESLMHIEBR > NT=F
December 2022, the location of shareholders are as follows: T+ _A=1+—HKRE2MMNT :

Number of

shares held %
Location of shareholders LEEDn RFERMEE BRL
Hong Kong &E 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia HERREREE 36,060 0.0095
Europe B 800 0.0002
US and Canada ZERMEK 16,860 0.0045
Australia BN 8,580 0.0023
Total At 378,583,440 100




SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at the end of the financial year and of their respective
profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to select suitable
accounting policies and apply them on a consistent basis,
making judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; state the reasons for any significant departure from
accounting standards; prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis, unless it is not appropriate to presume that
the Company and the Group will continue in business for the
foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the
Group and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EXEg®R&SE

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established on 30
October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr.
Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly approved terms of reference
by the Board, the committee is authorized to discuss, formulate
policies and make decisions on all matters relating to the daily
management and operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries. It also helps to discuss significant daily operational
issues, review business performance and take prompt corrective
actions as appropriate. The Board believes that the function of
committee could help to relieve the Board of detailed review of
information and to increase the operational efficiency among
different departments.

Detailed terms of reference could be seen at the Company’s
website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee report is shown on pages 42 to 43. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the
internal controls and the financial reporting requirements of the
Group. The Audit Committee meeting will normally hold twice in
each financial year immediately before the Board meeting for
approving the interim and final results. The committee is
satisfied with the Company’s internal control procedures and
the financial reporting disclosures.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee report is shown on pages 44 to 45. The
report showed the main duty and the work performed by the
committee during the year of 2022.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 46. The
report showed the main duty and work performed by the
committee during the year of 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
The Company has substantially complied throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022 with those paragraphs of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, with which it is required to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the
Company are set out on pages 66 to 91.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report
prepared by the directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the Board of
Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Mok Siu Kwong, Stanley
Mr. Guan Chubin

Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Liu Ying Shing, Claudius
Mr. Liu Kwun Bo, Darryl

Mr. Liu Kwun Hung, Tiger
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EXEg®R&SE

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have
expressed their willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, a
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2023
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LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED SIMPLIFIED ORGANISATION CHART
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT B%ZEEGHRES

The Audit Committee (“AC”) is made up of four members, all of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The AC oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements including the selection of suitable accounting
policies. External auditors are responsible for auditing and
attesting to the Group’s financial statements and will report to
the management of the Company from time to time on any
weakness in controls which come to their attention. The AC
oversees the respective work of management and external
auditors to ensure the management has discharged its duty to
have an effective internal control procedures.

The AC had performed the works as follows:

1. To review the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022;

2. To review the interim results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2022;

3. To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence;
4. To review the system of internal control of the Company;

5. To review the audit plan and the engagement from external
auditors;

6. To make recommendation on the re-appointment of
external auditors; and

7. To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of
account and finance team of the Group in order to carry
out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was
found and all the recommendations previously suggested by
auditors were agreed and implemented by the management in
2022.
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Based on these reviews and discussions, together with the
report of the external auditor, the AC recommended to the
Board's approval of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 with the Auditor’s Report
thereon.

The Committee recommended to the Board that the
shareholders be asked to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor for 2023.

Members of the Audit Committee

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 14 March 2023
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT RRZEEHETE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of six members.
The main duties of the Committee are (i) to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board in
order to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) to
identify suitably qualified individuals to become directors of the
Company and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii)
to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company; and (iv) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or reappointment of the directors
and succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the Terms
of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and
duties. The Terms of Reference were duly authorised by the
Board.

In year 2022, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following
issues at its meeting:

1. To review the composition, size and structure of the Board
of the Company.

2. To review the attendance records of directors of the
Company.

3. To review the brief details of each director (including years
of service).

4. To review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

5. To review the directors’ appointment control schedule —

Rotation of Directors.

6. To review and confirm the independence of all the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

7. To review and amend as required from time to time the
Board’s diversity policies.
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The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting
are circulated to the Board for information. The NC meets when
required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 14 March 2023
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT #MZ&

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) consists of four members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company.

The main duties of the Committee are to formulate the
Company’s remuneration policy as well as to determine and/or
make recommendations to the Board with regard to the structure
of remuneration packages for all directors and senior
management. When necessary and appropriate, the Chairman
and Managing Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by referring to the Terms
of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and
duties. The Terms of Reference was duly authorised by the
Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had
reviewed and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

1. To review the Company’s policy, structure and the
remunerations packages for all directors and senior
management;

2. To determine and/or make recommendation to the Board
regarding the Directors’ fees and other allowances for the
year 2023;

3. To review and approve the annual performance bonus and
its policy;

4. To review and approve the newly formulated Remueration
Policy; and

5. To review and confirm the revised Terms of Reference.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting
are circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee

Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 14 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the audited
consolidated profits of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to approximately of HK$88.8 million, comparing to
that of 2021 amounted to approximately of HK$420.6 million,
representing a decrease approximately of HK$331.8 million
(dropped 79%).

The decrease of profit principally reflects (1) the substantial
decrease of fair value gain of approximately HK$142.6 million
of investment properties for the year ended 31 December 2022,
compared to a gain of approximately HK$379.1 million
recorded in the same period last year and (2) a net exchange
loss of approximately HK$117.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, compared to a net exchange gain of
approximately HK$27.1 million for the corresponding year in
2021.

Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from
property investment, property development, property
management, treasury investment, trading & manufacturing and
hotel operation.

Other income referred to various miscellaneous income other
than the main revenue.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of gain on changes in
fair value of investment properties and net exchange gains
(losses).

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
gross rental revenue of approximately HK$301.1 million,
decreased by approximately HK$4.7 million from approximately
of HK$305.8 million in the year of 2021, slightly decreased
1.5%.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group’s overall occupancy of major investment properties
maintained at 79.4% as at 31 December 2022.
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HK PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Square

Chong Hing Square, located at 601 Nathan Road Mongkok, is a
20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial development offers over
182,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, Chong Hing Square generated
a gross rental revenue of approximately HK$69.0 million,
decreased by approximately HK$14.7 million from
approximately of HK$83.7 million in 2021. Decrease of rental
revenue was due to rental concessions to existing tenants and
rental reduction upon new and renewal of tenancies. The
occupancy was 73% as at 31 December 2022.

Chong Hing Bank Centre

Chong Hing Bank Centre, located at 24 Des Voeux Road Central,
is a 26-storey Grade A office building. The Company, having
retained several floors for the group’s use, had entered into
another 5-year fixed lease with Chong Hing Bank Limited in
2019 at a monthly rental of HK$7.98 million from HK$5.66
million, representing an increase of 41%. For the year ended 31
December 2022, Chong Hing Bank Centre generated rental
revenue of approximately HK$95.8 million. The management
believes the tenancy would bring stable and good rental return
to the Group.

The Rockpool

The Rockpool (formerly known as Chong Yip Centre) is located
at 402-404 Des Voeux Road West. The mall was revamped in
2019 and turned into a young and trendy community mall
serving local neighbors providing numerous new brands of
retailers and F&B outlets. After renovation, the management
expected this would be one of the young and popular malls in
the western district and be able to generate higher rental return.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, The Rockpool generated
gross rental revenue of approximately HK$8.5 million. As of
today, the mall achieved occupancy of 67% and carparks were
fully let.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fairview Court

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. The Group
owns 5 units, each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury
apartment on a low-rise building. For the year ended 31
December 2022, Fairview Court recorded rental revenue of
approximately HK$6.8 million, it records net rental revenue
approximately of HK$3.6 million after rental elimination. This
property recorded 100% occupancy as of 31 December 2022.

PRC PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai

The Group’s mainland flagship property located at 288 Nanjing
Road West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai is a 36-storey
Grade A commercial building which commands a strategic
location and enviable view over The People’'s Square just across
the street. With a total floor area of over 516,000 square feet of
office and commercial spaces and 198 carparks, this property
was approximately 79% let in terms of office space and 84%
let in terms of retail space as at year end. For the year ended 31
December 2022, after taking exchange translation, this office
building generated a rental revenue of approximately HK$111.3
million, representing an increase of 1.6%.

The management is satisfied with the property’s revenue and
occupancy during the year of 2022, despite the continuous
tightening of pandemic control measures and the lockdown of
Shanghai City caused by Covid-19, which forced retail & office
tenants to close down their business for over two months.

Overall

2022 is a year full of challenges and uncertainties. The increase
of interest rates, the surge of inflation and the restriction
measures of Covid-19 which have yet been fully lifted, further
weakened the market confidence and consumption sentiment
which caused serious impact to the Group’s leasing and hotel
business.

The management is optimistic about the Group’s leasing and
hotel business following the reopening of Hong Kong's border
with Mainland China and the returning of tourists from Mainland
China and overseas.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEZ s @m Kk D

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

PRC

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

This comprehensive development situated at 1 Guilong Road,
Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan, is conveniently located
within half an hour’s drive from the Foshan financial district
and within 5 minutes’ drive from the new Foshan West Station.

Development Status

This Foshan residential project is a comprehensive development
and is developed by phases. The whole project, including Phase
1 to Phase 4, was completed and handover for occupation since
September 2018.

Financial and Sale Results

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded sale
revenue of approximately HK$82.8 million, decreased by
approximately of HK$156.2 million from approximately of
HK$239.0 million, representing a decrease of 65.4%. Number
of residential units sold and recognized for the year was reduced
from 63 units in 2021 to 20 units in 2022, and number of
carparks sold was decreased from 363 units in 2021 to 170
units in 2022. In effect, the development profit was decreased
significantly.

As at 31 December 2022, a total of 5,225 residential units out
of total 5,264 units (representing 99%) and a total of 2,234
carpark units out of total 4,670 units (representing 48%) were
successfully sold out fetching accumulated sale proceeds of
approximately HK$6 billion. The management forecasted that
further sale proceeds of approximately HK$800 million would
be received if all unsold properties including residential units,
carpark spaces and retail shops were sold under current market
conditions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Elegance Garden, Sanshui

In 2019, the Group, through its indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, Top New Investment Limited, acquired a piece of
land at Sanshui District of Foshan by open land auction for a
cash consideration of RMB775.5 million. The site area of the
land is approximately 33,670 square meters with plot ratio of
3.2 times, making the accommodation value of RMB7,198 per
square meter. The management regarded the consideration for
the purchased land is fair and reasonable having taken into
account the minimum bid conditions set by Foshan Public
Resources Center, current market value, as well as the location
and development potential of the vicinity area.

Location and vicinity

The development is located at the heart of Bei Jiang Xin Qu. It
is surrounded by the well-developed facilities, such as Beijiang
Primary School, Xindongli Center, Beijiang Feng Huang Park,
Sanshui Renmin Hospital and Sanshui Bus Stop. It takes 15
minutes’ drive to the Guangzhou and Foshan High Speed
Railway Station and 20 minutes’ drive to Sanshui High Speed
Railway South Station only. The development is just 2.1 miles
away from the Sanshui Metro Route 4, it is closely connected to
the Guangzhou and Foshan cities.

Project design

This residential development named Elegance Garden, consists
of 9 blocks 31-storey residential apartments with three typical
sizes of 88, 98 and 108 square meters respectively. Given the
plot ratio of 3.2 and green area ratio of 30%, it provides a total
of 1,084 residential units with developable areas of over
108,000 square meters. If including the retail and commercial
area of approximately 1,461 square meters on the ground floor
and 874 carpark spaces mainly built at basement level, the
total developable area is over 142,000 square meters.

Construction progress
Main construction works has been completed at the end of
2022.

Marketing and Sale

Soft marketing activities had been launched since the end of
2021. Event marketing and on-site sales campaign will be
started in June 2023. As the recovery of China’s real estate
market remains sluggish, the management will adjust their sales
strategy and schedule accordingly.
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HOTEL OPERATIONS

PRC

Budget Hotel

Since 2008, the Group started to operate budget hotel business
in Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou. All of these budget hotels
are managed by and under the brand name of Hanting. Due to
the restructuring of the business strategy, the Group had sold
the budgeted hotels at Shanghai and Beijing in 2016, only the
hotel in Guangzhou remains in operation.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the budget hotel
revenue decreased from approximately HK$9.1 million in 2021
to approximately HK$6.4 million in 2022. The decrease of
hotel revenue was due to the slowdown of China’s economy.

HONG KONG

One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences

The previous office building (formerly known as Western
Harbour Centre), located at 181-183 Connaught Road West,
was converted into a 182-room hotel and serviced residences.
The hotel was in full operation after obtaining the hotel license
on 2 December 2019. Apart from providing 182 guest rooms
(room size ranging from 330 sq.ft. to 1,152 sq.ft.), other
facilities include Sky Residences, two restaurants, Quay Club
(executive lounge), gym room and a wide range of services and
amenities.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the hotel and F&B
business recorded gross revenue approximately of HK$99.3
million, decreased by approximately of HK$5.2 million, from
approximately of HK$104.5 million in 2021, generating
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”) approximately of HK$22.5 million. However, if
adding depreciation approximately of HK$58.1 million, the
hotel and F&B business recorded a net loss approximately of
HK$35.6 million.

Given the quality services and good dining experience, One-
Eight-One Hotel became one of the popular hotel brands. After
the compulsory quarantine measures ended on 26 September
2022, the Hotel began its pre-opening program on 1 October
2022. The hotel has undergone some improvements and deep
disinfections cleaning and it resumed its business on 1
November 2022. Due to the re-opening of border with mainland
china and the removal of all quarantine restriction measures,
the management has confident about the hotel business in the
coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THAILAND

Kimpton Kitalay Samui

In 2021, the Group invested in a hotel property at Koh Samui,
Thailand, through an acquisition of entire issued share capital
in Choengmon Real Estate Company Limited, a company
incorporated in Thailand.

The hotel is located at the north-eastern part of Samui Island
and is situated along the Choengmon Beach. The land is a
freehold land title with land areas of 29,588 sq.m. The hotel
consists of 21 pool villas and 117 premium rooms and suites
with total gross floor area of over 22,098 sq.m. Other amenities
include the main reception building, lobby bar, lobby lounge, an
all-day dining restaurant, a beachfront specialty restaurant,
swimming pool, spa, fitness centre and yoga studio, kids club
and multi-purpose space to accommodate weddings or executive
meetings. The hotel was in full operation since January 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the hotel recorded
gross revenue approximately of HK$47.2 million and generated
gross operating profit approximately of HK$10.1 million. Along
with the Covid-19 pandemic is well-controlled and travel
restrictions are lifted, management expects that tourism
industry in Thailand including Koh Samui could be returned to
normal and will recover even faster in South Asia region in
2023.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group teamed up with the same
joint venture partner, to acquire four warehouses in Japan and
two office buildings in Australia. All these warehouses and
office buildings continued to maintain a stable rental revenue
with 94%-100% occupancy.

In April 2022, the Group participated in an office investment in
core Sydney CBD, Australia by subscribing 50% share of a
Property Trust, through a joint venture company which is 50%
owned by the Group. The Property Trust acquired 50% share of
two Grade A office buildings located at 309 & 321 Kent Street,
Sydney. In effect, the Group holds 12.5% of the property
indirectly. The Trust was managed by the property and
investment manager of AsheMorgan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The property, having fully refurbished in 2019, comprises of
two commercial office buildings, providing a total lettable area
of 509,910 sq.ft., that each comprises of basement car parking,
ground floor retail accommodation and upper level office
accommodation. Whilst the buildings are physically independent
of one another, they do share a common basement area and are
situated on a single legal title.

In August 2022, after refinanced the existing Japan logistic
portfolio, a new logistics center in Hokkaido was acquired
without additional capital injection. The logistic center is a
1-storey rental property providing a total lettable area of
210,280 sq.ft., with nearly 100% occupancy. It is located to
the southwest of Chitose Station on the JR Chitose Line, which
is 9 minutes’ drive to New Chitose Airport.

The management regarded all the joint venture investments
would bring the Group a stable rental returns together with a
long term capital appreciation. For the year ended of 31
December 2022, the share of loss results of joint ventures was
approximately HK$24 million. The significant decrease in share
results was primarily attributable to the unrealized exchange
translation loss from JPY and AUD and the fair value loss of
investment properties.

OUTLOOK

Hong Kong economy is still facing many difficulties and
uncertainties amid of the surging inflation and slow economic
growth in the near future. But we are confident that the local
consumption and overall business activities will be recovered
gradually given the removal of all quarantine restrictions
measures and the strong support and committed
implementation plan by Hong Kong government.

The management will continue to stay focused on existing
business to improving the overall financial performance through
operation efficiency and asset enhancement. We will also seek
other investment opportunities cautiously.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEZ s @m Kk D

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds decreased from approximately
HK$13,146.7 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$12,599.4 million as at 31 December 2022,
representing a net decrease of approximately HK$547.3 million.
The decrease in shareholders’ funds was attributed to (a) profit
attributable to the owners of the Group of approximately
HK$86.1 million; (b) net decrease of investment revaluation
and exchange reserves totaling approximately HK$459.3
million; and (c) 2021 final dividend and 2022 interim dividend
paid approximately HK$174.1 million.

FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

NET CASH/DEBT BALANCE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net debt balance (being
borrowings less cash and deposits) amounted to approximately
HK$574.3 million, decreased by approximately HK$723.1
million from net cash balance approximately HK$148.8 million
in 2021. The decrease of net cash balance was used for the
construction payment of Sanshui residential project, the
renovation cost of The Rockpool and new investment on
Australia property trust.

The Group will closely monitor their future investment and
capital expenditures so as to ensure all those expenditures
incurred are within the budget and do not undermine the
company’s working capital.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had a gross gearing ratio,
(gross borrowing divided by equity attribute to owners of the
Company) of 17.5% (31 December 2021: 14.1%), and a net
gearing ratio (net debt divided by equity attribute to owners of
the Company) of 4.6% (31 December 2021: 0%).

The management expected that the Group’s cash balances
could be improved steadily further by the sale of the remaining
residential and carparks units of “The Grand Riviera”, the pre-
sale of Sanshui residential project, revenue of hotel operation,
the stable rental revenue generated from different rental
properties and overseas joint ventures projects.
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BANKING FACILITIES

Most of the banking facilities as at 31 December 2022 were
committed banking facilities. In managing the debt portfolio,
the Group has endeavored to maintain diversified sources of
funding. Currently, the major source of financing is still coming
from the banking sector, in which the Group has bilateral
banking facilities with various banks, most of which have
established long relationship with the Group. The management
will consider to widen the funding source from capital market if
both the market conditions and terms are favorable to the
Company.

The management will closely monitor the company’s funding
position, internal funding and cheaper external funding will be
used for coming development projects.

LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain healthy cash
balance and high liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will
not only help the Group to fulfill all short term payment
obligations but also improve the Group’s working capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring income of various
investment properties, hotel operation and overseas joint
ventures projects, cash sale proceeds from various completed
and uncompleted development projects and committed banking
facilities. Liquidity risk of the Group is low and it has been
further reduced by early refinancing and improvement of cash
flow.

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan
tenors. The Group’s debt maturity portfolio is spread out with
8% of debts becoming due after 5 years, 5% of debts becoming
due within 2-5 years, 42% of debts becoming due within 1-2
years and 45% of debts becoming due within 1 year
respectively. The Group will re-finance the loan maturity
portfolio in the coming year to reduce the liquidity risk. The
Group will further improve the cash position by sale of the
residential units in Sanshui and stable rental revenue from
various investment portfolio in HK, PRC and overseas projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the
Group may use certain derivative instruments such as interest
rate swaps, cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements and
foreign exchange contracts. It is the Group’s policy to allow
using derivatives as hedging purposes only. With respect to the
counterparty risk of the derivatives, the Group transacts only
with financial institutions with strong investment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate
may result in a potential negative impact to the Group’s
financial position. Given that, the management will actively
involve and review the movement of interest rate so as to
minimize the financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and
not to speculate in currency movement. As at 31 December
2022, other foreign exchange exposures related to some major
investments in Shanghai, Foshan, Thailand and overseas Joint
Ventures projects which altogether amounted to the equivalent
of about HK$6,663.7 million or 42.1% of the Group’s total
assets.

For the overseas project, the group has acquired a hotel property
in Thailand, which is financed by Thai bank borrowing. The
foreign exchange risk exposure has been lowered by matching
the Thai asset with Thai liability.

The management keep closely monitoring these foreign
exchange exposures by implementing different appropriate
measures on a timely and effective manner.
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EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a workforce of
629 (31 December 2021: 441). Staff cost for the year include
salaries, bonuses and allowances, were approximately
HK$140.8 million (31 December 2021: HK$130 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and
determined by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that
the pay levels of its employee are reasonable and competitive in
the market and their total rewards including basic salary and
bonus system are linked with their performance. The members
and work done of Remuneration Committee are shown on page
46.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company has substantially complied with the Provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”
or the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of Listing Rules.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the purpose of enhancing long-term
value for shareholders. The corporate governance chart adopted
by the Company could be referred to Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited Simplified Organisation Chart on page 41.

(B) DIRECTORS

() THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP AND CONTROL
OF THE COMPANY

e  The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leadership
and supervision of the senior management for the purpose
of creating long-term shareholder value and producing a
sustainable growth and successful business.

e The principal tasks of the Board are to set objectives,
formulate strategies and to monitor the operating and
financial performance.

e The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

° The Board also oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems, and management should
provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of
these systems.

° Duties of the Board include approving interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases of interim and
final results, setting the dividend policy, and approving the
issue, allotment, disposal or grant of options in respect of
unissued new shares of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR DIVISION OF
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has clear and distinct division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Managing
Director.

Mr. Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board, provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
of the Board. The Managing Director is responsible for the
Company’s business, daily management and operations
generally.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for the
Group’s operation and performance by delegating duties to
different Executive Directors and senior management to
achieve targeted objectives. The Board gives clear
directions to management of their powers and
circumstances in which the management should submit a
report.

Throughout the year, the role of Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company has not been
segregated as required by the code provision C.2.1 of the
Code. The Board considers this arrangement is in the best
interest of the Company that by nature of the Group’s
business which requires considerable market expertise and
Mr. Liu Lit Chi, with his profound experiences in the
property and banking industry, shall continue in his dual
capacity as the Chairman and Managing Director.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors,
one Non-executive Director and five Independent Non-
executive Directors. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Board met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least one-third of the
Board should be Independent Non-executive Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors
strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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(V)

The Board considers that the five Independent Non-
executive Directors are free from any businesses or other
relationships which might interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgment and each Independent Non-
executive Director brings his own relevant expertise to the
Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
could ensure that the Board functions effectively and
independently.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
committee members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. In
short, these committees have Independent Non-executive
Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate
Governance Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising two
Executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive
Directors to perform the corporate governance duties.

The biographies of the directors appear on pages 131 to
140. These demonstrate diversity of experience and calibre
of the Board in making management decisions.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognizes the importance of diversity among
its Board members and has adopted a Board Diversity
Policy which is available on the Company’s website. The
Board will review the Policy annually to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company has strived to maintain the
diversity of the Board, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, length of service, and any
other factors that the Board might consider relevant and
applicable from time to time towards achieving a diverse
Board.

Our Board is dedicated to improve its gender diversity by
actively recruiting a suitable female candidate to join our
single gender board by the end of 2024.
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In order to maintain gender diversity, similar
considerations are used when recruiting and selecting key
management and other personnel across the Group’s
operations. As at 31 December 2022, we maintained a
42:58 ratio of women to men in the workplace. For details
of our recruitment and employment practices, please refer
to our Environmental, Social and Governance Report. Our
five Independent Non-Executive Directors are from diverse
and complementary backgrounds. The valuable experience
and expertise they bring to our business are critical for the
long-term growth of the Group.

In considering the Board’s succession, The Nomination
Committee was of the view that the average age of the
directors of the Board is 65. The Nomination Committee is
considering to invite more young professional/expertise to
the Board in order to support board succession planning
and long-term growth and have invited current directors to
nominate suitable young candidate to the committee for
consideration. Moreover, an internal management training
program is setup for internal promotion.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors.

Those directors who have been longest in office as at each
annual general meeting shall retire from office and be
subjected to re-election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to submit
themselves to shareholders for re-election to the Board at
the first annual general meeting following their
appointment.

All directors have entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company and were appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election and retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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Code provision B.2.2 stipulates that every director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Under the Article 105, 106 and 113 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, all directors including
the Managing Director are subject to retirement by rotation.

Details of the term of appointment of all Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are as
follows:

(i) to perform such functions and exercise such powers
as are appropriate to the position as an Independent
Non-executive Directors or Non-executive Directors of
the Company;

to comply with all laws, rules and regulations
applicable to be a director of the Company, including
but not limit to the Listing Rules; and

(iii) to notify the Board immediately upon the occurrence
of, or the directors becoming aware of, any matter

which may affect their independence.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Management Committee are
available to review on the Company’s website.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES AND
SHARE DEALINGS

The directors fully appreciate their roles and duties as
directors with supportive commitment of creating a healthy
corporate governance culture.

On appointment, new directors will be given an
introduction to the Group’s major business activities,
induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other
regulatory requirements.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the
listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rule”) as its own code of conduct for Directors in their
dealing in the securities of the Company. Having made
specific enquiries with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
Reporting Period.”
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(V1) CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Code provision C.1.4 proposes that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of attending
continuous professional training for the year ending 31
December 2023.

(VIi) COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, the Company Secretary also an
Executive Director of the Company, is a full time employee
of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman of the Board or Executive Management
Committee on governance matters and also facilitates
induction and professional development of the directors.
All directors have access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that the Board procedures,
all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed.
During the year, the Company Secretary has duly complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biography of Mr. Lee is
set out in the section “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in the annual report.
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BOARD PROCESS

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD DECISION
AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance
and in compliance with the requirement as mentioned
under Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance Code, the
Board has performed to hold full Board meeting at least
quarterly during the year 2022.

The Executive Management Committee was established on
30 October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston
and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly approved terms
of reference by the Board, the committee is authorised:

(1) to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on
all matters relating to the daily management and
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(2) to discuss significant daily operational issues;

(3) to review key business performance and take prompt
corrective actions as appropriate;

(4) to discuss and formulate financial policy, including
review and present of final and interim results of the
Company to the Board, as well as make
recommendation of interim and/or final dividends or
other distributions to the Board;

(5) to discuss business opportunities arising from
changing conditions so as to formulate policies to
sustain the growth of the Company; and

(6) The Executive Management Committee is currently
receiving monthly management report which shows
the Group’s financial and operating results with
detailed analysis of different business activities.

The main function of the committee could help to relieve
the Board of detailed review of information and to increase
the operational efficiency among different departments.
For the avoidance of doubt, all matters that require public
announcement pursuant to the Listing Rules or rules of
any other relevant regulatory body must be approved by the
Board.
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Matters reserved for full Board decision include material
bank facilities arrangements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, material transactions with connected
parties, significant investments including large capital
projects, delegation of authority, treasury and risk
management policies and any matters involving a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or director.

All directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and the Board committee meetings, which are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final signed
version is sent to all directors for their records and open for
directors’ inspection.

All directors are allowed to take independent professional
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advice at Company’s expense. BEXERo
e The Company has purchased the Directors and Officers o AGEAEELEESEESTRE -

Liability insurance.

TR CHEEEREERLFELCHE

° Details of 2022 Board meetings attendance record are set ®

out below: FHIWTF -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEGERY HE=E
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Lit Chi BERE
(Chairman, Managing Director and (Z/E » EFABLIERTIAEE,)
Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BEE
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIEFA4TE) 4/4 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 4/4 100%
Non-executive Director FERITES
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 4/4 100% 73
bl
Independent Non-executive Directors BiuERiTES B
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEm 4/4 100% o
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B 4/4 100% 2
Ma Hung Ming, John BBy 4/4 100% »
Cheng Yuk Wo il 4/4 100% “
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EZH 4/4 100%
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(1) SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND TIMELINESS

The Company attaches great importance to continually
improve on the quality and timeliness of the dissemination
of information to the directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply
of information to the directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent
in full to all directors in a timely manner (we aim to give
relevant documents at least five clear days replacing
current practice of at least three clear days in advance of
meeting). Where appropriate, communications are sent
electronically.

All directors are currently provided with quarterly
management reports which shows the Group’s financial
and operating results with detailed analysis of those major
rental properties, property under development and other
investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, was regularly
taken for the purpose of reviewing and updating the
Company’s business and operating results with reference
to the quarterly management report.

Managing Director is currently holding internal
management meetings twice a week with all Executive
Directors and different department heads to update
directors on their lines of business and to review
performance for delegated assignment.

Executive Management Committee meetings were held
twice a week to discuss the daily operation and to review
the Company matters by reference to monthly management
reports.
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(1) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
After the year ended of 2015, the Executive Management
Committee had engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) to provide consultancy services in relation to
enterprise risk management and internal controls. The Board
understands that it is the Board’s responsibility to evaluate the
risks of the Company and to implement the Company’s strategic
objective through an established, appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

Senior management had discussed with Deloitte regarding to
the Company’s existing system and internal controls and an
appropriate policy and detailed work plan had been formulated
after having identified the main area of risks.

o During the year of 2022, the management had completed
enterprise risk management and the internal control
assessment and various follow up actions had been done
based on the findings and recommendations by Deloitte.
The management highly regards the internal controls and
considered that such review based on the identified audit
areas, will be performed annually so as to manage the risk
and control the effectiveness of the system.

(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set directors and
senior management’s remuneration policy:

e  The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3
March 2005.
determine the remuneration packages for all directors and

Its terms of reference are to review and

senior management.

e  The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four

members, including three of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi,
Moses (Chairman), Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo and a Non-executive Director, Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,

Christopher.

o The committee meets at least once per annum.
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The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors and senior management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(ii) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payment
and any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

(iii) to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

(iv) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives.

Details of 2022 Remuneration Committee meeting
attendance record are set out below:
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TR CFEHFNEEEGTREE
SCEREGIANT :

Number of Attendance

meeting attended rate
HEEERY iR

Members of Remuneration Committee EMESERE
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman) BEE (F/E) 1/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher k) 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 0/1 0%
Cheng Yuk Wo 2 | /1 100%
Tin Siu Kuen (Secretary) B/ME (#Z) 1/1 100%

e  The committee is authorised by the Board to oversee and

determine the remuneration of Executive Directors and
senior management.

No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
On matters other than those concerning him, the Chairman
or Managing Director may be invited to committee
meetings to give advices.

Committee members are allowed under certain procedures
to take independent professional advice at Company’s
expense for making and determining the remuneration
package proposal.
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(1

The committee will present a report to the Board after each
meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees for
all Directors, for shareholders approval at the annual
general meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in the
Remuneration Committee Report on page 46.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’'s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s position and prospects in all shareholder
communications.

The Board fully understands its responsibilities regarding
the preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF REFERENCE
AND RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT AND EXTERNAL
AUDITORS

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members,
all of them are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Dr. The Hon. Cheng
Mo Chi,
Tsun Sum, Eric.

Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Mr. Tong

All members have experience in reviewing and analysing
audited financial statements of public companies or major
organisations.

The committee meets not less than twice per annum. The
Chairman, the Managing Director and the Executive
Director who is in charge of finance matters may be invited
to the meetings. The committee also meets not less than
twice per annum with the Company’s auditor.
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e  The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)

(ii)

(vii)

to be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties to have
effective systems. This discussion should include the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting

policies and practices;
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(ix) to review the external auditor's management letter, (ix) WEINSZHBENNEIRE 2K
any material queries raised by the auditor to 5~ B et 4c 8% ~ BAF%
management about the accounting records, financial IRENEEFEREEERE
accounts or systems of control and management’s HNEREARBREEREREH

response; and Z[EIFE 5 K
(x) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely (x) MEHREFTKFEIERINEZ

%&Eﬂi.%ﬁ% BREZE%IBRHR

response to the issues raised in the external auditor’s
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management letter. RFPIRENEER
e Details of 2022 Audit Committee meetings attendance o Z—E-"FEBZEZETIELE

record are set out below: SCERETIAT - »

#

B
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Number of Attendance &’

meeting attended rate ’f

HEREAY HREE 5

Members of Audit Committee BREEEESE -/
Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman) B (/%) 2/2 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses RS 2/2 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur EiRE 2/2 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EEH 2/2 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) =&1E FH2) 2/2 100%

Under its terms of reference, the committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
external auditors, to review the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements, and to evaluate the Group’s
system of internal controls.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee
members to take independent professional advice at
Company’s expense.

The committee presents a report or makes advice to the
Board after each meeting for addressing their work done
and findings.

Details on the mandate and work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year are set out in the Audit
Committee Report on pages 42 to 43.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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(111) AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the auditor had
received from the Company and its subsidiaries approximately
HK$1.9 million for audit and audit related services (2021:
HK$2.47 million) as well as approximately HK$0.4 million for
non-audit services including consultancy service and due
diligence service (2021: HK$1.1 million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE SYSTEM TO
SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS AND COMPANY
ASSETS

o Risk management is a crucial part of the Group's strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position and to protect its assets.

e  The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to
identify and manage the risks that the Group may be
exposed to.

° These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
Executive Management Committee together with the
assistance of external auditors during the course of audit
and separate assignment to ensure their effectiveness and
compliance with Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

e  The Managing Director and Executive Directors will discuss
with external auditor in the Audit Committee meeting at
least twice a year on key issues in relation to internal
controls, audit findings and risk management.

° As concluded in 2022 Audit Committee meeting, no
irregularities and major weakness in control were found by
the auditor.

(F) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

e  The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 7
March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors.

e  The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of
the Board. The committee shall comprise members not
less than three and a majority of the committee is
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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e  The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Liu
Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board.

° Other members are Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung
Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum,
Eric (Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Kho
Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive Director).

° The committee meets at least once per annum.
o The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience
required) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(iii) to assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the directors and
succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

o Details of 2022 Nomination Committee meeting
attendance record are set out belows:
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BRMEER

(iii) SRR BBILIERITESZ
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(ivy MEENZAEXEMZERE
E R AT EREKRITE
M) NEFAINESGIR
B o

TECCHFERVZETERIE
SCEREPIANT :

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY HEE

Members of Nomination Committee BEEZEeRE
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) B3E (&) 1/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HER /1 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo | 171 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BiRE 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 1711 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EEH 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) =&1ig #H2) 1/1 100%
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Committee members are allowed to take independent
professional advice at Company’s expense.

Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the
Nomination Committee Report on pages 44 to 45.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’'s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu
Kam Fai, Winston.

Its other current members are Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Executive
Director of the Company and two Independent Non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John.

The committee meets at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the
policy for the corporate governance of the Company. The
duties performed by the Corporate Governance Committee
include the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors of the
Company and the senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to the directors and the employees of the

Company;
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(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report as required under the
Listing Rules; and

(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department heads
from time to time requesting them to review their
corporate governance within the department and
require them to submit proposal or remedy action to

redress the matters.

Details of 2022 Corporate Governance Committee meeting

() BAERABDNEEETEERER
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EREXRERARSFLHKE
-3

R EFRA AP E EEHRT
g5 BERRERAHIBFIA
ZEEER > LiIRERZHM
HITHMEEREE -

(vi)

TR CHFEREERLZEETER

attendance record are set out below: HECERESIWT ¢

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HESERY HEE

Members of Corporate Governance Committee f%¥EaZEEHE
Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Chairman) BEE (FE) 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur EiEE 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John EBsy 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 1/1 100%

(H)
U]

Committee members are allowed to take independent
professional advice at Company’s expense.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

DELEGATION BY BOARD

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different
departmental heads) fully appreciate their respective roles
with supportive commitments of creating a healthy
corporate governance culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes that
management (include different departmental heads) has in
place to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board has delegated management functions to
Executive Management Committee and different
department heads for the Company’s operations and daily
business affairs.
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(1) BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF REFERENCE AND

(N
)}

REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has five Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee
and Executive Management Committee, each of the
Committees have specific written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and
all members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. The Hon.
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and has a majority of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Lit Chi,
the Chairman of the Board and has a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu
Kam Fai, Winston and comprises of one Executive Director
and two Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company.

The Executive Management Committee comprises of three
Executive Directors of the Company.

Each Board committees present(s) their respective reports
to the Board after each meeting, for addressing their work
done and findings.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
PREAMBLE

This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practices in

relation to communicating with its shareholders and prospective

investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of open
and timely disclosure of relevant information on its
activities to shareholders, subject to applicable legal
requirements.

The Company believes that providing regular
communications to its shareholders and the market is
important to ensure they have the available information
reasonably required to make informed assessments of the
Company'’s strategy, operations and financial performance.
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Communication channels

Communication is made through:

the Company’s annual and interim reports, which
have been enhanced to present a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group position and prospects.

notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual and
other general meetings, which have been enhanced to
provide shareholders with additional information in an
understandable manner.

press releases on major developments of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant
regulatory bodies.

Company’s website at http://www.lchi.com.hk which
shareholders can access information of the Group.
The website provides, inter alia, corporate
announcements, business development and
operations, press releases, financial reports, and
corporate information of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
The Board regards the annual general meeting as the

principal opportunity to meet with shareholders and

welcome any constructive opinions.
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BE_ZE__F#+_A=+—HIt
FEZARATRRAGEFTHEST

° Details of director’'s attendance record of the annual e
general meeting of the Company held for year ended 31

December 2022 are set out below: EEHIUF -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEERY HEE
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) B3 (£/) 1/1 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BsE
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIEFARAIE) 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung oy 1/1 100%
Non-executive Director FHTES
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher PR 1/1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERTES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses RS 171 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BiE 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 171 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo BREEAN 1/1 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEEH 1/1 100%
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The Company arranges for the annual report and financial ®

statements and related papers to be posted for
shareholders so as to allow at least 21 days for
consideration prior to the annual general meeting. And all
other general meetings to be sent at least 14 days.

The Board encourages and supports shareholder
participation in general meetings. Shareholders are
encouraged to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the
highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board
committees and the external auditor of the Company will
attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
from the shareholders.
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(111) SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

° Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the public
are responded by the Executive Directors, Director of
Finance, Company Secretary or the appropriate members
of senior management.

e The Company will respond in a timely manner to
shareholders’ queries and concerns.

(Iv) THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

o All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting
rights. Annual general meeting proceedings are continually
reviewed in the light of Code on Corporate Governance
Practices.

e  Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of

individual directors.

o Preparation of a comprehensive annual general meeting
circular containing:

e  re-election of directors;

° general mandate to buy-back shares;

° general mandate to issue shares;

° amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
° voting at annual general meeting; and

e  comprehensive information on each resolution to be
proposed.

The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to
demand and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at
shareholders’ meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll
and the poll procedures are included in all circulars in relation
to shareholders’ meetings and will be explained during the
proceedings of shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is
conducted, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on the business day following
the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.lchi.com.hk where the Company’s
announcements, business development and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of
shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on page 36.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A GENERAL
MEETING (“GM”)

Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote may request
to call a GM of the Company.

The written request: (a) must state the general nature of
the GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;
(c) must be signed by the shareholders making such
request, and (d) may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more of those shareholders. A
request by joint holders of shares must be signed by all
such holders.

The request should be deposited at the registered office of
the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified by the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company Secretary will convene a GM on behalf
of the Board by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements or applicable rules or
regulations to all the registered shareholders.

If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders
concerned will be informed and no GM will be convened.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
themselves convene a GM, but any GM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of the deposit of the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be proposed
as a special resolution, the directors shall be deemed not
to have duly convened the GM if they do not give such
notice as is required by section 578 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD

PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give notice
of a resolution if it has received requests from the following
number of shareholders:

(i)  Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote on
the resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the request relates; or

(ii) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting
to which the request relates.

The written request: (a) must be signed by all the
shareholders concerned; (b) must be sent to the Company
in hard copy form at the registered office of the Company;
(c) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (d) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and (e) must be received by the Company not
later than 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to
which the requests relate; or if later, the time at which
notice is given of that meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company will give notice of the resolution or
circulate the statement provided that:

(a) if the request relates to an annual general meeting,

(i) the proposed statement must be received in
time to enable the Company to send a copy of
the statement when the notice of annual general
meeting is despatched;

(i) and, the shareholders concerned have to deposit
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later
than 7 days before the annual general meeting.
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(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an annual
general meeting), the shareholders concerned have to
deposit a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later than
7 days before the GM.

o If the request is verified to be not in order or the
shareholders concerned have failed in the above manner to
deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the shareholders concerned will be
advised of the result and no action will be taken by the
Company in that regard.

° Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under section 615 of the
Companies Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must
send a copy of it at the Company’s own expenses to each
shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the annual general meeting in the same manner as the
notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or as soon
as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation and
regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622,
Laws of Hong Kong). For further details on the shareholder
qualifications, and the procedures and timeline, shareholders
are kindly requested to refer to Sections 566 to 567, 571, 578,
580 to 582, 610 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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(Vi) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A PERSON
FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including
Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules
and the articles of association of the Company as amended from
time to time, if any shareholder(s) of the Company intends to
propose a person other than a director of the Company for
election as a director of the Company at any GM, the following
procedures shall apply:

o a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged with the Board at the
registered office of the Company;

e the minimum length of the period during which such
notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days and that the
period for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
GM appointed for such election and end no later than 7
days prior to the date of such GM; and

° in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the

Company of that proposal, such notice(s) for the
nomination of a director must state the full name of the
person nominated for election as a director and include the
person’s biographical details as required by the Listing

Rules.

(J) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were changes to the Company’s Articles of Association in
the annual general meeting held on 29 April 2015 and 15 May
2018, the shareholders of the Company had approved the
amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company. The
changes were carried out in compliance with the latest Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which came into effect
on 3 March 2014. The revised Articles of Association is
available in the Company’s website.
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ABOUT LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are pleased to publish
our environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report (the
“Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group is
principally engaged in property investment, property
development, investment holding and hotel operation. During
the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”), the Group has expanded the hotel
operation in Koh Samui, Thailand (the Kimpton Kitalay Samui).
The Kimpton Kitalay Samui is managed and operated by
InterContinental Hotels Group.

The Group is committed to being a responsible, ethical and
sustainable corporation. We have integrated corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) and ESG goals into our daily operations.
We believe that integrating sustainable development goals into
our business will maintain further success in our performance in
the future and continue to contribute to the building of a
harmonious society.

During the Reporting Period, our areas of operation covered
Hong Kong, Thailand and the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"), with premises comprising offices and hotels, as well
as commercial, residential and industrial buildings.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) as set
out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. In the preparation of this
Report, we adhered to the four core principles of the ESG
Guide, namely the “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and
“Consistency” principles that are described below. In addition,
we have adhered to the ESG Guide in terms of the presentation
and measurement of data for this Report.

Materiality: Materiality assessments are conducted and reviewed
annually to ensure remain topics that are relevant and material
to our business operations and stakeholders.

Quantitative: The quantitative key performance indicators
(“KPIs™) disclosed are measurable and applicable to valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions.
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Balance: The information for the year is presented in an
unbiased manner to avoid the possibility of inappropriately
influencing any judgement or decision by readers of the Report.

Consistency: The data and calculation methods for these KPls
are kept consistent, for the disclosure of data to ensure valid
comparability.

Apart from the principal activities of the Group, the activities
reported below also include property management. However,
since the Kimpton Kitalay Samui is not operationally controlled
by the Group, the related disclosure is excluded.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Period, our Executive Committee
(comprising our Executive Directors) conducted a materiality
assessment after receiving feedback from stakeholders. The
purpose of the assessment was to identify the potential ESG
issues and prioritise the material ESG issues that are most
relevant to our business. The materiality assessment helped to
determine our long-term ESG strategies in coming years.

The issues below are the ESG topics that demonstrated high
materiality to the Group and are considered as important to our
stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
EMISSIONS

WASTE MANAGEMENT

USE OF RESOURCES

SOCIAL ASPECTS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
HEALTH AND SAFETY
DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
ANTI-CORRUPTION
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BOARD STATEMENT

The Group keeps exploring opportunities to operate and expand
its business in a sustainable manner. The Board of Directors
(the “Board”) holds overall responsibility for the effectiveness of
the sustainability of the Group, including setting ESG directions,
evaluating ESG-related risks, reviewing work performance and
approving the Report.

Power and authority were delegated to the Group’s Executive
Committee and department heads. It is the duty of the
Executive Committee to examine and address the ESG issues
according to the ESG Guide, including formulation of ESG
strategies. Department heads are responsible for gathering
information, developing and reviewing KPls where appropriate,
and implementing the operation policy in line with the business
goals of the Group.

The Executive Committee regularly reviews the effectiveness of
the implementation of relevant solutions to ESG-related issues.
Environmental targets and updated strategies and policies are
approved from time to time by the Board and are required to be
updated in line with the latest regulatory requirements before
issuance of the Report.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

We fully understand that our operations and strategies will
influence our environment and society. We adhere to “Reduce,
Reuse, Recycle” as our key philosophy for protecting the
environment. We are committed to minimising waste and
pollution in our daily operations and utilising energy efficiently.
The Group also encourages its staff to protect the environment
both at work and in their daily lives and raises awareness
through continuous training and communications.

We run and maintain green buildings. Our Chong Hing Finance
Center in Shanghai has been awarded LEED Gold certification.
We have designed and maintained our buildings in a resource-
efficient manner and provide a healthy environment for the
users of these buildings. The environmentally friendly features
of the Chong Hing Finance Center include reducing heat islands
in the surrounding areas and decreasing light pollution.

EFEEH
FEBRHRFUATFHEN G ALER
EREEZIKE SEEEREEL
SRR FEMERRR > BERIERE
HEREBHNAR > FERE - 48R
ERMER AR - wma TERRBERIER
| o

FEBRRTEZEGRMAITEERTHE
NRHER - MITEZETHNHE S RIFR
B HEREBIESIBERBRIRE
HERELAEE  SFEFIEIRE - 1HE
REBREE - BMAETERTREERN
) E AR SR E 1R (WEA) » I
BN ESAEEEHERNZERCR

PITZEEEHMBABERIRE - £ 8K
EREMEEER BRI o IR
BEERRRMRERBRBESEE R E
BH > WARTIERREFMRIZRNE
EREE

REBIRIR
EMFRPRMNEER TR ERM
NIREREE - BEMABFIRLVEH
(Reduce) ~ ¥1FBH FH (Reuse) ~ BIRB &
(Recycle)) 1% F IR EIRIR A2 O IE
RoHMBRANEHEEERHZE RV
Mk LHEMF AR AEETF
BRETHETERBBEEPFRERIR
T FE B A BB A = o

BPEFREERERE - HAIUN L
BEIEE R PO LEED S50 o
I E R m B 75 TURR 51 e A s 3
BT > U ARFEFHRAFRMER
BIRIE - BB SR P ONIRFRIGHEE
BB ERN RSB RAITE



According to corresponding regulations, we handle the oil and
grease in wastewater, which is incurred by the operations of our
hotel properly. Vacuum cleaning is performed regularly,
accompanied by wastewater tests from a recognised laboratory.
We will keep moving forward and ensure that the concept of
environmental sustainability is integrated into our daily
operations. For investment, we have carefully selected invested
in an interest-bearing product — Green Deposit, that was to
fund ESG financing commitments that fall under eligible and
qualifying activities. The eligible and qualifying activities are
aligned with the United Nation’s Sustainable Development
Goals such as green building, renewable energy, clean
transportation, climate change adaptation and etc.

We believe that every effort contributes towards sustainability.
Therefore, we took part in several green events this year. During
the Reporting Period, the Group continuously supported the
Energy-Saving Charter 2022, organised by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department. The participating buildings
were the Chong Hing Bank Centre, The Rockpool and Chong
Hing Square. The charter promotes energy efficiency and energy
saving, among the most crucial means for Hong Kong to
continuously reduce its carbon emissions. The Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department has set four targets under the
charter, including: (i) maintaining an average indoor temperature
between 24°C and 26°C during summer time; (ii) switching off
electrical appliances and systems when they are not in use; (iii)
procuring energy-efficient appliances and systems (e.g
appliances with Grade 1 energy labels/under Voluntary Energy
Efficiency Labelling Scheme); and (iv) encouraging staff and
tenants to adopt energy-saving practices.

Apart from Liu Chong Hing Property Management and Agency
Limited, during the Reporting Period, One-Eight-One Hotel &
Serviced Residences (“One-Eight-One”), Chong Hing Bank
Centre and Grandview Court also supported Earth Hour 2022 by
turning off all non-essential external wall and interior lights for
an hour at 8:30 pm, to reduce energy usage. We also

encouraged our stakeholders to participate.
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EMISSIONS

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions are closely related to
climate change and global warming. The air pollutants directly
emitted by the Group are mainly exhaust gas from vehicles and
utilities. To minimise GHG emissions, we have adopted
initiatives in a number of areas, such as maintaining the good
condition of vehicles and minimum usage of vehicles and
utilities. The Group has installed several electric vehicle
chargers at the Chong Hing Finance Center in Shanghai and
One-Eight-One in Hong Kong, in order to reduce air pollution
and promote the use of electric vehicles. The electric vehicle
charging areas at the Chong Hing Finance Center in Shanghai
comply with the PRC’s regulations for electric vehicle charging
facilities.

Our property management services operate under the framework
of ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification.
This ensures that operational practices within our properties are
in line with the most environmentally friendly practices, as well
as applicable environmental protection laws and regulations.
The managed properties include but are not limited to Chong
Hing Bank Centre, Chong Hing Square and The Rockpool.
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GHG emissions during the Reporting Period:

REHRENEEREEIN

Sources Types of GHG Unit 2022 2021

KR AEREEY Bfi ot St —EC-F

Emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption and Nitrogen oxides (NO,)  tonnes 0.01459 0.01617

use of vehicles a|ftmno) it

R ERE R SEERNHREE Sulphur oxides (S0,)  tonnes 0.00007 0.00008
&% (s0,) it

Direct emissions or removals from sources (Scope 1)

B REREHR R (8E1)

GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 88.12 103.34

e BRI ERT R R E R HEK Z&{bHk(COo,) it
Methane (CH,)! tonnes 0.26 0.23
ERYGE (CHy)' it
Nitrous oxide (N,0)!  tonnes 10.93 14.99
SIEEZ (N,0)' it

Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)

MiERE RN (88 2)

Electricity purchased from power companies Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 3,293.89 3,658.61

RENARBES Z&1EH%(C0) M

Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 43.28 50.22

REBPEERAABENER Z&{EHk(COo,) U]

Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3)

HitiRE RAEHEK (8E3)

Electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 17.43 13.22

by government departments Z&1EH%(C0) U]

T EPIEIE Bk KT K P H AR B /1

Business air travel by employees Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 11.07 -

EERLRIELIAE Z&{EH%(COo,) U]

Total GHG emission (Scope 1, Scope 2 & Scope 3) Carbon dioxide (C0,)! tonnes 3,464.98 3,840.61

RERBHNAE (EE - #E2 R#EE3) k= (4 (O it

Total GHG emission intensity Carbon dioxide tonnes 12.24 13.86

(CO,)/employee

BERBHRAZE Z&1ERk (o) BB M

Notes: M

L Methane and nitrous oxide emissions were converted into carbon dioxide emissions based 1. REBE2KERCER (TGWPL) > #ERKRECEIHER

on global warming potential (“GWP”). Therefore, the total amount of greenhouse gas

emissions is the total amount of carbon dioxide emissions equivalent.

2. The methodology adopted for reporting on greenhouse gas emissions set out above was 2.
based on “How to Prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on

Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
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The improvement in emissions from gaseous fuel consumption,
use of vehicles and mobile combustion sources comes from less
usage of vehicles, as we equipped electric vehicles and
encouraged staff to maintain minimum usage and adopt public
transport instead. The Group resumed business travel
arrangements following a lull during the pandemic, which
caused increases in Scope 3 CO, emissions. However, the Group
also encouraged staff to make use of video conferencing
facilities and only necessary business trips were allowed. The
Group did not record any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations with a significant impact relating to greenhouse gas
emissions during the Reporting Period.

In addition, we participated in the Environmental Protection
Department’s Indoor Air Quality Scheme and were awarded
“Indoor Air Quality Certification — Good Class” for Chong Hing
Square and Chong Hing Bank Centre. Up to late 2022, One-
Eight-One was still designated as a quarantine hotel shortlisted
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Hong Kong government”), and so was unable to
carry out the above-mentioned test. This was because under the
quarantine hotel arrangement, the Group followed the Centre for
Health Protection’s requirements on preventing the spread of
Covid-19. We will target resuming One-Eight-One’s participation
in the Indoor Air Quality Scheme in the coming year.

The Group has set a target of reducing the intensity of emissions
from gaseous fuel consumption and use of vehicles by 2% in its
Hong Kong properties by 2025, with 2021 set as the baseline
for several measures such as performing regular vehicle and
machine maintenance to reduce gas emissions, and upgrading
chillers in managed properties to save electricity.

BES
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

We recognise the far-reaching impacts of the improper handling
of waste. We have formulated waste management procedures to
ensure that all waste is handled properly, as well as measures to
minimise the amount of waste.

As One-Eight-One served as a quarantine hotel, waste arising
from the cleaning of confirmed case guest rooms required the
same treatment as hazardous waste (clinical). The hazardous
waste was collected and handled by outsourced contractors
recognised by the Department of Health. During the Reporting
Period, apart from 0.08 (2021: 0.3) tonnes of the above-
mentioned waste disposed of, the Group did not generate any
other hazardous waste, including chemical and other hazardous
waste. During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a total
of 22.5 tonnes of general hotel and office waste with an
intensity of 0.08 tonnes per employee.

For waste management, we consistently applied the concept of
“Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”., Examples of our measures are
as below:

At head office and in property management buildings:

> Use of electronic communication channels, double-sided
printing, and recycled paper and envelopes

> Encourage staff to use hand dryers instead of paper towels

> Reuse and flexibly reallocate festival decorations

In hotels:

> Reduce the amount of plastic used by changing to larger
size bottles for items such as bathroom amenities, hand
sanitiser, etc.

> Communicate with guests and between departments using
QR codes and instant messaging tools, and use lamination
on printed paper to enable its reuse

> Reuse old towels for internal cleaning purposes

> Regularly review and maintain minimum prepared food to
avoid food waste

> Attempt to repair equipment before disposal to avoid
wasting resources
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Our hotel operations generated the majority of the recyclable
material. The materials were not recycled in previous years as
we had to maintain high standards in environment safety and
hygiene, due to being a quarantine hotel. We are pleased to
resume the recycling of material in late 2022 included coffee
capsule and ink cartridge by recognized suppliers. Excess
furniture in good condition which did not need between
departments were gathered and donated to the Crossroads
Foundation in regular review process for furniture recycling
purpose. Crossroads Foundation is a Hong Kong based, non-
profit organisation serving global need. Furniture recycling is not
only for purpose of reducing waste, but also respond to requests
for goods from charities across Hong Kong and around the
world.

The Group aims to reduce non-hazardous waste by cutting down
on disposable supplies in guest rooms and continuously raising
employee awareness.

Recycled materials during the Reporting Period:

BB

HPIEEEEEE RS D A EIUIEL o
MR EARBEIS > RPAEFSRE
MIRBELZEREE > WATFFELED
Wkl o HFIRAR — S _F B HW
1R B Ui e A58 B] (1 FE 7 [ W 4kt
BEMSFBERER - REMBRER
Fo BPIZEZEEERNREFNRAES
WRELHRE FER+FEBE > fFEIUK
XERR - IR+FREE BRI
REBRIFEFESR > RBEEXFEX -
RALOBRERR T RLVEEY > TERE
ERARMTAIMPNEERBEYRNT
R o

FERSEERRLEEN—XMEAMm
RAERSERES M BESERY

RS HARRY AT [ WAt

Materials recycled

Unit

2022 2021

BEME B —E-C —EC-F
Used cooking oil tonnes 0.625 0.704
FERENEH i

Paper tonnes 0.220 N/A
A i TEH
Plastic bottles tonnes 0.006 N/A
iR i TER
Aluminium cans tonnes 0.067 N/A
g i FEH




USE OF RESOURCES HRER

We maintain smart use of resources. In our operations, the main KM SEFEHEBER c ERMMNEED >
consumed resources include electricity, materials and water. JHEMNFEZEREAIEE T« MBI KK o
The Group has regularly reviewed and introduced green ZANEETEHRTES|IALZEIEH > UE
measures for better governing the use and conservation of (FMEBEIRERERIFERKLENL o

resources.

ENERGY SAVING 8 BE

We fully understand the importance of conserving energy and F I RBAEIQNRER RA /LB E REEHEMK
reducing greenhouse gas emissions to help reduce our carbon ¥ FHLVREFHNEEMY - RMPESHIE—

JINVNYIA0Y I1VH0dHO0I ANY MIIAFY SSIANISNG

footprint. We have set up a series of measures to promote ~RFUHEMLIRSEAERR - BARME B

awareness of energy saving that are applicable to all business ZFZIE(E o g

operations. ‘;
oy

Examples of the Group’s measures to improve the energy ZHAEEARSHEENBRNEFIIES ;g

efficiency of its operations are highlighted below: R FINT -

Head office ° Setting and maintaining the average room temperature at between 24°C and

et 26°C

HERNEAERERERFERK24E26 EZH
o Switching off some lifts after office hours, as well as idle office equipment
EMARKERERIHDAREER A LA RS
o Using electrical appliances with a Grade 1 energy label according to the
Hong Kong government’s Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme
ERARER MBI AR HEIRE 8 BE—RERFENE
o Posting energy-saving notices to promote environmental awareness
SREGENAE ST » IRSIRAREH
Investment properties e Using light-emitting diode (“LED") lighting for exterior billboards and
KREME switching off lights in unoccupied areas
EEINESEFERELTIEE (TLED)) BRIAKEMEAFEREE A
o Having dedicated staff to conduct regular inspections and monitor energy
consumption
HEATCHEE RERETRHE
o Upgrading building management systems, variable speed drives and chillers
in managed properties for current control and energy usage monitoring

purposes
RATEMENIETEIERM - BIRRRBRECRA - LUEHIE R REE o
AEIRTER

° Using photocatalytic disinfection coating in several facilities in common
areas

EARERNSERBEREBCNEEE

ETHEXIHBA O
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Hotel operations

BIEEF

Electricity consumption and intensity during the Reporting

BES

Using double Low-E coating on external windows, to minimise the
transmission of ultraviolet and infrared light

EHE LEREERESER - R RV RIMRRALIMERYESY
Switching off lights in unoccupied areas and some lifts at midnight
B A EAHEENRARETFREEHIDAREER

Reducing how often beds are changed and rooms prepared where possible,
without affecting customers’ experience in using our hotel services

EFREBREZRBERFNART - B BIRKEREERERR

Purchasing waterproof mattresses and pillow covers to reduce unnecessary
steaming steps

BEHKEKRBMNE » LURD AR ERZ [P R
BERENAEEREE

Period:
Unit 2022 2021
B k- o - —E--f
Electricity consumption kWh 4,692,649.62 4,627,024.44
REE TRE
kWh/employee 16,581.80 16,704.06
TRE/EE

Apart from the LEED Gold certification awarded to the Chong
Hing Finance Center in Shanghai, which we have designed and
maintained in a resource-efficient manner, the design of the
property development project Sanshui District, Foshan also
incorporated external wall insulation and heat insulation, which
helped to reduce energy consumption in the buildings. We will
adhere to the concept of green design in future projects.

The Group has set a target of reducing energy consumption by
3% in its Hong Kong properties by 2025, with 2021 set as the
baseline, by turning off lights when staff go off duty or when
people leave, studying the effects of installing frequency
inverters in office and hotel pump and chiller systems, and
assuring the cooling effect of air conditioning equipment by
proper maintenance.

BRUERM @M A AR REEN LB
BIE SRS LEED S8R5 -
W=7k &¥) 5% 3% R IE B By st 7R ER A S
1 from PR S KL BB ERENN
AEIRIHFE - IR ERRIIEE R EHF
HERES -

FERTEBR U —FREE >
E_E_AFZARERMENERH
FERD 3% 0 FIEEEEE T T HERER
FrRARMRER > ARTEMAEMEE KR
&%‘A R R RBIRIRAIA > B
BEZEEMEREARBIRIHR -



MATERIALS USAGE

We encourage our staff to work in a green way to avoid
unnecessary material wastage. However, generating used paper
during business operations is inevitable. To ensure
environmental sustainability, we have procured certified Forest
Stewardship Council paper for printing. Other environmentally
friendly initiatives are mentioned in the WASTE MANAGEMENT
section. The Group continues to raise staff awareness of
reducing paper usage.

Apart from paper, due to serving as a quarantine hotel,
disposable tableware was necessary to prevent infectious
disease in our food and beverage services. To protect the
environment, we introduced eco-friendly products such as
biodegradable takeaway meal boxes and cutlery for quarantine
guest meals and takeaway meals, oxo-biodegradable paper cups,
paper straws and garbage bags made from totally biodegradable
plastic. We have installed water dispensers in guest rooms to
reduce consumption of bottled water. We also use bamboo
tissue instead of tissue paper made from wood pulp. Bamboo
grows up to 30% faster than other trees, so its use helps reduce
environmental harm. We are committed to building a strong
foundation for living a sustainable life.

The car park management system at the Chong Hing Finance
Center in Shanghai uses an automatic licence plate recognition
system (ALPR) to control parking. The system includes standard
resolution |P cameras designed specifically for licence plate
recognition. As a result, physical car park tickets are no longer
required. We also encourage electronic payment — for example,
WeChat Pay — to make all parking processing and transactions
paperless at this property.

MEER

HAIBEIUGRGBSAIFE  BEF
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RREABEREEERER - SEMFRIRIER
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TR RAREI S o
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LEBAEERP O FESEERRRA

B IR BB P A M (ALPR) SRIZHIEE R

B SRS AN B R MRNIRER
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WATER MANAGEMENT

Water is mainly consumed in our offices, hotels and commercial
buildings. The Group has not encountered any problems in
sourcing water. We maintain our water quality by cleaning our
fresh water tanks once every three months. We encourage staff
to adopt water saving practices by posting signs and notices
near sinks. Sensors are installed at taps to control the volume of
water output, and dual flush system devices are equipped in all
guest room bathrooms. We are continuously studying if any
feasible plan could be imposed to reduce water consumption.

Water consumption and intensity during the Reporting Period:

BES

KEEE

KEZAREMOMAE - BEREE
BF o AEEEKRBUKER LI EB T FE
A& - HME=EA B LB KKE—
R DUERIKE o BMITEKIGH T RAS
Hn o BB 8 TIRERERKIE T o 7E9K
REFA LA ERSNIEFIHKE > U
FMIEERAELRE N KAFRRE - K
PIHER ISR T 1Tt BILUR D FEKE ©

HREIENFEKEREE !

Unit

2022 2021

B —E-C —EC-F

Water consumption m? 28,527.49 21,758.72
#EkE K

m?/employee 100.80 78.55

UBR/1EE

We consumed more water during this Reporting Period for hotel
sanitization. Hotel facilities such as gyms and restaurant were
reopened for guests. There is a target to reduce water
consumption by studying the effects of installing water aerators
to reduce water flow. The initial study will be made in staff
areas and focus on water taps in the staff canteen, hotel kitchen
and laundry area.

For the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any notice
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to
discharges into water and land, or generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

RARSERE > RMATEEEHES EFE
KiEM- BEERBEESBERMEE A
EEENHER KM ETEBMRELE
R BN AR IR AR BY AR RY 0 LR K
ME-HTHRARBEETLEHET &
MEIETEE - BIEEREMNEKREN
JKBEFR ©

REBEHE > ~EETERZETAER
BRARKERLMBESHEER ERE
SEEYVINERERRERBER -



CLIMATE CHANGE

Global warming has become more concerning in recent years.
Our Executive Committee and department heads have examined
and assessed the potential climate-related risks to the Group.
These can be divided into physical risks and transition risks,
which may pose adverse financial impacts to the Group’s
businesses.

Acute physical risks may arise from extreme weather conditions
such as high temperatures, flooding, typhoons and other
rainstorms. These conditions will affect the logistics of material
supply, cause disruption to outdoor work and increase the risks
for staff on the way to work. To minimise the impact from the
possible effects of extreme weather-related disasters, the Group
has established a standard policy, the Code of Practice for Work
Arrangements Under Typhoons and Rainstorms, to provide clear
guidelines for staff on the arrangements for work. To ensure
stable supplies in support of the Group’s operations, we
maintain a large supplier base so we can source from alternative
suppliers to tackle problems arising from suppliers being
affected by extreme weather conditions.

Chronic physical risks arising from increases in temperature
may result in an increase in the energy consumption of the
Group’s offices and other premises. In an effort to control
energy consumption and carbon emissions, the Group will
continuously adopt the various environmental protection
measures mentioned in the Report.

The Group’s operations have not generated significant amounts
of GHG emissions and waste, so we believe that changes to
environmental regulations will not substantially affect our
operations or increase their operating costs. However, customer
preferences may change to competitors who place great concern
on environmental protection and cause market risk to us. The
Group will monitor the market environment and related
regulations from time to time and assess the risk level, to
ensure that the Group meets customer expectations and
complies with environmental regulations.
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RECRUITMENT AND EMPLOYMENT

Our success comes from our strong and talented team. The total
turnover rate during the Reporting Period was 18% (2021:
34%). We advocate a community spirit that thrives on mutual
respect and equal opportunities. We carry out our recruitment
and promotion processes impartially and are attentive to staff
retention and development. We strictly comply with the laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC.

For recruitment, we examine and evaluate candidates based on
their experience and qualifications, regardless of their gender,
age, race, family status, religion or disability status, to ensure a
fair and equal recruitment process is in place. By protecting
sensitive personal information, all information collected during
the recruitment process will only be used for such purposes and
accessed by authorised staff. Information on unsuccessful
candidates will normally be deleted 24 months after their

application.

A sound employment system contributes to diversity and creates
a positive working environment for us. We have developed a
comprehensive framework incorporating detailed human
resource management policies into our Operation Manual and
Staff Handbook.
recruitment, dismissal,

It stipulates the Group’'s policies on
working conditions, benefits and
remuneration, training and development, and health and safety.
We do not tolerate unfair and unlawful dismissal. This will only
be processed on reasonable and lawful grounds or in the event
of serious violations of the Group’s policies and requirements.

Child or forced labour are strictly prohibited. Appropriate
candidate screening and age check controls are implemented in
our recruitment process to ensure that we do not hire child
labour in Hong Kong and the PRC. Working hours are clearly
stated in our employment contracts with staff and we ensure
that they are in compliance with the applicable labour standards
and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. Employees are also
encouraged to discuss their job progression and career
development goals with the senior management who oversee
their daily activities. In the event that child or forced labour
issues are noted, the employment relationship will be
immediately terminated. Information on our workforce and
employment turnover by gender, age group, geographical region
and employment category can be found below:
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Total Workforce: BT 4E g
By gender 2022 2021 By age group 2022 2021 ?
145 ot bt ZEC-F  ERER ZECCE ZEC-§ E
Male 58% 59% 30 years old or younger 10% 11% E
Bt NHFAUT &
Female 42% 41%  31-50 years old 53% 52% %
pegi3 )4 §
51-60 years old 21% 28% ﬁ
SIE60% z
Over 61 years old 10% 9% g
LA L s
]
#
By geographical region 2022 2021 By employment category 2022 2021 g
HE ot St g (EEER ZECCE ZEC-§ &
Hong Kong 18% 77%  Senior level 15% 15% %
&8 EEE R
Others 22% 23%  Middle level 24% 32%
Hith HREEAE
Entry level 61% 53%
EEET
Employment turnover: EERRX
By gender 2022 2021 By age group 2022 2021
1450 ot St ZEC-F  ERER k- et ZEC-fF
Male 18% 34% 30 years old or younger 41% 42%
B 0RIAUT
Female 18% 35%  31-50 years old 18% 67%
gega I E505%
51-60 years old 14% 19%
51 E605%
Over 61 years old 1% 13%
BlARE M £
By geographical region 2022 2021
HE ZECCE —Eo-&
Hong Kong 22% 24%
&
Others 5% 9%
Hith
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not notice any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to

preventing child and forced labour, compensation and dismissal, ZBEEEFH - TERE -~ R TH# lg
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal &~ Z2¢{b BHILEEBRREMEFBERE -
opportunities, diversity, discrimination prevention, or other FIBYFEREDZE R EREVIE R © g
benefits and welfare. .
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EMPLOYEE WELFARE

We believe that responding to staff needs, coupled with
reasonable remuneration and benefits, maintains our staff’s
sense of belonging to the Group. Apart from statutory holidays,
we offer a variety of paid leave such as sick leave, casual leave
(i.e., leave of absence at short notice for personal matters or
family emergencies), marriage leave, compassionate leave,
annual leave and injury leave. “Vaccination leave” was granted
to employees in order to encourage them to get vaccinated
against Covid-19, for stronger protection against serious illness,
hospitalisation and death. Staff are eligible to apply their
medical check allowance to ensure their suitability prior to
taking their first Covid-19 vaccination dose.

For employees living in high-risk areas in terms of exposure to
Covid-19, the Group offers accommodation for hotel staff on a
discretional basis. Fully paid sick leave was granted to
employees who had to quarantine and were not able to report
for duty. Hardship allowances were provided to staff whose work
exposed them to high-risk hotel areas. As a responsible
employer, we are willing to fight the pandemic together with our
staff.

The Group adheres to taking care of all employees and
expanding the variety of corporate culture activities. We strictly
follow labour laws and regulations and provide a comprehensive
package to our staff. We support breastfeeding by allowing
breaks for this and provide a private space with appropriate
facilities for working mothers who have returned to the
workplace after giving birth.

The Group’s medical benefits also cover certain employees’
spouses or children. In the event of extreme weather conditions,
or road and traffic conditions that affect the ability of staff to
report for duty on time, we always respond considerately.
Employees who are required to report for duty under no. 8 or
higher tropical cyclone warning signals or black rainstorm
warning signals are eligible to apply for overtime payment and
allowances, such as meal and transportation allowances.
Furthermore, a clear work arrangement is forwarded to each
employee via instant messaging, and relevant guidelines are
stated in the Staff Handbook.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Human capital has always been the key to the Group’s success.
We devote resources to maintaining close communication with
staff. Annual performance reviews are arranged for all staff with
the same practices, to facilitate communication between
employees and department heads. These are used for
assessment of compensation package and promotion
opportunities. Through regular and effective staff performance
reviews and communications, eligible staff are rewarded with
promotions and salary increases.

Staff training and development continuously strengthens our
workforce’s knowledge and skills. A series of internal and
external training programmes were organised during the
Reporting Period to ensure that staff received adequate training
in response to their needs in different positions and roles. The
wide range of training topics included, but was not limited to,
occupational health and safety workshops, fire drills, manual
lifting and handling, AED training, and kitchen hygiene.

During the Reporting Period, we were pleased to nurture the
new generation by resuming our internship programme in hotel
operation. We hope to provide a platform for students engaged
in field experience and explore their career interests through
meaningful and practical work experience.
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We encourage our staff to join job-related training provided by
external associations. The Group offers training allowances for

all work-related courses on a discretionary basis, to increase

staff initiative in personal development. During the Reporting
Period, a total of 36% (2021: 45%) of employees were trained
with average of 2.28 (2021: 1.46) training hours per employee.

The breakdown is as shown below:

EMEEET2mMINS iR ERENTE
MERAE - AEBEREAFE EIEHE
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By gender 2022

2021 By employment category

2022 2021

£ —ECC ZEZ-5  (ERER —E-CE —E--F
Male 36% 47%  Senior level 31% 32%
B EEE
Female 37% 42%  Middle level 29% 55%
pegi3 HMREEAE
Entry level 40% 42%
EEET

The average number of trainings taken per

employee during the Reporting Period:

participated
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By gender 2022 2021 By employment category 2022 2021
145 ot oot ZEZ-F  (ERER - el 3 ZEZ-§
Male 5.76 3.26  Senior level 4.46 2.38
B EERE
Female 7.04 3.29 Middle level 6.71 3.34
gogia HREEAE

Entry level 6.55 3.39
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Apart from continuous development training, our new
employees, especially those who meet and provide services to
our guests on the front line, were required to attend an
orientation training course on their first day of work, to
familiarise themselves with the Group’s objectives, culture, and
employee rules and regulations. In addition, internal cross-
training programmes were also provided for staff. The training
scope for the Reporting Period included environmental
management, customer service and technical skills. Liu Chong
Hing Property Management and Agency Limited has obtained
the 2021 Security Services Best Training Merit Award (Licensed
Security Company — Type 1), organised by the Vocational
Training Council and Hong Kong Police Force (Crime Prevention
Bureau) and supported by the Security and Guarding Services
Industry Authority.

In December 2022, we organised a training session — the
Effective Communication Skills Workshop. The workshop
enabled staff member to gain a deeper understanding of their
personality and learn behaviour observation, in addition to
making corresponding reactions in order to create a harmonious
working environment attributed to effective communication.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health and safety is integral to our Group. To provide a safe
working environment, well-stocked first aid kits are supplied in
our hotel, office and commercial buildings. Responsible staff
become familiar with the use of first aid kits, reporting
procedures, and occupational health and safety issues through
our internal safety training.

Our property management business has obtained ISO 45001
certification in recognition of our compliance with occupational
health and safety standards. All property management staff are
required to wear safety boots to protect themselves. We have
optimised slippery floors around swimming pools and performed
tree care monitoring, to provide a safe working environment for
staff, residents and customers. We have maintained staff
awareness of safety through the continuous delivery of safety
tips from trainings, briefings and notices. Equipment operating
guidelines, procedural training sessions and work safety
trainings are delivered to staff regularly to continuously promote
and enhance employees’ safety awareness and good practices.
We always aim for a target of zero accidents and fatalities.
During the Reporting Period, we had 386 (2021: 85.5) lost
days due to work injury. We have not had any work-related
fatalities in the past three years. In the event of any work injury,
an investigation will be performed. When needed, ad hoc
training will be arranged at short notice to raise staff awareness
of an issue.

Although One-Eight-One completed its service of being a
quarantine hotel in September 2022, we still provide a high-
quality guest experience to all customers. Having been
threatened by the Covid-19 pandemic in recent years, we have
developed a robust programme to fight it in our hotel, office and
investment properties. Measures include regularly engaging
recognised contractors for the deep cleaning of guest rooms and
workplace sanitisation, supplying sufficient disinfectant
products and protective equipment for staff use, upgrading
office equipment, and optimising office areas to help air
circulation.
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One-Eight-One has obtained the Anti-Epidemic Hygiene
Measures Certification issued by the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency, which proves that the above measures are
adequate and robust. They not only safeguard the health of our
staff but also the health of the Group’s stakeholders. All staff
members are vaccinated according to government requirements.
The Group will continue to optimise its work practices for the
sake of staff health and safety, with the aim of creating a safe,
healthy and comfortable working environment.

For the Reporting Period, the Group has not noticed any non-
compliance in relation to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

To deliver top-quality services to the customer, we expect first-
rate quality from our selected suppliers. As of 31 December
2022, we maintained connections with 968 (2021: 855)
approved suppliers, of which 98% (2021: 99%) are located in
Hong Kong. The Group has established a standardised
procurement procedure. Procurement will only be placed with
our approved suppliers. During the supplier selection process,
we consider several attributes, such as the quality and safety of
goods provided, the experience and qualifications of the
supplier, the uniqueness of the goods supplied, the emissions
and pollutants produced during the supply process, and the
traceability of goods. Supplier quality is of paramount concern
to us, so we require our suppliers and contractors to comply
with local laws and abide by all environmental laws and
regulations, labour practices, and health and safety standards.
We will not engage any company that has any past record of
questionable ESG practices. We encourage green products and
carry out selection based on the functionality, biodegradability
and pathogenicity of the product. We also look into the toxicity
of products caused to the environment. The Group takes into
account the impact of our suppliers’ products on the
environment, and where possible, favours those who follow
environmentally sound practices, such as offering products with
greater durability and energy efficiency.
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Environmental and social risks along supply chains have been
regularly evaluated through continuous monitoring in daily
operations, inspection of quality certificates, and where
possible, by conducting supplier audits. If supplier performance
falls below our agreed standard, improvement is required. We
will not tolerate violations of our standards and requirements or
environmental and social laws and regulations. Business
relationships will be replaced or terminated in the event that
such issues are noted.

Before procuring any materials or products, our procurement
staff examine the necessity of the product or service, to avoid
any unnecessary consumption. For the sake of sustainability, we
consider alternatives when purchasing replacement products,
favouring those with greater durability and energy efficiency.
Priority is given to local suppliers in the hope of promoting local
economic development and reducing our carbon footprint by
limiting products that require long shipping distance. Preference
is also given to supplier with green factory certification or ESG-
related certification. In procurement delivery, we require the
removal of all unnecessary packaging materials, which often
generate emissions and wastewater during the manufacturing
process.

PRODUCT AND SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

The Group aspires to offer top-quality products and services to
customers. Apart from the guidelines and codes issued by
regulatory authorities, we believe that the comprehensive
Operation Manual and Staff Handbook set up attach great
significance to regulating work procedures and standards in our
daily operations. We require all employees to work in line with
the procedure and standard stipulated. Refresher trainings,
coupled with ad hoc topics, are held regularly to ensure that
employees are familiar with internal procedures and
requirements. Monitoring responsibility is delegated to
department heads, to ensure that the quality of service delivered
from their departments meets the standard required by the
Group. Regular operation meetings between the Executive
Committee and department heads are in place to track
department performance.
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We stay humble and strive to excel in customer experience
management. To promote social integration and equal
opportunities, the Group is dedicated to providing barrier-free
access and facilities for the people who need them. At One-
Eight-One, we provide accessible rooms that are designed for
guests with disabilities or special needs. We regularly monitor
the condition of our hotel facilities to cope with guest needs.
We emphasise food safety, with all food and beverages provided
by hotels strictly handled according to our operation and safety
manual.

We are delighted to report that One-Eight-One was awarded the
Tripadvisor 2022 Travellers’ Choice Award, recognising the
hotel’s place in the top 1% of listings and ranking of no. 16 in
the China region on Tripadvisor.

In addition, Chong Hing Bank Centre and Fairview Court were
also recognised and awarded Outstanding Security Services —
Industrial/Commercial and Residential Property Awards in the
Hong Kong Island Best Security Services Awards 2021-2022,
organised by the Hong Kong Police Force.

The Group highly values feedback from customers in order to
maintain our top-quality service level. We stipulate standard-
complaint handling guidelines and procedures. Customers and
stakeholders are welcome to express their complaints, opinions
and suggestions via email and the telephone hotline listed on
our website. Moreover, in our hotel services, instant
communication tools have been set up in the hotel websites to
ensure that a swift response is in place. Designated personnel
are responsible for handling such received complaints, opinions
and suggestions, and performing appropriate follow-up actions
professionally according to the Group’s policies. We are glad to
say that, during the Reporting Period, no material complaint
was received.

BURFHRENEE > ROEERER
BESTEBIKRE  BREHERMEK
TERE  AEBERNABEREALR
fi 4% (% B i@ 18 K 3R B ° £ O0ne-Eight-
One > HAIABREIFHBENERIRME
BERTE RACHERBEEREN
AL UimEETHNERER - HFAERE
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TripAdvisor 18359 Travellers’ Choice —&
TIFERE URBBAEES TS
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BRIEIESI RIZF - HMIEIEER kFH
EF BB RPN EFRRGRE
Higsh - SR KREE - IS > AN
BIERRTS B o BIEE L E R E R E
TR UHEFREOE - SEAERER
REWEIKRS - ERREZ > LIRE
AEBNBRE XM RNEERNRET
B o HPIMRAEM > RWSHRE > LE
BESE AR -

-

BTHEXRITHEE =

BEEH--& =

JINVNYIA0Y I1VH0dHO0I ANY MIIAFY SSIANISNG

b
#
m
=
&
12
Iy
g
i

o



-

2202 140434 TYNNNY | Q3ILINIT INIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHO NIT =

()}

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT iR « HEREAE

It is inevitable that we will handle customers’ personal data in
our operations. The Group emphasises the security of customers’
personal data and supports a general policy of openness about
how we collect, use and disclose such information. To ensure
data privacy, all employees are required to fully comply with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance at all times when handling
customers’ personal data. In addition, we strongly recommend
that customers take time to carefully read our Privacy Policy
and Personal Information Collection Statement when submitting
their personal data and information. A document management
system with multiple access permissions was installed to
improve and enhance data protection and security to prevent
information leakage. By having different security levels, access
to information is restricted to only authorised users. According
to our Privacy Policy, we ensure that only authorised employees
are given permission to access hotel guests’ personal
information. All relevant documents containing sensitive
commercial data are used within the hotel property only.

To preserve all intellectual property rights, the Group has
implemented appropriate security safeguards and will not
infringe any third-party interests. We ensure that licensed
software is adopted in our business operations, which is
procured by approved suppliers. Employees are reminded not to
infringe copyrighted works, and to be careful when using
computer software. Installation of pirated or unauthorised

software on company computers is prohibited.

The major channel for promotions is our corporate and hotel
service website. Before uploading any information to our
company website, employees have to follow our stipulated policy
with proper review and approval. The Group prohibits the use of
false and misleading product descriptions on our website and is
committed to ensuring that all content posted on the website is
clear, updated and genuine.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
notice of non-compliance in relation to health and safety,
advertising, labelling, and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided. Due to the nature of our business, recall
procedures and recall rates are not applicable to us.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has a zero-tolerance policy on bribery, corruption and
money-laundering activities, and has set out clear guidelines for
directors and employees to adhere to. A related code of conduct
is delivered to employees when they first report for duty. For
instance, to prevent corruption, a tendering procedure has been
adopted for all projects: all tender documents are kept
confidential and access is restricted to the relevant parties. All
directors and employees are required to strictly follow the
relevant laws and regulations. The Group circulates anti-
corruption materials from time to time to ensure that the
directors and staff are fully aware of any updates and are in
compliance with related laws and regulations.

For the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any notice
of non-compliance for the Group or an employee with regard to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

Caring about the community and vulnerable groups is definitely
our responsibility. We provide support via donations and
organised activities. In early 2022, we all went through a hard
time during another Covid-19 peak. In view of the severity of
the Covid-19 pandemic situation suffered by residential care
homes for the elderly and persons with disabilities, we have
donated disinfectant products and protective equipment, such
as disposable protective wear, face shields, antigen test kits and
takeaway cutlery sets, to the Kowloon Women’s Welfare Club
Wong Cheung Kin Memorial Hostel for the Elderly, to encourage
them to fight the virus in unison.
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During the pandemic lull, we organised a corporate social
responsibility project named “2FfA% ~ MRS A" with a charity
organization, Aberdeen Kaifong Welfare Association (“AKA”), to
provide the vulnerable groups with health and hygiene protection
goods. In the project, our participated staff members helped for
packing and distributing fortune bags which containing hygiene
product and personal protective equipment for the elderly who
attending the activity. We also visited the home of singleton
elderly with deep cares to understand their needs and
difficulties. Epidemic prevention products and mattress hygiene
materials are delivered to them coupled with health, hygiene
and epidemic prevention information. We do our parts with
humble efforts and hope it is meaningful and helpful for the
frail elders living in community while embodying the spirit of
corporate social responsibility.

AWESE
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The Group believes that incorporating social participation and
contribution into our strategic development will nurture a sound
corporate culture and good practices within the Group, which
will benefit the whole community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE CONTENT
INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, ZAIRERIEEBHMESXZFAIBERATS
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to % FHiRBIMEE -+t MNEE > HER
the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock &&#R&E155]) %l o TREMIES IR E
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The following table provides ZE&ER(EE N —ARIEE RBRBEN
an overview on the general disclosures and key performance 3548 W& HIIIEIEBEEEIXB 2 EE
indicators (“KPI”) of various aspects under each subject area, E{IZHEEINREA ©

IRIF > HEMERATRSI

which are either cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of the

Review or supplementing the Review with additional

e
. . &
information. B
]
s
Description Reference Remarks E,’
it g% fht B
i

A. Environmental
RiR

Aspect Al: Emissions

BEAI : B

General Disclosure

Information on:
(a)  the policies; and

Emissions, Waste
Management, Water

JINVNYIA0Y I1VH0dHO0I ANY MIIAFY SSIANISNG

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that Management
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
—MRiRE ERBRRRZEREHN  mkRIMNES EERREEE  HN - BYEE.
EMHNEEEN KEERE
@ B R
b) EFHBETABEAFEZNEREERAGHNER o
KPI'AL.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
PR EIEIR ALY BER R R AR B B
KPIAL.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas  Emissions
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
PRSREIERAL2 Bi% (BE)1) RERRE (BE2) BERBHRE (UHEE) BN
R (NER) BE MUSESE( - BBEREHE)
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste management
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
PREMIERA13 FELASRENEE UEE) k (NER) BE MUEE BYER
S8 SERHE) o
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste management
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per 1;9
facility). =
PRREMIERALL FELRESRENEE EE) k (NER) BE MUEE BYER "
S8 SERHE) o ﬁ
KPI'AL.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to Emissions f
achieve them. i
PR EIERALS WP IR E B R R A DL B ZFREA S 5 o B -
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Waste management L;
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and ::
steps taken to achieve them. g
PRREMIERALE HREBEEERESRENNGE  RERFEIINAEE  BYEE #

BRAENELEERARRNTE -
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BES

Description

fit

Remarks

fit

Reference
2%

A. Environmental (Continued)

i E)

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA : BiRHERH

General Disclosure
—RiEE

KPI A2.1
RAREMIRIZ ALY

KPI A2.2

RS AARIEIRAL
KPI A2.3

RSREMIERALS

KPI A2.4

RS EMIERALA

KPI A2.5

RS EAMIEIRALS

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
BENERER (BIEER  KREMBEMR) HEBEE o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.

per unit of production volume, per facility).

RENADNERR/FEEER (E - fah) &2 (U

TETREHE) KEE (MUSESSQ  BIEREHE) ©

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of

production volume, per facility).

BREKERZE MUSESEN « BIERMS)

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps

taken to achieve them.

HHAET AR E RN @ B R R AEE

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water

that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps

taken to achieve them.

HEHKEUER KR LA R » MU RFTET LMk
BRRAZIELEEEMFRNTER o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

BRI

A EEMRNEE U E) Kk (NEH
ik o

VBEEE

Use of resources

ERER

Energy saving

HiAE
Water management

KRERE

Energy saving
HiAE

We encounter no issue in
sourcing water that is fit
for our purpose.
BMEERERKREA
b EAE R

We do not generate
significant packaging
material waste in our
operations.
BMMERIL RS RO
YRR o

Water management

KRERE

N/A

TER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3  RERXAER

General Disclosure

—MRiKE
KPI A3.1
AR ERIRIR A3

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

BB TAHRERAAERERERF ZNER °
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

HRER EHHRERRAE RN EAY ERERNEERR
[EZ

Protecting the Environment

RiEIRIR

Protecting the Environment

ReEIRIR

AspectM C/imaz‘e Change

General Dlsclosure

—MiKE
KPI Ad.1
R IRIR AL

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.

A REHES RIS B TAEE X ENEARIZIEH
EEMECE -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
HRERRIEEHETAELEN ENEAREHERSE
RFELTTE) o

Climate change

RIEE(E

Climate change

RIEE(E




Description
fiidt

Reference

2%

Remarks
fast

B. Social
e

Employment and Labour Practices

ERREIER

Aspect B1: Employment
EEBI : EfE

General Disclosure

Information on:

Recruitment and

(a)  the policies; and Employment
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—RRRE BREGHREE  BERSH  TERE - BE - TEHE .  BEKER
%7ib « RERUREMFBEREFN
@ BER R
b) EFHETABEARENEREERAGHNER o
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, Recruitment and
full- or part- time), age group and geographical region. Employment
PR RAIE1E 1.1 BER S BEER ME2BERE)  SFRARNRMERNN  BEKER
EE#2E -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical  Recruitment and
region. Employment
PR A IE1EB1.2 2R ERAR KRB DHEERALE o Rk B
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB: REHZS
General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
—MRiRE BRREZE2TFRERFREESRCHEMTEN BEHR2
@ BRR
b) BFRETABEARENEMERRAGHNER
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of ~ Health and Safety
the past three years including the reporting year.
AR5 1S B2.1 BE=F (BEEREE) SFRTUTHNABRKILE BEHR2
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RS IE1EB2.2 HATBIEATERE BEHR2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
SR IEIEB2.3 WP E R ER R 2R URAERRTRER BEHR2

Fike

—
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Description
fidt

Reference Remarks
2% fast

B. Social (Continued)
e @
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

ERREIEHRE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EEB3 : FRRIE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—RRRE BRAETHESFE1T T EMR AR Hi Ked% AR ATEER o Hatig
JaE o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee

category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
AR IEE 83,1 B REEER NEREEE « FREEE) 2193
BEBALL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

Development and training
EEREE]
Development and training
EEREE]

Development and training

AR IEIEB3.2 BRI REEERES  SREETHZNTFIIRE o BREIE
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BEBY | BT A
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—MRiRE BRAMIEE T a5am5Th HIZR
(A BER;R
b  BFERTAREATZZNEMARRRGINER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Employment
avoid child and forced labour.
AR R 1E B4 R R BRI A MBS E T KBS T - HTER
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Employment
discovered.
R IEIE B2 HWIEEIRER B REHIRE B RTS8 o HIZR



Description
fiidt

Reference

2%

Remarks
fast

B. Social (Continued)

#HE ()

Operating Practices

EEED

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

BEBS  HERERE

General Disclosure

—RIRE
KPI B5.1
R B IS IE B5.1
KPI B5.2
R A 512 B5.2
KPI B5.3
R A 512 85.3
KPI B5.4
AR ISIZB5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

BIRMHEEMNIRIE R 8RR o

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
BRI SR HERSE o

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
EHEMERHERNED > RERTERIEG RN
B URBRBHNRITRERRE o

Description of practices used to identify environmental and
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

EHEMER HEESERENIRE RS RRAER » )L
REFARTRERRE o

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
ERERERRERRESSBRRERKRENEL » UKk
BRI TRER A

Supply chain management

HFEsREIR
Supply chain management
HFEsREIR

Supply chain management

ftresaEE

Supply chain management

ftresaEE

Supply chain management

ftresaEE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

JBEB6 | EmET

General Disclosure

— e

KPI B6.1

RS AR5 B6.1
KPI B6.2

RS RANIE1R B6.2
KPI B6.3

RS RANIE1RB6.3

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

BERFREERTRENRERZS  BS EERLESE

VY2 Gapn:

@ BRR

b) BFRETABEARENEMARRAGHNER

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls

for safety and health reasons.

BEYEBERERAYTRZ2AREEAMERKNE S

tE o

Number of products and service related complaints received

and how they are dealt with.

BRERRERRBENRFHREUREHTE o

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

Wik EEER RENREREMNOE

Product and service
responsibility

N/A

FEH

Product and service
responsibility
EmEE

Product and service
responsibility

Emaft

There were no recalls

concerning the provision.

REBETHERAKIE

A R EHR o

There were no material

complaints received
during the reporting
period.

REBTHERAKIE

KRB o
Intellectual property
rights are immaterial
the Group

KB ERH R REAH

ERIEEATE -
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Description
fidt

Reference
2%

Remarks
fast

B. Social (Continued)

e (§)

Operating Practices (Continued)

ZIEEM (8)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility (Continued)

[EEB6 : EmEfE (B)

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product and service Recall procedures are
procedures. responsibility not applicable among
the Group
AR EMIE2B6.4 EhEERTEERERLCUWER o EmAfE BEEFARMNERL
REHMTE -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,  Product and service
and how they are implemented and monitored. responsibility
AR E12B6.5 HIUHEE ERRERAEEER » URERRTRERA L EREE
Aspect B7: Anti- corruption
BEB: RES
General Disclosure Information on:
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—MRiRE BRADLLEARE » 30K~ EEEROLRERAY R&5
(A BER;R
b  BFERTAREATZZNHEMARRRGINER
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  Anti-corruption
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
AR5 1E 871 RERAAHETASHESRELEBENESHAZE RES
O EEEN
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
AR IE1E87.2 WP EE R R RIER » URERRITRERAE o K&
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-corruption
and staff.
A IEIEB7.3 HRREERETRENRESE K&
Community
#HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
EEBS : HERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs Giving back to the
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure community
its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
—MRiRE BRUHE2ERTREEMTIHEEENRGHER LTS  CEHE
BERHERAEMNECE o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Giving back to the
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). community
RS X512 881 EAEHEEMAS RESE FIEX BE N [EBEHE
BA) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Giving back to the
community
RS 1515 8S.2 HEIHEMBHEER (NEERRRE) o ElEEH @
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,
Assoc. AIA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, GBMm, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, pnp, BBs, J.P.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric, cAAust), CPA (Practising), CFE

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

(F/E - EFELERITHAEE)
(B ZE FARASTE)
FREESLE
ERMITES
SFERER S AE BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRALC,
Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD
BIEMITES
BRRE 18t GoMm, GBS, 0BE, LLB (HK), J.P.
EiRREE
EBSE1E T P, 8BS, P
BRERAN ST A msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)
BB RRFCAE cAAust), CPA (Practising), CFE
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As at 16 March 2023 RZEZ=£=A+xH
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)

Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Ms. Tin Siu Kuen (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston
Mr. Lee Wai Hung
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As at 16 March 2023 RZZEZ=£=F+7"H

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim

Ms. Tin Siu Kuen
Mr. Wu Ka Wan

Ms. Lau Wan Ching

Mr. Liu Kwun Bo, Darryl

Mr. Liu Chak Hung, Adrian

Mr. Liu Kwun Hung, Tiger

Head of Finance Management
and Information Technology

Head of Property Development

Head of Projects and Facilities
Management

Head of Human Resources
Head of Property Management

Head of Leasing and Asset
Management

Director, The Rockpool Project
(Team Lead) & Hospitality
Management (F&B
Team Lead)

Director, Leasing Management
& Hospitality Management
(Operation)

Director, Mainland China &
Overseas Projects
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CORPORATE INFORMATION ABE#

As at 16 March 2023 #Z

MANAGERS

Mr. Tam King Hung, Peter

Ms.
Ms.

Ms.

Mr.

Mr.

Cavior Liu
Wong Yuk Man

Cheng Suet Kiu

Tsang Wai Ka, Ricky

Leung Kin Pong

. Hui Wing Kit

Z_=f=A+A

Deputy Head of Projects and

Facilities Management
Senior Operation Manager
Senior Accounting Manager

Manager of Finance
Management and
Information Technology

Maintenance Manager
Project Manager

Accounting Manager
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As at 16 March 2023 RZE-=&=A+"H
SOLICITORS

Deacons

Gallant

P.C. Woo & Co.

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

BANKERS
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank, Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
23rd Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Email: info@Ichi.com.hk
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As at 16 March 2023 RZEZ=£=A+xH

GUANGZHOU OFFICE

18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road

Yue Xiu District

Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071

Email: guangzhou@Ichi.com.cn

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC
Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

Email: shanghai@Ichi.com.cn

FOSHAN NANHAI OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road
Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town
Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218

Email: foshan@Ichi.com.cn

FOSHAN SANSHUI OFFICE
Room 1638-1639, Block 3, Sanshui Square

9 Zhangbian Road, Xi Nan Street
Sanshui District, Foshan
Guandong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 8778 6929

Email: foshan@Ichi.com.cn
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAGR[N

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 83, is the Chairman of the Board of the Company since 9
August 2017. Mr. Liu has been serving as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 26
February 2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive Director of the
Company since its incorporation in 1970. Mr. Liu also serves as
the Chairman of Executive Management Committee and
Nomination Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu, who was educated in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, is also a director of a
number of other companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any
other public listed companies in the previous three years. Mr.
Liu is the uncle of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 56, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
since 1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Liu holds a
Master degree in Economics from the University of London,
specialising in Finance and Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu
oversees the Company’s strategic development, project
implementation and business operations. Mr. Liu also served as
the Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee, a
member of the Executive Management Committee as well as
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any
other public listed companies in the last three years. Mr. Liu is
a nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAER[N

MR. LEE WAI HUNG
LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 60, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Management Committee
as well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Law degree, a Master of
Business Administration degree and Postgraduate Diploma in
Construction and Real Estate. He is also a fellow of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Before joining the Company, Mr. Lee had worked
in an international accounting firm for over six years. Mr. Lee
has over thirty years of experience in corporate finance and
accounting. Mr. Lee joined the Company in 1992 and was
appointed as director in 1994. Mr. Lee is in charge of the
Company’s finance and secretarial matters. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Lee did not hold any directorship in any other public
listed companies in the last three years.
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MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect,
A.P. (Architect), MHKIloD

aged 60, served as Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 2011 and he is now serving as a member of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies degree on Urban
and Regional Planning and a Master of Architecture degree. He
is an Authorized Person under the Buildings Ordinance, a
Registered Architect under the Architects Registration
Ordinance, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects,
a corporate member of Royal Institute of British Architects, an
associate member of Royal Australian Institute of Architects, a
member of Royal Architectural Institute of Canada and an
associate member of American Institute of Architects. Mr. Kho
was an Executive Committee of the University of Waterloo
Alumni Association and a Committee Member of the University
of Manitoba Alumni Association from 1989 to 1990. During the
year from 1997 to 2003, he was a Director and Council Member
of the Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students Association Limited.
Mr. Kho is also a Committee Member of the Professional
Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations
since 2009. Furthermore, Mr. Kho is appointed as an Executive
Committee Member of Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of
Commerce and Director of Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of
Commerce Education Fund Limited in 2017. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Kho did not hold any directorship in any other public
listed companies in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAER[N

DR. THE HON. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES

GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

aged 73, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 1999 and he is now serving
as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is a
practising solicitor and the Senior Consultant of Messrs. P.C.
Woo & Co. after serving as its Senior Partner and Consultant
from 1994 to January 2023. Dr. Cheng was a member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is a non-official member
of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region since 1st July 2022. Dr. Cheng was the Founder
Chairman of the Insurance Authority and the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President of International
Alliance of Practising Lawyers. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Dr. Cheng currently holds directorship in The
Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, K. Wah
International Holdings Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited,
Tian An China Investments Company Limited and Towngas
Smart Energy Company Limited, all being public listed
companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng’s other directorship in
public listed companies in the last three years includes China
Mobile Limited and China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Cheng did not hold any
directorship, whether in Hong Kong or overseas, in any other
public listed companies in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 83, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also serves as a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Au
studied Law in Sydney and London respectively. He was
admitted as a solicitor in England in 1975 and in Hong Kong in
1976. He is a sole proprietor of Arthur Au & Co., a firm of
solicitors established since 1979. Mr. Au is a Notary Public and
was a member of the Notary Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel.
He is also a School Management Committee Member of the
Clementi Secondary School. He now serves as legal adviser to
the Association of Hong Kong Nursing Staff (previously named
as the Association of Government Nursing Staff) and The New
Territories North District Manufacturers Association of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Au is an active Rotarian, he was a District
Governor of Rotary International District 3450 (Hong Kong/
Macao/Mongolia) in 1990-1991. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Au did not hold any directorship in any other public listed
company in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAER[N

DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN

PhD, BBS, J.P.

aged 56, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he is serving as a
member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Dr. Ma is currently the Vice Chairman of Carrianna
Group Holdings Company Limited, a public company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive
experience in the catering industry, as well as property
management and development. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2003 and a Honorary
Doctorate of Philosophy by Morrison University in 2004. As for
the community service, Dr. Ma was the Chairman of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals for the year 2002. He is a member of Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals Advisory Board, the Standing
Committee of Shenzhen Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and the Chief President of Hong Kong
Chamber of Commerce, Qianhai. He also serves as the Vice
Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations, Vice President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber
of Commerce and the Executive Director of China Overseas
Friendship Association. On 1 July 2015, Dr. Ma was appointed
to Justices of the Peace by The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Ma
did not hold any directorship in any other public listed
companies in the last three years.
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MR. CHENG YUK WO
Msc (Econ), BA (Hons), CPA (Canada), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

aged 62, was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 7 March 2014 and he is now serving as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science (Economics)
degree in Accounting and Finance from London School of
Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting from University of Kent, England. He is a Fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has
over 20 years’ of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate
advisory services. Mr. Cheng is currently an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited,
CSI Properties Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited, Miricor Enterprises Holdings
Limited, Somerley Capital Holdings Limited, Kidsland
International Holdings Limited and China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited (appointed on 1 January 2022), all of the
abovementioned companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Cheng was also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited and C.P.
Pokphand Co. Limited, companies formerly listed on the Stock
Exchange which were privatised on 30 September 2021, 9 June
2021 and 18 January 2022 respectively. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorship in any other
public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three
years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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MR. TONG TSUN SUM, ERIC

CA (Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

aged 52, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit and the nomination
committee of the Company in March 2018. He obtained a
Bachelor of Economics from University of Sydney, Australia, a
Master of Commerce in Professional Accounting from Macquarie
University, Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia, Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Institute of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand. He is also a
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, the Governance Institute of Australia and the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Tong did not hold any directorship in any other
public listed company in the last three years.
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MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, FCPA, MAEB

aged 55, Head of Finance Management and Information
Technology. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant, holding
Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over thirty
years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk joined
the Company in 1995.

MS. EVA LIU
MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 59, Head of Property Development. Ms. Liu is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in Architecture
from the University of Cambridge, and Property Valuation And
Law from the City University of London. She was in architectural
practice in England before joining the Company in 1999. She is
the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KIM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 54, Head of Projects and Facilities Management. Mr. Jan
joined the Company in 2008. Mr. Jan is a professional engineer
with over twenty years of construction and project management
experience representing Clients, Consultants and Contractors on
both private sector and government funded projects in China,
Hong Kong and Macau.

MS. TIN SIU KUEN

aged 56, Head of Human Resources. Ms. Tin holds a Master
Degree in Human Resources Management of Macquarie
University, Australia and has over twenty years of experience in
human resources management in the banking sector. Ms. Tin
joined the Company in 2018.

MR. WU KA WAN

aged 54, Head of Property Management. Mr. Wu holds a Master
Degree in Housing Management of The University of Hong Kong
and has almost thirty years of experience in property
management. Mr. Wu has joined the Company in 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAER[N

MS. LAU WAN CHING

PgD in FM & RE, MRICS

aged 57, Head of Leasing and Asset Management. Ms. Lau is a
professional surveyor, holding Postgraduate Diploma in Facilities
Management and in Real Estate. She is also a professional
member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lau
joined the Company in 2021 and has thirty years of experience
in asset management, leasing/marketing and portfolio
management of real estate in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
regional markets. She has handled numerous of large scale
mixed-use property development projects for HK listed property
developers and international property funds in Shanghai,
Beijing, Shenzhen and Hong Kong. In addition, Ms. Lau has
extensive experience in portfolio and property management of
investment properties.

MR. LIU KWUN BO, DARRYL

aged 30, Director, The Rockpool Project (Team Lead) and
Hospitality Management (F&B Team Lead). Mr. Liu holds a BBA
in Business Management from Hult International Business
School, London . Mr. Liu joined the Company in 2016. He is a
grandson of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

MR. LIU CHAK HUNG, ADRIAN

aged 28, Director, Leasing Management and Hospitality
Management (Operation). Mr. Liu, who was educated in Canada
and the United Kingdom, joined the Company in 2016. He is a
grandson of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

MR. LIU KWUN HUNG, TIGER
aged 25, Director, Mainland China and Overseas Projects. Mr.
Liu holds a Bachelor of Science degree with First Class Honours
in Mathematics with Business Management from Queen Mary
University of London. Mr. Liu joined the Company in 2019. He
is a grandson of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
REBEARGRES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the
year 2023 (“AGM”) will be held on Thursday, 25 May 2023 at
11:00 a.m. The meeting will be held in a hybrid format which
includes an online meeting and a physical meeting at 27th
Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The AGM will be held in a hybrid format which includes an
online meeting and a physical meeting. Shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM are allowed to join by way of
electronic means (Note 1) pursuant to Article 69 of the Articles
of Association of the Company. Seating at the AGM venue in
Chong Hing Bank Centre will be in limited capacity and the
Company may limit the number of attendees at the AGM as may
be necessary to avoid over-crowding. No gifts, food or beverages
will be provided at the AGM. Shareholders should refer to
Circular attached for details.

The AGM will be convened for the following purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the audited consolidated financial
statements together with reports of the directors and of the
auditor of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022.

2. To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of
HK$0.20 per share for the year ended 31 December 2022
(““2022 Final Dividend™).

3. To re-elect (a) Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher and (b) Mr.
Cheng Yuk Wo as directors of the Company.

4. To fix the directors’ remuneration for the year ending 31
December 2023.

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
REBEARGRES

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or
without modifications the following ordinary resolutions:

6. “THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as defined in paragraph (c) of this resolution) of all
the powers of the Company to buy-back shares of the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (‘“‘Stock Exchange’’) or on any other stock
exchange on which the shares of the Company may
be listed and which is recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock
Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other
stock exchange (as applicable) as amended from time
to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate number of shares of the Company
which the Company is authorised to buy back
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of passing of
this resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and
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7.

(c)

for the purpose of this resolution,

““Relevant Period”” means the period from the passing
of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as defined in paragraph (d) of this resolution) of all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with additional shares of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options (including
bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and any securities
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible
into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exercise of such power(s) during or after
the end of the Relevant Period, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

(c)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
REBEARGRES

(b)

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes
and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for
or are convertible into shares of the Company) which
would or might require the exercise of such power
after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate number of shares allotted, issued and
dealt with or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted, issued and dealt with (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the directors of
the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph
(a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights
Issue (as defined in paragraph (d) of this resolution);
(ii) the exercise of any rights of subscription or
conversion under any warrants, bonds, debentures,
notes and any securities of the Company which carry
rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of
the Company; (iii) an issue of shares of the Company
upon the exercise of the subscription rights attaching
to any options granted under any share option scheme
adopted by the Company; (iv) an issue of shares as
scrip dividends or similar arrangement providing for
the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of
a dividend on shares of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company from
time to time; or (v) specific authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting,
shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of
passing of this resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and
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(d)

for the purpose of this resolution,

““Relevant Period”” means the period from the passing
of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company; or

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue’’ means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to the
holders of shares or any class of shares of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares as at
that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange
in, any territory applicable to the Company).”

(d)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
REBEARGRES

“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 6 and
7 set out in the notice convening this meeting being
passed, the general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company to exercise the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to
Ordinary Resolution No. 7 set out in the notice convening
this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition
thereto of an amount representing the aggregate number of
shares of the Company bought back by the Company under
the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No.
6 set out in the notice convening this meeting, provided
that such extended amount of shares so bought back shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued shares
of the Company as at the date of passing of this
resolution.”

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

Liu Lit Chi

Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14 April 2023
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Notes:

5.

The dedicated online platform http://meetings.computershare.com/LchiAGM2023 (the
“Platform”) will be opened for Registered Shareholders and Non-registered Shareholders to
log in 45 minutes prior to the commencement of the AGM. The Platform can be accessed
from any location with internet connection by a smart phone, tablet device or computer.
Shareholders should allow ample time to check into the Platform to complete the related
procedures and remain logged in until the commencement of and during the AGM. Our
“Online Meeting User Guide” will be available on the Company’s website www.lchi.com.hk
around one week before the AGM to guide Shareholders through the login process.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A member who is the holder of
two or more shares may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the
Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof. The form of
proxy is published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at www.Ichi.com.hk. The completion and return of the
proxy form shall not preclude Shareholders from attending and voting at the AGM (or any
adjournment thereof) if they so wish.

Record dates of entitlements of the members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at
the AGM to be held on Thursday, 25 May 2023, whose name should be recorded in
the Company’s shareholders book on Thursday, 25 May 2023. The Register of
Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 22 May 2023 to Thursday, 25
May 2023, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
AGM, all share certificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or
separately must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2023.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are qualified for the 2022 Final
Dividend, whose name should be recorded in the Company’s shareholders book on
Monday, 5 June 2023. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 1 June 2023 to Monday, 5 June 2023, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, all share certificates with completed transfer forms
either overleaf or separately must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712—1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May 2023.

The registration for attending the AGM will start at 10:15 a.m. on Thursday, 25 May 2023.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
REBEARGRES

6. The Chinese translation of this notice is for reference only, and in case of any inconsistency,
the English version shall prevail.

7. If a Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above is hoisted or a Black Rainstorm Warning Signal is in force
at or at any time after 8:00 a.m. on the date of the meeting, the meeting will be postponed
or adjourned. The Company will post an announcement on the Company website
(www.lchi.com.hk) and HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk) to notify shareholders of the
date, time and place of the rescheduled meeting.

The meeting will be held as scheduled when an Amber or a Red Rainstorm Warning Signal is
in force. Shareholders should decide on their own whether they would attend the meeting
under bad weather condition bearing in mind their own situations.

8. A circular containing further information on the proposals regarding the (i) re-election of the
directors of the Company, (ii) general mandates for the buy back and issue of shares of the
Company and (iii) Precautionary Measures for the Annual General Meeting will be sent to
shareholders today along with the Company’s 2022 Annual Report.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive Directors: Mr. Liu
Lit Chi (Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy
Managing Director) and Mr. Lee Wai Hung; Non-executive Director: Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher;
and Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen,
Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric.
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2,000
29/7/2022 7.09 2,684
31/8/2022 7.10 2,688
30/9/2022 6.70 2,537 - e
31/10/2022 6.65 2518 JHEEBEHHAER -
= = = — ~ o~ o~ ~ at
30/11/2022 6.90 2,612 I HHHEHEHHHEH :
S H HHEHHBHE 2
30/12/2022 7.25 2,745 °

BELZEFT--&° |



LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART
PRIEEEBIERBE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E-E-"H+_"F=+—HILEFE

ALBA HOLDINGS LIMITED LIU’S HOLDINGS LIMITED

EREEARAH

OTHER INVESTORS

EHEEEFRAF Hthig & &

21.49% 43.56%

*LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED
ERIEEEFRAT

Hotel Business
TBIEERS

Trading & Manufacturing
ESRNE

Property Development
MEBRR

Property Management
MEER

Overseas Investment
BIMEE

Property Investment
MERE

y
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o

Chong Hing Bank Centre
BIERSRITRIL

100%

The Rockpool
Ay

100%

Fairview Court
]

100%

Chong Hing Square
e ]

100%

Chong Hing
Finance Center
Shanghai
LisgIBERP O

100%

Japan Higashi
Matsuyama
Logistic Centre
BARBRYIRPC

50%

Japan Kakegawa
Logistic Centre
B#EN PR

50%

Japan Hadano

Logistic Centre
BARFRAPC

50%

Japan Chitose
Logistic Centre
BATFERIRPC

50%

Australia Brishane
Office Building
SN RETHER A KIS

15%

Australia Sydney
Office Building

BRI AKRE

12.5%

*Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
HREASEMSRSMERAR LT

The Grand Riviera
Foshan Nanhai
ZiisNTEE

(BBLLETS)

90%

Elegance Garden
Foshan Sanshui

EFREAE
(BhLL=2K)

90%

Liu Chong Hing
Property Management
& Agency Limited
EREYEEERRE
ARAR

100%

Guangzhou Wealth Good
Property Management
Company Limited
M HF
MEEEARAT

100%

Maanshan Gaoke
Magnetic Material
Company Limited

BRLEEEMERR

BRAR

51.54%

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel
& Serviced Residences

ONE-EIGHT-ONESEE
RIRBRIEE
(Hong Kong &3#)

100%

Hanting
Express-Guangzhou
Yue Xiu Pan Fu
SRRERERMN S RIEE
(China HE)

100%

Kimpton Kitalay

Samui
(Thailand Z=E)

100%



SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP F=&£EBEXEY XX

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-E-"F+-F=1+—HILEE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
FEEEEZ B EEE BRFEEEE
i MEkED (FHER) (FHR) RERE

Investment properties
Hong Kong:

1. Chong Hing Bank Centre 100% 7,100 110,000 0
24 Des Voeux Road Central
BIERITHIL
fEEEE 2457

o
o
X
)
o
2
=
lul
>
4
o
w
I
>
a
m
=
o
-
o
m
a
]
=
o
x
s
=]
o
4
1]
o
&
]
b
o
xE

2. The Rockpool 100% 32,400 42,000 C/P
402—-404 Des Voeux Road West
BB
EEBIE TR 402-404 3%

3. Fairview Court 100% 30,000 26,000 R/P
94 Repulse Bay Road
EEE
BIKEE R

4. The Westwood 10% - 221,900 C/P
8 Belcher’s Street
AER
BEEERSR

399,900

Kowloon and New Territories:
NEERAE

5. Chong Hing Square 100% 12,300 182,000 G
601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
BB B
A TRBE 60157

6. Bonsun Industrial Building 100% 18,000 8,200 I/P
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
BRIXAE
87D IH1E 364-366 5%

7. Chatham Place 10% - 61,000 C/P
388 Chatham Road North, Hung Hom
FiflE5
TR BB 16 388 57

y

E@Eﬂ%#@ﬁlﬁﬂg

251,200

BEEF-_—&= |
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE_Z-"#+_A=+—HILEE

AEBFEWMESR

Description

it

Interest in
the property
attributable
to the Group

FEEELZ
MEEE

Approximate
site area
(sq. ft.)

B BRERE
(FHR)

Total gross
floor area

(sg. ft.)
BRFEEEE
(FAR)

Existing use

RERE

Investment properties
People’s Republic of China:
HEAREFE

8. Chong Hing Finance Center
No. 288 Nanjing Road West
Huang Pu District
Shanghai
BIE &R
L&

HHEE
P 288 5%

9. The Grand Riviera
West of Luocun
Luocun Social Management Office
Shishan Town
Nanhai District
Foshan
B NTEE
FLlh
fEE
MUEBNUTEEER
Y7 & ER

100%

90%

55,000

103,000
413,000

180,000

182,000
73,000

= @2

w O

951,000

Hotel land and building
BELHRIEF
Hong Kong:

10.0NE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel &
Serviced Residences
181-183 Connaught Road West
ONE-EIGHT-ONE /& & R ERF T EE
FEEiETG181-183 5%

Thailand:
.

11.Kimpton Kitalay Samui
10/79 Moo 5, Bophut, Koh Samui,
Surat Thani 84320, Thailand
10/79 Moo 5, Bophut, BF15 &,
Surat Thani 84320, =&

100%

100%

10,800

318,000

184,000

230,000




For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-E-"F+-F=1+—HILEE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area

Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use

FEEEEZ B EEE BRFEEEE
i MEkED (FHER) (FHR) RERE
Investment properties (Joint Ventures)
RENE (GELE)
Japan:

A%

12 Higashi Matsuyama Logistics Centre 50% 102,800 193,600 W
296-1, 294-1, 301-2, 301-1, 300-1,
299-1, 302-1, 295-1,
Oaza Shingo, Higashi Matsuyama-shi,
Saitama Prefecture
R
15 FBABRHALLI 5 Oaza Shingo,
296-1, 294-1, 301-2, 301-1, 300-1, 2991, 302-1,
295-1

o
o
X
)
o
2
=
lul
>
4
o
w
I
>
a
m
=
o
-
o
m
a
]
=
o
x
s
=]
o
4
1]
o
&
]
b
o
xE

13.Kakegawa Logistics Centre 50% 425,600 456,000 W
102, Shobugaike, Kakewawa-shi, Shizuoka
Prefecture
£ PR
B ERH) 1T Shobugaike 10255

14.Hadano Logistics Centre 50% 53,700 104,000 W
548-1, Aza Haihata, Soya, Hadano-Shi, Kanagawa
Prefecture
e LY bilaaln
1% || B2 =B h Soya, Aza Haihata, 5481

15.Chitose Logistics Centre 50% 533,900 212,700 W
1007-281, lzumisawa, Chitose—shi, Hokkaido
TR
IEBEF & lzumisawa, 1007-281

966,300

Australia
EW

16.310 Ann Street, Brisbane QLD 4000, Australia 15% 24,000 196,400
310 Ann Street, #2573 QLD 4000, 2 1,200

@ =

17.309 & 321 Kent Street, Sydney, NSW, Australia 12.5% 60,000 493,300
309 & 321 Kent Street, &E, &l 14,500

705,400

@ @

y

E@Eﬂ%#@ﬁh?ﬂg

BEEF-_—&= |
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE_Z-"#+_A=+—HILEE

AEBFEWMESR

Interest in

the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area

Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use Status
FEEEGZ B ETE BEZEEER

it MERES (FBR) (FAR) HREE  IiEEE

Properties under development

BREAYE

Hong Kong:

18.  Various Lots in D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a n/a  Planning
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po iR @R ER
KIETAR
29553 ER

People’s Republic of China:

hEA RRAE .

19. Elegance Garden 90% 362,300 1,170,000 R Construction in progress
Plot No.2, Nan Ce, Jianshe Dadao 14,000 C HIgfTH
Xinan Jiedao, Sanshui Qu 321,000 P
Foshan
HERE
lm=k&E
B R AERE AR

1,505,000
C=Commercial 75 H=Hotel J&/& |=Industrial T P=Car Park Efi  R=Residential £  0=O0ffice EFi&

S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities &Fr &L S W=Warehouse &&



SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION BRR & ¥}

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 16 March 2023

BBAER=-S-_=£=A+,H

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
£ FNU

Interim Results
for six-month ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZE-__FXB=1+HIL
NMER Z RS
Annual Results
for year ended 31 December 2022

BE_Z__S+"A=+—HIL
FEZE2EHEE

Announced on 11 August 2022
BERZZZZFENB+—BLM
Announced on 16 March 2023

ERZZE_=F=A+/"HAM

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
RERXE

Annual General Meeting

RRBEXRSG

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

EXIB P X REHIR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements
to attend and vote at the 2023 Annual
General Meeting)

HiEERMBRELTTFE

To be held on 25 May 2023
BRZE=FHAZ+HBET

4:30 pm on 19 May 2023
“EC=FHEATNAHTFOEE=1+5

From 22 May 2023 to 25 May 2023
(both days inclusive)

B =HFFR+_HEZ_=FHA"+AH

(REBERYUE_ZS"_=%F (BEMXEEEA)
REREFAERIEE)
CASH DIVIDENDS
RERS
Interim cash dividend HK$0.18 per share
FHRIRER S BRAO0.187T
Paid on 19 September 2022
X {tHEA “E2FAB+AH
Proposed final cash dividend HK$0.20 per Share
BRIRKRIAIRER R FET0.207T
Payable on 12 June 2023
XfTEEA —E2T=%,"A+IH

Ex-dividend date of final dividend
REARR EPREH

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

EXBP XHREHR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining
entitlements to receive
the final dividend)

HIEWHER KB P B FE
(FEEB BRI E)

30 May 2023

_E_=HHR=+H

4:30 pm on 31 May 2023
_EC=FIA=+—HBHTFEK=+%H

From 1 June 2023 to 5 June 2023
(both days inclusive)

_E_=FSA—HEZE”_=F;"AfH
(BEEMXEIEEA)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION ERE

Share Registrars and transfer office Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

-
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RIS RERRE

Share listing

AR e

Stock Code

AR 5%

Board ot

BHEE(

No. of issued ordinary share
BEITEBRRNEE
Company’s e-mail address
NEEE MU

Investors and Shareholders contact

REE MRS

183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BEBAPRESTLARAT
BEREBTFERKER—/\=5%
RO+ tEiE—t——EFE—t—75

The Company'’s shares are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
KRABIRERBEBHERZMARAE
BHEEE

00194

00194

2,000 shares
2,000 fg

378,583,440 shares
378,583,4408%

info@Ichi.com.hk
info@Ichi.com.hk

Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung/Ms. Hilda Chan
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7779

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Website: http://www.Ichi.com.hk

B ERERLE TRES/)VE
BAEHEP _THRRIERITR O+ =18
5% - (852) 2983 7779
f8H : (852) 2983 7723
48E : http://www.Ichi.com.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT % i #Z #h Rk &

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 164 to 284, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

=

=2

HERRTERRATRR

(REBZMAILZBRAE)

BER

A% BEm (LU 578 T3ffI)) BB/ IIE
REIAZE284AENERIEEEFRA
B (U T8 &A1) REMBEAR (X
T4 TEEE)) NEaMBERE > 1L
BRREEN_EZ2F+ZA=1+—
ARNGEMBRAREBEZALEE
MiREHRmnR GREBRnkEME2EE
mRGERDZEIRNGESHERE
xo URGEMBRERME  SFXE
BEHECRIE -

AR AERAMBRRERES
R YA G ERR(E BV RS ER)
EEMPetRIRT SEER_-F
T+ AZ=+T—HBNREMBRR
RBEZAILFENGRESMHRERER
BREME > LEBREB(QEEH)
H it o

ERNE®
HPIERBEEBESMAERHBH(ER
wEt R BITES - HAIEZFENT
AENEEEAERKRS ZHBEMME R
BUBHRRAENESE BOPFE—D
it - IRIFFR G EIAGEGH(ER
gatemEErRl) (TR PR - &
@i S&EE > LERBTTAR
HithFEXEREE - HAIEIE > BAIFR
ESNEREEREREE A
MBS RIEMER -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter as they represented 60% of the Group’s total
assets, combined with the judgements associated with
determining the fair value. As disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, the investment properties are
located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The carrying amounts of investment properties
amounted to HK$9,480,355,000 as at 31 December 2022.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuations performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (“Valuer”). Details of the valuation
techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. The
valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison method
and income capitalisation method, which are dependent on
certain key inputs and assumptions in respect of prevailing
market conditions such as unit sale rate, reversion yield and
monthly market rent.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

e  Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process,
significant assumptions and critical judgement of the
Valuer to assess if the adopted approaches are consistent
with relevant accounting requirements and industry norms;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation models
used based on our knowledge of the property markets in
Hong Kong and the PRC; and

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs, including
unit sale rate, reversion yield and monthly market rent by
comparing them against market data and entity-specific
information such as rental income and tenancy summary,
on a sample basis.

P E:tFIR
HEETEFEESRERMNEEHE
RBAHTRREMHERRNEARAE
ENEH GEFHEEHMEAEE
REMBRRRE AT RRETRER -
HAFERELEERREHEBHER -

REMEMGE
BRI EYE L EARRBRSEAEE
ThHEREE SEEEEEG% EF
HETATEEERNLE - HNGE
MFEMRMIE 14FTINE » REWEMUR
EBRPEAREMBE (U TERE H
B - BEYWENR_S__F+_A
=+—BHrRE{EAA9,480,355,000
775 o

AT S FEIRRIGEAFE > AEEN
REMEDIRBIL S EREEGEN (U
T S8 ML ER) TP A T EES
AR FRIEAMMERMNEEZ@MALE
HBHNGEMBHRRMEELL - {HETD
REBEZEBEEIRKBERNEETE
HEARBITHHBEENETEERA
BB R Re% 0 B0 B (L 8H & E4% > FAHA
BHEHRERSATERESE °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT % i #Z #h Rk &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

=
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

BRHMME SRS
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5 AN BEATRBEEMAR - &
TEAMETRS ZATHEREMA
TAHAEEASEHERENES 518
fReE =B KFHMRE > BEFEFRBRIT
(BEBFENETHE R —F
KiE SRR FE R AR RE B IR o SRR Rt
FILA ARG SRR 5| E - MR GIETRH
EfEERERERATEXEEZETE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tan Wei Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #Z&i#m*x
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-_F-—&+-A=1+—HIEE
2022 2021
ZECCHE -t
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Hisk BRFR BETR
Revenue Wiz 5
Contracts with customers BRAH 353,624 477,902
Rental income ik ON 301,112 305,782
Interest and dividend income FERBEKA 60,504 51,481
715,240 835,165
Direct costs EERE (325,509) (362,268)
389,731 472,897
Other income Hitug A 24,818 26,094
Administrative and operating expenses IHREERY (257,403) (235,496)
Other gains and losses Hith s REsE 7 114,226 401,355
Finance costs BRI 8 (59,240) (23,521)
Share of results of joint ventures FihaEtEEE (24,127) 27,374
Profit before tax BRATE 188,005 668,703
Income tax expense s 9 (99,206) (248,057)
Profit for the year KEEEF 10 88,799 420,646
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: KERRH (5518) PR ©
Owners of the Company FATRE 86,148 427 302
Non-controlling interests JFERRRER 2,651 (6,656)
88,799 420,646
Basic earnings per share SRERRT 13 HK$ ##0.23 HK$ &% 1.13




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #e#EmhkEMEEWE R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z-E-"F+-A=+—HIEE

2022 2021
ZECCE ZEI-fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Profit for the year KERR 88,799 420,646
Other comprehensive (expense) income 2w () s
Item that will not be reclassified to FEEN ARk ZER
profit or loss:
Fair value (loss) gain on investments in equity ~ BATBEFAEMZERGEZ
instruments at fair value through other BT AATEE (58) ki
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (28,015) 192,706
Items that may be reclassified RETEEN T EERR K
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEH:
Exchange differences arising on translation of  BEEINEEFMELZERESR
foreign operations (445,800) 118,362
Share of other comprehensive (expense) income  FiifSEA£EM2ME (L H) ki
of joint ventures (5,358) 105
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year AFEEMRE () it (F1R%)

(net of tax) (479,173) 311,173
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year &EERME (L) isiess (390,374) 731,819
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2F () WEEENER ©

attributable to:

Owners of the Company TAFARR (373,183) 731,828

Non-controlling interests E[Fo iy (17,191) 9)

(390,374) 731,819
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

4= AN
W A

MBI R

As at 31 December 2022 W=E==&£+=-F=+—H
2022 2021
ZECCHE -t
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Hisk BRFR BETR
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties BB 14 9,480,355 9,525,573
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRE 15 1,821,467 1,918,134
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 2,307 5,629
Interests in joint ventures RELEER 18 571,262 429,555
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEES AR ARG ZESTE 19 275,820 304,639
Deferred tax assets EIRIEEE 28 16,898 18,414
12,168,109 12,201,944
Current assets MEEE
Properties under development for sale EHEXRRYE 17 1,474,233 1,313,819
Properties held for sale EHEYR 17 355,918 471,334
Inventories ped ) 20 32,994 35,561
Trade and other receivables B2 R EMERES 21 148,414 135,526
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEENABGZ
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) SRBE 19 18,866 17,620
Fixed bank deposits with more than three ~ ZAZ{ER%ZIHZ
months to maturity when raised THRITIEE 22 37,264 132,449
Bank balances and cash BTESRES 22 1,596,788 1,875,619
3,664,537 3,981,928
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables o R EMERES 23 381,153 458,154
Lease liabilities HEaR 24 2,433 3,253
Contract liabilities RN 25 8,401 9,693
Borrowings — due within one year &5 — R—FERZIH 26 992,230 563,845
Taxation payable i 140,691 186,570
1,524,908 1,221,515
Net current assets MBEETE 2,139,629 2,760,413
Total assets less current liabilities B EE AR 14,307,738 14,962,357
Non-current liabilities FrRBaR
Other payables H IR 23 106,385 107,146
Lease liabilities fEaeR 24 71 2,663
Borrowings — due after one year &2 — P—E% 3 26 1,216,090 1,295,377
Deferred tax liabilities EIIRIEAE 28 325,203 322,760
1,647,749 1,727,946
12,659,989 13,234,411




2022 2021
ZECCE -t
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ik BETR BETR
Equity e

Share capital A& 29 381,535 381,535
Reserves s 12,217,838 12,765,169

Equity attributable to: RIEDER |
Owners of the Company FATRER 12,599,373 13,146,704
Non-controlling interests R RER 60,616 87,707
Total equity RRfEmsE 12,659,989 13,234,411

The consolidated financial statements on pages 164 to 284
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 16 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

MR. LIU LIT CHI
EIEEE
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
TE ~ BEFBIEERITBABEE

HNEIAE284HZIZAMBRED
RIE_=F£=B+,\HESEZEgitE
R IR T > YAHTIALTRREE :

MR. CHENG YUK WO
BRafAN S5 £
CHAIRMAN OF

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BERZRCERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-_F-—&+-A=1+—HIEE

N

it
o

$

X
Ra
&
P

At 1 January 2022

RZZB__%-F—H

Profit for the year

Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expense of joint ventures

Other comprehensive expense for the year

KERHA
BRATEESAHMZENm 2 #ETRATEESR
HEBNEBMEL Z ERER
FribaEEEEMEESE

TEERMEZARE

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year

Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to accumulated profits upon
disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI

Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve

Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

Dividend to non-controlling interests

FEERE () Wt

HERATEEAHMZERE 2 EE TRE
ENMNBERN B2 REEMHE

HRRENEEAERERHE

BRZADKZRE (MEE12)

XY FIFERRRED ZRE

At 31 December 2022

RZB_"£+"A=+—H




Attributable to owners of the Company

8
=
AR =
Property Investment Statutory Non- 3
Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling =_U|
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total =
ES T BAE( HE R 1
.8 HTkGHE it e ERGE BifGE 2RET st R st -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 b
BETT AR BETT BETT BT BETT AR BETT BETT BT
(note a) (note b) (note c)
((GED)] (FfzEb) (GED]
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 23,059 500,508 88,539 9,182,331 13,146,704 87,707 13,234,411
- - - - - - 86,148 86,148 2,651 88,799
- - - (28,015) = = = (28,015) = (28,015)
- - - - (425,958) - - (425,958) (19,842)  (445,800)
- - - - (5,358) = = (5,358) = (5,358)
- - - (28,015)  (431,316) - —  (459,331)  (19,842)  (479,173)
- - - (28,015)  (431,316) - 86,148 (373,183) (17,191)  (390,374)
- - - (702) - - 102 - — -
- - - - - 1,100 (1,100) - - -
- - - - - — (174,148)  (174,148) - (174,148)

- - - = = - - - (9,900) (9,900)

381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (5,658) 69,192 89,639 9,093,933 12,599,373 60,616 12,659,989
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &Z&t#mE g R
At 1 January 2021 RZFEZ—%5—-B—H
Profit (loss) for the year REERF (58)

Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures

Other comprehensive income for the year

BRATEES ARt 2ERZ 2 #a TAATEERS
HEBINEBMEL Z EREE
FriteEEREMEERE

rEEEMEZERT

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year

Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to accumulated profits upon
disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI

Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve

Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

TEE2HENE (i) BE
HERATEES AR ME2ERE 2 EL TAR
ENMNRERN RN REEMRHE
HRRENEE AR RRHE
ERZADRZKRE (HE12)

At 31 December 2021

RZE-_—5+"A=+—H




Attributable to owners of the Company

FATIRRIEN

Property Investment Statutory Non-

Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

MESR REEfR EERER JEERR
B RhkGE 51 E1:] RS E1:] L4 paril &5t RS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BT AT BT AT BT BT AT BT

(note a) (note b) (note c)
(Fizka) ((GED) (G
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (125,983) 388,688 85,674 8,877,021 12,577,667 87,716 12,665,383
- - - - - - 427,302 427,302 (6,656) 420,646
- - - 192,706 - - - 192,706 - 192,706
- - - - 111,715 - - 111,715 6,647 118,362
- - - - 105 - - 105 - 105
- - - 192,706 111,820 - - 304,526 6,647 311,173
- - - 192,706 111,820 - 427,302 731,828 (9) 731,819
- - - (43,664) - - 43,664 - - -
- - - - - 2,865 (2,865) - - -
- - - - - - (162,791) (162,791) - (162,791)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 23,059 500,508 88,539 9,182,331 13,146,704 87,707 13,234,411
notes:

(a)  Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities
attributable to the additional interest in a subsidiary acquired during the years ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2012.

(b)  Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from valuation of properties under property, plant and equipment upon
transfer to investment properties in previous years.

(c)  The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from accumulated profits by subsidiaries of the Company in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may
be converted to increase capital subject to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC.

MisE

(a) BHREEEAEENEE_SSNF+A=+—RHILEEREE_ S+ A=+—HIEEER—HRBATMIIREBREGEZNBATEIME
wZ HHEERBERABZES

(b) MEBEREEUTEERYE  BRERRBEET ZNEBRARENERMEL 2 HE -

(0 EERBFEELEUFATNTERBAANRBRFINER - REFEARE > ARIANFEMBATERE BN 10%REGHEREEZERGHE B

EZRBENZTAREMELRN 0% A1 - REFEAAEERNT  AEREREFEIEAMEES -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #%&&

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-_F-—&+-A=1+—HIEE

RERER

2022 2021
ZECCHE ZEI-fF
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Operating Activities mEsTE
Profit before tax BRAER 188,005 668,703
Adjustments for: B
Gain on changes in fair value of REMENTEBEESNE
investment properties (236,530) (379,142)
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of financial BATBEFABEZEHEE
assets at fair value through profit or loss NTEEEE () BiE
(“FVTPL") (1,246) 2,978
Gain on changes in fair value of derivative SRTETEATBESS NS
financial instruments - (1,720)
Dividend income from investments RERSMA (17,381) (6,186)
Interest income FISMA (43,123) (45,295)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HENERIHESE
properties held for sale 15,794 -
Share of results of joint ventures b o iy 24,121 (27,374)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % « BER#AERTE 99,301 71,965
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESENE 3,041 3,446
Finance costs B 59,240 23,521
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERRERE
equipment 6,460 3,654
Operating cash flows before movements in KA BESEH I LEHETE
working capital 97,688 314,550
Increase in trade and other receivables R REMERRT ZEM (20,477) (50,477)
Decrease in properties held for sale FHEMEZRHD 63,737 115,793
Increase in properties under development for sale &4 &EXERE (226,126) (272,634)
Increase in inventories ZEZ18m (276) (9,111)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B3 REMEMES (510 (94,239) 48,737
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities RHBEZ (AL Em (471) 8,899
Decrease in derivative financial instruments fTESRMI AR = (88)
Cash (used in) generated from operations e (i) SR E (180,164) 155,669
Income tax paid BIFTEH (108,092) (37,543)
Dividend received from investments BUIRERE 17,381 6,186
Interest received BlFE 43,123 45,295
Net cash (used in) from operating activities gL (FRE) B2 RE 38 (221,752) 169,607




3
2022 2021 =
ZECCE ZEI-fF E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 =]
i BETR i -
Investing Activities REEH -
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI BERATBEFAEMZEREZ ﬁ
BmIR = (691)
Proceed from disposal of equity instruments HEHRATEE:AEMREREZ
at FVTOCI ERTEFSHE 804 357,468
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  EE¥¥ \ BERZE (42,419) (17,724)
Capital investment in joint ventures BEPEIBARE - (90,660)
Advance to a joint venture BEffaEhE (279,131) (30,734)
Repayments from joint ventures BEDEES 101,952 35,971
Dividend received from joint ventures HEE R MBS 5,986 18,265
Net cash outflows on acquisition of a BB AT ZRE B8
subsidiary 35 - (111,558)
Addition of investment properties BB ZIEm (7,078) (57,494)
Proceeds from disposal of investment HERBYEMETE
property 1,882 -
Placement of fixed bank deposits with more ZA=ZER#%IIHZ
than three months to maturity when raised  ®f7ER (37,264) (70,316)
Release of fixed bank deposits with more RE=ER%3Hz
than three months to maturity when raised EEisR{TrE 126,976 50,814
Net cash (used in) from investing activities 13&:;%% (FiE) B2 REE (128,292) 83,341
Financing Activities B EE
New borrowings raised BB 172,000 699,000
Repayments of borrowings BiRES (406,944) (664,256)
Repayment to former shareholder a EBENBATRRREZIE
subsidiary - (115,816)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEREER (3,106) (3,485)
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFE (106) (177)
Dividends paid BKRE (184,048) (162,791)
Interest paid on borrowings BffERFE (52,438) (20,997)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities F&;ZEFH5 (FrE) ZREBE 125,358 (268,522)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERFLEEER R EE (230,686) (15,574)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —B—-BZRERREEEER 1,875,619 1,876,768
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  jpRiakEE 2% (48,145) 14,425
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December +=B=+—-H2RELRBLEEER 1,596,788 1,875,619
Represented hy: IR
Bank balances and cash BAEERES 1,596,788 1,875,619
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE-2__F#+_A=+—HLEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is disclosed in the
Corporate Information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment
and investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 41 and 18,
respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018 - 2020

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

mE R AR M EE

1. —REI18

BRIETXBRAE (ARQE) &2 —MH
EEBEMBRIZAREBRETAR
HERMNEBHMERZFAERAFHEE o
BABZ MR EEMU R FEE M
HEELFERNATIEREE -

FABZEEXBFRMERERKREE
ReTEMBATRGEREEZETER
BRRIETINHEE41 K18 °

FREMBREUAS AT ZINEGHERE
(FE%1) 251 -

2. ERKEITEEMBEREEN

BEITEAVBHREENR T ERESET
=¥
FEERSFEEMRERNAEBFREHM
BHRRERIRASEMBRSENRE
PERBSER ZIRINEII RN TH
EEEHMAEEMIENR TS "F—
B—HZZERBz FEHRMEREEN
ZHET I BB TSR IREER R ABET ¢

BRMBRSER B SERNRR

EREACEEN

BRMBRSER “Z-—F/A=tH

# 165REFT & & B RS AR
HERRA

EREHENE 16N YVE -BERRE—F

FRICEIP RERRANFEHE

EAGHEREIR  BEAN —BIAK

FRICEIP ZRA

ERUERSER ERMBREER

FRICEIP “E-\EE
“ECFEMN
FENE

FFERAEBMBREENREPE
BIEBMBHRESER L EHRERN
EERBEFEZMBRFERMTR,
ZEGRAMBRERAB ZIREFEEK
ERERTE -



2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. FERKREITIEAUBHREERN
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (48)
(CONTINUED)
NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET #isIRBHEMERKRENRZERBMBIE
EFFECTIVE HE
The Group has not early applied the following new and ZAEBEIRZAFAUTEBEMHEER R
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet M2 EBAFIREERNFETRAIEETA :
effective:
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HKFRS 17 (including the  Insurance Contracts? EEMBREENF R REEH!
October 2020 and (BE_Z-_Z&E+A
February 2022 RZE-__E_REH
Amendments to IR EERFE 175
HKFRS 17) (CHIEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets EEMBREEAF 105 REEEHAKES
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and REBGTERNFE 8 SEQATZEAN
its Associate or Joint Venture? EHIES BEELEIRA?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and EEMBRSENF 165 SEERTHEE
Leaseback? (EHE =L g
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BEBEHERB 1R RERIEARE
Current or Non-current and (EHIEN HIERBEER
related amendments to HEBREELR
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020%F) 2
(2020)3 IR
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with HEGERE 15 npE 2 0L
Covenants? (CHIES aR®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies! ~ &E#EGHERSE1HRKk  BHEHRRKE!
and HKFRS Practice ERUBREENER
Statement 2 WEF2RETR
Amendments to HKAS 8  Definition of Accounting EEGHENFESR BHEHNER!
Estimates! (CHIES
Amendments to HKAS 12  Deferred Tax related to Assets and BBt 2ERIE 1258 HE-XZELN
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Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned PR TFXFIEXERBTREER 2T K
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the {E5I&SN  ARABAEREH > BAETE |
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will MR EERNHERIMTRIET AR |
have no material impact on the consolidated financial BRAERKRKEEESHMEBRRERIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF LIABILITIES

AS CURRENT OR NON-CURRENT AND RELATED

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG INTERPRETATION 5 (2020)

(THE “2020 AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS (THE “2022

AMENDMENTS”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional

guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at

least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e  clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

e  Specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that the classification should not be
affected by management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the
end of the reporting period.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF LIABILITIES
AS CURRENT OR NON-CURRENT AND RELATED
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG INTERPRETATION 5 (2020)
(THE “2020 AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS (THE “2022
AMENDMENTS"”) (CONTINUED)
In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period, if the entity classify liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2022, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’'s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to
be a business and no further assessment is needed.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Asset acquisitions (Continued)
Asset acquisitions
When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to
the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction
does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”), the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of the
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant joint
venture.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture
that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or

services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted
for and presented on a net basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method
The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group's performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with the
value of the Group’s performance completed to date, the Group
recognises revenue in the amount to which the Group has the
right to invoice.

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to

leases of land and building that have a lease term of 12 months

or less from the commencement date and do not contain a

purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are

recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the
end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the

definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line

item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-
of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property
and inventory are presented within “investment properties” and

“properties under development for sale/properties held for sale”,

respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease

if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e  the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)
The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component. The
associated non-lease components are included in the respective
lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a rate
are estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease

components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from

Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a contract

to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are

separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group

entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional

currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at

that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.

When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is

recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that

gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in joint ventures.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs (Continued)
Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the

undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as

and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another

HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects

the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in

which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition of the
relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than freehold land as described
below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land is not depreciated and is measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as ‘“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets

other than freehold land less their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the
Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (Continued)
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. A
leased property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset is
derecognised if the Group as intermediate lessor classifies the
sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (Continued)
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and
is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated

statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Properties under development for sale/properties for sale

Properties under development for sale which are intended to be

sold upon completion of development and properties for sale are

classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance with
the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties under
development for sale/properties for sale are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated cost to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change in use to hold the property to
earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for sale
in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
inception of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is

probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the

amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of

allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments

(including all fees and points paid or received that form an

integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and

other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the

financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,

except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group

may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised
cost and receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(ii)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’
line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, deposit paid and other receivables, loans advanced
to joint ventures, fixed bank deposits with more than three
months to maturity when raised and bank balances) and lease
receivables which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables

and lease receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or
credit-impaired which are assessed individually, lifetime ECL for
remaining debtors are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration of grouping of internal credit rating by
reference to past due information and relevant credit
information, and forward-looking macroeconomic information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or

when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to accumulated profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and

borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial liability to which the amortised cost
measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to account for
these changes by updating the effective interest rate, such
change in effective interest rate normally has no significant
effect on the carrying amount of the relevant financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only if, both
these conditions are met:

e  the change is necessary as a direct consequence of interest
rate benchmark reform; and

e  the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the
basis immediately preceding the change).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred

tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured

using the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios in Hong

Kong and the PRC and concluded that (a) the Group’s

investment properties in Hong Kong are not held under a

business model whose objective is to consume substantially all

of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, (b) the Group’s investment properties in the PRC are
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in determining the

Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties in Hong

Kong, the directors of the Company have determined that the

presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties

measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
properties. The presumption that the carrying amounts of the

Group’s investment properties situated in the PRC are recovered

entirely through sale has been rebutted and the deferred tax on

the changes in fair value of those investment properties is
recognised according to the relevant tax rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within

the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 December 2022 at their fair value,
details of which are disclosed in note 14. The fair value of the
investment properties was determined by reference to valuations
conducted on these properties by an independent qualified
professional valuer using property valuation techniques which
involve certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions may
result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair
value reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the carrying amount of these properties included in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The carrying
amount of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2022 is approximately HK$9,480,355,000 (2021:
HK$9,525,573,000).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2022, a deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$191,067,000 (2021:
HK$186,201,000) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of approximately
HK$765,927,000 (2021: HK$616,285,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal takes place.
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5. REVENUE 5. W=
(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS (i) BEPRHITSEBADRE

WITH CUSTOMERS
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and the reconciliation of the ZAEBIWANSTKRERTFE SN E
revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts EDEPERFIIREEENEHRWT -
disclosed in the segment information is as follows:
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2022 2021

ZEICE “E--F

HK$'000 HK$000

BETT BT

Property development MERE 82,795 238,970

Property management b ESS3 25,763 22,005

Trading and manufacturing BAREE 92,112 102,866

Hotel operation BERE 152,954 114,061

Revenue from contracts with customers HEREHRINE 353,624 477,902

Property investment (note) IS (ffs) 301,112 305,782
Treasury investment HBEE

— Interest income —FIBMA 43,123 45,295

— Dividend income — REKA 17,381 6,186

Total revenue ey 715,240 835,165

note:  Operating lease payments mainly includes base rental. Leases are negotiated for terms [zl : REAANHTEQEEATAS - MY EMFE
ranging from one to eight years with monthly fixed rental. A—ZEN\ENSRETHES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 &M BIWRERM T

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. Uz (8)
(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS () BEREITARMNBASRE (8)
WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_Z__H#+”"_A=+—HILEE
Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment manufacturing operation Total
nERE NEYR hEeE HHiE BAREE EEEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
Property development b E - 82,795 - - - - 82,795
Property management WEEE - - 25,163 - - - 25,163
Trading and manufacturing EEYESS - - - - 92,112 - 92,112
Hotel operation BERE - - - - - 152,954 152,954
Revenue from contracts HER AN
with customers - 82,795 25,763 - 92,112 152,954 353,624
Property investment MIERE 301,112 - - - - - 301,112
Interest income FIEBA - - - 43123 - - 43,123
Dividend income REKA - - - 17,381 - - 17,381
Segment revenue SR 301,112 82,795 25,163 60,504 92,112 152,954 715,240
Trading
Property Property and Hotel
development management manufacturing operation Total
MEER MEEE BRRNE AEEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
Geographical markets METR
Hong Kong EE - 25,763 - 99,296 125,059
PRC HE 82,7195 - 92,112 6,439 181,346
Thailand ZE = - - 47,219 41,219
Total izt 82,795 25,763 92,112 152,954 353,624
Timing of revenue recognition e s
A point in time E-Hm 82,795 = 92,112 17,100 192,007
Over time FEERE - 25,763 = 135,854 161,617
Total 4zt 82,795 25,763 92,112 152,954 353,624




5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. W (8)
(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS (i) BMEREITARMNBYARMR (H)

WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE_—F+"A=+—HLEFE
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Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment manufacturing operation Total
WERE e nEER fIBRE BARME BEEE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT AT
Property development by ES - 238,970 - - - - 238,970
Property management MEER - - 22,005 - - - 22,005
Trading and manufacturing BERNE - - - - 102,366 - 102,366
Hotel operation LR - - - - - 114,061 114,061
Revenue from contracts HER NN
with customers - 238,970 22,005 - 102,866 114,061 477,902
Property investment MELE 305,782 - - - - - 305,782
Interest income FERA - - - 45,295 - - 45,295
Dividend income REWA - - - 6,186 - - 6,186
Segment revenue NENE 305,782 238,970 22,005 51,481 102,866 114,061 835,165
Trading
Property Property and Hotel
development management manufacturing operation Total
MERRE MEER BAREE BELE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Geographical markets METE
Hong Kong &E - 22,005 - 104,482 126,487
PRC HE 238,970 - 102,866 9,154 350,990
Thailand %E - - - 425 425
Total st 238,970 22,005 102,866 114,061 477,902
Timing of revenue recognition el ey
A point in time H—m 238,970 - 102,866 19,627 361,463
Over time FEERE - 22,005 - 94,434 116,439
Total @ 238,970 22,005 102,866 114,061 477,902

N
N
[y

ETHEXRTEEA

HEEEFE--&= |




2

N
N

2202 140d3Y TYNNNY | Q3LINIT INIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHO NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)
(ii) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS
Property development
For contracts entered into with customers on sales of properties,
the relevant properties specified in the contracts are based on
customer’s specifications with no alternative use. Taking into
consideration of the relevant contract terms, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the Group concluded
that the Group does not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers. Revenue
from sales of properties is therefore recognised at a point in
time when the completed property is transferred to customers,
being at the point that the customer obtains the control of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment
and collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the
payment terms of the sale and purchase agreement. Such
advance payment results in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the property construction period. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed as the contracts are for periods of one
year or less.

Property management

Revenue from property management represents charge-out
collections, which consist of payments in respect of the
operation of the properties which are payable by the tenants, are
recognised over time using output method when the services
and facilities are provided. The Group elected to apply the
practical expedient by recognising revenue in the amount to
which the Group has right to invoice, since the Group is entitled
to bill a fixed amount in advance for each month according to
the terms of the relevant lease. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(ii) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
Trading and manufacturing
For sales of magnetic products, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred to customers, being when
the goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following the delivery, the customer has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as the contracts
are for periods of one year or less.

Hotel operation

Hotel room revenue from customers is recognised over time
using output method when the service and facilities are
provided. All the hotel operation services are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Revenue from food and beverages is recognised when the food
and beverage are delivered to the customers.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resources allocation or assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods and services delivered or
provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segment of the
Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Property investment — investment and letting of properties

2. Property development — development and sale of
properties

3. Property management — provision of property management
services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in
securities and other financial instruments

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of
magnetic products

6. Hotel operation — management and operation of hotel and
food & beverage business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by operating and reportable segments.

mE R AR M EE

AEEH (])
SEWERES

ES VL

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E--F+-A=t+-ALEE

Segment revenue vaE UG
Comprising: 257

— revenue from customers — XPlE

— inter-segment transactions (note) —EERRS (i3
Operating expenses SERY
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties BEMENTEBEES NG
Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL BATEESAERZ EHEELATBEESNG
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE BERREZHEE
Net exchange gains (losses) ERFE (F518)
Segment profit (loss) iR (5B18)
Finance costs B
Share of results of joint ventures FribaECEEE
Profit before tax b AR

note: Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices.

Mzt EEARZERITHERR

UTRABERKREBIEZRER =



Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment development management investment manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
MERE MEER MEER BHRE BARNE BRERE SR B =
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
307,031 82,795 40,830 60,504 92,112 153,519 736,791 (21,551) 715,240
301,112 82,795 25,763 60,504 92,112 152,954
5,919 - 15,067 — - 565
(137,937) (87,749) (29,495) (34,891) (87,970) (201,603) (579,645) 21,551 (558,094)
236,530 - - - - - 236,530 - 236,530
= = = 1,246 = = 1,246 - 1,246
- - - - = (6,460) (6,460) = (6,460)
4,024 (40,795) 488 (76,191) = (4,616) (117,090) = (117,090)
409,648 (45,749) 11,823 (49,332) 4,142 (59,160) 271,372 - 271,372
(59,240)
(24,127)
188,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 &M BIWRERM T

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. SEEHE (E)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED) 9 B s By 5 4 (48)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results MU TARERKEEFVEZRAERUE
by operating and reportable segments. TEE DT ©
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-E--F+-A=t+-RALEE
Segment revenue NiEkE
Comprising: (27
— revenue from customers — BAlkE
— inter-segment transactions (note) — £ERRS (i)
Operating expenses BT
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties RENEQTEEES KRG
Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFABEZEHEEATEELZEHGE
Gain on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments &@iT4 TR Z ATEBELEEKE
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE « BERRBZEE
Net exchange (losses) gains ERF (5518) s
Segment profit (loss) SR (5F18)
Finance costs BB
Share of results of joint ventures Pt R EhEEE
Profit before tax BRI AER
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Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment development management investment manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
MERE ES MEER MBRE BARRE BELE DR i =4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
312,826 238,970 36,150 51,481 102,866 114,423 856,716 (21,551) 835,165
305,782 238,970 22,005 51,481 102,866 114,061
7,044 - 14,145 — — 362
(136,639) (167,091) (26,947) (33,405) (96,064) (133,075) (593,221) 21,551 (571,670)
379,142 - - - - - 379,142 - 379,142
- - - (2,978) - - (2,978) - (2,978)
- - - 1,720 - - 1,720 - 1,720
- - - - - (3,654) (3,654) - (3,654)
(1,355) 12,398 (157) 22,968 - (6,729) 27,125 - 27,125
553,974 84,277 9,046 39,786 6,802 (29,035) 664,850 - 664,850
(23,521)
27,374
668,703
note:  Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices. MisE . EERRZRRITHELE o

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same  ¥(FED > &= ER B 5T 3Tt > A&
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment B & stHFEERE o HEEF (B518) f51&
profit (loss) represents the profit earned by/loss incurred from FKEt AL E S XX ERMERETZ
each segment without allocation of share of results of joint BFER FTEDEFRBINZHN, 226
ventures and finance costs. In addition, the Group’s 38 b9 BAFRED BB HMEK D
administrative costs are allocated to respective operating FERATETH KR 21T A B2 @7 275
segments on the basis of revenue earned by individual operating D iEBENZ INFEE LB ERIEIENLE -
segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the FRNREBBULSEAEZRATELERE

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. AZEHR > WHAEERPEKRFZDER
IH o
227
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 &M BIWRERM T

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHEEHF (&)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SHEEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities MU TARERDPEZAEBREERER
by reportable segments: Ak i
Segment assets REEE
2022 2021
ZECCHE “E--E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Property investment L ES 9,722,856 9,761,820
Property development ES 2,310,707 2,648,001
Property management b ESS3 10,741 6,787
Treasury investment BRRE 1,356,980 1,264,357
Trading and manufacturing BAREE 110,481 114,845
Hotel operation R 1,732,121 1,940,093
Total segment assets NIEBERLE 15,244,486 15,735,903
Interests in joint ventures RELERR 571,262 429,555
Deferred tax assets EIREEE 16,898 18,414
Consolidated assets GREE 15,832,646 16,183,872
Segment liabilities REAR
2022 2021
k- bt - Sl
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Property investment MERE 198,718 228,144
Property development MERE 221,535 260,216
Property management MEEE 2,829 2,829
Treasury investment MERE 2,524 3,864
Trading and manufacturing BEREE 13,941 12,387
Hotel operation BELE 52,896 73,469
Total segment liabilities NEEBEE 498,443 580,909
Taxation payable FEfIRR 140,691 186,570
Borrowings e 2,208,320 1,859,222
Deferred tax liabilities EIRIEAE 325,203 322,760
Consolidated liabilities FR&eRE 3,172,657 2,949,461

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and AERSBERIBDENDERSEER
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated [RRSE {PENE LS RIELERIBEEEI »
to operating segments other than interests in joint ventures and FrEBEMIDEEERDLE > MIREN
deferred tax assets. All liabilities are allocated to operating Rz« EFRIELERIEEEYI FREE
segments other than taxation payable, borrowings and deferred (&9 ECEXEFFHEE o

tax liabilities.



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6. SEEH(R)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hit3EEH
Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment manufacturing operation Consolidated
nERE NELR nEER HBRE BRRNE Bk ke
HK$'000 HKS 000 HS 000 HK$ 000 HKS1000 HiS 000 HikS1000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the measure o EIEFHEHBEER
segment results and segment NEBEZSHE.
assets:
202 Zg-C
Additions to non-current assets (note)  JETREIE LN (M) 17318 618 123 - 4,900 26,538 49,497
Depreciation & 8,236 966 a1 - 3,441 89,182 102,342
Impairment loss recognised in BEYERINESE
respect of properties held for sale - 15,794 - - - - 15,194
201 - -
Additions to non-current assets (note)  JETRENEELLHN (M) 66,780 154 93 - 3,018 588,095 658,140
Depreciation & 8,028 893 - - 3,547 62,943 75411

note:  Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial instruments and deferred
tax assets. Included in prior year additions to non-current assets related to hotel operation
is acquisition of property, plant and equipment of HK$579,868,000 through acquisition of a
subsidiary as disclosed in note 35.

Geographical information
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, other parts of
the PRC and Thailand.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on the
location of the operations. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets.

i EABAETOEAELENE  FASEARIS
ZEBRAER  BERANBLAELE - Mk
35FTNE > BEEEERBOERBEELN  01F
BAREHBARDUKENE BERREEY
579,868,0007 °

EEH

FEEXEBUREE  PEEMMMEK

= -

BT ERFECEIIRERZRTE
BIRIEEEBIE B 2R - AL
EBRFRBBEEMNENAREEREM
B2 -

Revenue Non-current assets (note)
Wi JEmEEE (M)

2022 2021 2022 2021
ZECCE ZEI-F ZECCHE “E--E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETT
Hong Kong &8 360,956 375,715 1,604,677 7,517,261
PRC al] 307,025 459,025 3,150,907 3,348,286
Thailand 58 47,259 425 548,545 583,789

715,240 835,165 11,304,129 11,449,336

note:  Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31

December 2022 and 31 December 2021 contributing over 10%

of the total operating revenue of the Group.

M ERBEEFOEAENLES  SRMIA HAS

BE%NB EHETERRETRELEE -
FEEREH
BE_T-__F#+"A=+—HK_-E
_—F+ZBA=+—HLEFE > LEK
BERFZWHGEAEREEERDEA
10% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE R AR M EE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hithih = K518
2022 2021
B ZEI-F
HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETT
Gain on changes in fair value of investment RENENTEBEETNR
properties 236,530 379,142
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of financial AT EEHABEZSHEE
assets at FVTPL ATEESENE (518 1,246 (2,978)
Gain on changes in fair value of derivative SRTETEZ ATEESS NG
financial instruments - 1,720
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &% « BERSERE (6,460) (3,654)
Net exchange (loss) gain BRE (58 ks (117,090) 27,125
114,226 401,355
8. FINANCE COSTS M
2022 2021
ZECCHE -
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Interest on borrowings: BHFS
Bank loans RITE 57,728 21,152
Other borrowings Hitifam - 828
57,728 21,980
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 106 177
Other interest expense EffIESH 1,406 1,364
59,240 23,521
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrEf &zt
2022 2021
= e EC—f
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
The charge comprises: g2k
Current tax: KEERE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax FHFE 6,660 9,165
PRC Enterprise Income Tax hE SR 3,151 28,246
10,417 37,411
Dividend withholding tax REFBMR 5,136 -
QOverprovision in prior years: BEEERELE .
Hong Kong Profits Tax FETER (148) (50)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax TR EFTER (27,199) (5,281)
(27,347) (5,331)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) hE L ER 89,996 157,768
Deferred taxation (note 28) EIERIE (FisE 28) 21,004 58,209
99,206 248,057




9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

FRiSRZ i (48)

FEEZRBRRGEDRAARERBA
EAZ AR

2022 2021
ket b 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Profit before tax PR ATER 188,005 668,703
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% BRE16.5% (CEZ—F:16.5%) 82
(2021:16.5%) EAFIER 31,021 110,336
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures rbaE g REYE 3,981 (4,517)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AONRERZNKE
purpose 35,761 37,386
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  BEZRIKAZRHKEE (54,847) (49,119)
Overprovision in prior years BEEEBERE (27,347) (5,331)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AEIRBERZ B2 25,251 1,179
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses RRABIEAZNEERZREYE
previously not recognised (560) (76)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences AEDUENEEEER I REYE
not recognised 1,981 -
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences  {EB%EIAEINITNEEEEZE
previously not recognised - (29,576)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMEEEREE 7 HBASFEREZ
operating in other jurisdictions ZE 1,582 31,568
PRC LAT M T E#R 89,996 157,768
Tax effect of PRC LAT HE LS ER RS (14,849) (1,561)
Dividend withholding tax REFMR 1,236 -
Tax charge for the year AEERBESH 99,206 248,057

notes:

(a)

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved upon implementation of the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both
years.

(b) Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
(2021: 25%).

(c) The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements set

forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to
the determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for LAT
is calculated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group commenced the procedures for
settlement of LAT for the Group’s completed residential project in Foshan, Guangdong
province with the relevant tax authority. In determining the actual LAT liabilities with the tax
authorities, the basis on which LAT is calculated has to be revised. Based on the preliminary
assessment, an additional LAT liabilities of HK$151,525,000 was provided in the profit or
loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, LAT liabilities of approximately HK$89,996,000
was provided in the profit or loss for the remaining phases of the residential project in
Foshan, Guangdong province.

M5

TAREEDA BRERNSRANEMIRNEE
BREMBRRIBEAMG - BENGREMESE
B ERIENE916.5% 55 o

BhEAREANECEMENE (CERERE) R
TEREREERAL > PEHBATRES25% (=
BT 25%) ©

REPERZRFINERRE  sEEERETE
TiigER - RETMIEERRIARRBREN X
RERBNBRTIREMNE REEUEFIFEEH
HIMRERBENFAEEE

BE_E_—F+_BA=+-HER FEEEHRE
EEABEREAGLUTERINEEEERERREMH
B RERERFE TARBRERRLMEE
MEREr  KRERLHIZERNHAEER - REYD
PEE - RiBmiRP BB K 151,525,000 °

TERN EAHBRREBUDNETRES LN
BERAHENE89,996,0007 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 &M BIWRERM T

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. xEFEEEF

2022 2021
B ZEI-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REERH BB TYEE

charging:

Staff costs =Ry 136,330 126,471
Staff retirement schemes contributions, net of S TB{iEFIHE » MNERRU{HER

HK$860,000 (2021: HK$1,520,000) #B1860,0007T

forfeited contributions (ZB-—&: #8¥1,520,0007) 4,464 3,491
Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 8 TR A&t (EEEEHS) 140,794 129,962
Auditor's remuneration e E 3,720 2,928
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERREITE 99,301 71,965
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESERE 3,041 3,446
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HHEYE  RESERD

properties held for sale (AEE TEERE))

(included in “direct costs”) 15,794 -
Government grants (included in “other income”)  ERFF#BA (B1357E TEMMAL) 6,129 1,313
Selling expenses (included in “administrative and $£p% (B1FE (THEZERY))

operating expenses”) 2,111 3,657
and after crediting: TEtA
Gross rental income from investment properties &Y LEREMA 301,112 305,782
Less: direct expenses of investment properties A ERELRSBAZEENEEEER

that generated rental income during the year (34,164) (31,264)

266,948 274,518

During the current year, the Group recognised government
grants of approximately HK$6,129,000 (2021:
HK$1,313,000) in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies, of
which approximately HK$4,204,000 (2021: HK$nil) relates to
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
government.

RAEE > ZEBME 2019 BREE
RARY B AT 4 BN 49816 6,129,000 T (ZF
——f 1 #%1,313,0007T) c HPLHE
#4,204,000c (ZEZ—F &\ HEE
AR RENMEL R EIER -



11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 11. E5-THHEZRESHE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2021: 9) ENSEMFIR(ZE_—F:9R%)E&

=
=z
=
=
o
>
-
X
m
v
o
X
|
g
#
#
b

directors were as follows: FEZMEWMT
Other emoluments
HitiiE
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (note e) contributions emoluments
£
Mk EEE BMER
g HitgF (Ftzke) SR L F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BBTr #BTR BBTR #lTr
2022 —E-C
Executive Directors (note a) BITESE (M3ka)
Liu Lit Chi B 300 9,926 - 559 10,785
Liu Kam Fai, Winston Bt 200 6,418 - 403 1,021
Lee Wai Hung N 200 3,981 - 398 4,519

Non-executive Director (note b)  JE#{TEE (izth)

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher TR 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BIERTES (ke
Directors (note c)

Cheng Mo Chi, Moses gEa 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur &R 300 - - - 300
Ma Hung Ming, John BBtk 300 - - - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo i 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEXR 300 - - - 300
Total it 2,500 20,325 - 1,360 24,185

EVEERTHEE g

—-&° |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 &M BIWRERM T

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

11.

EF -THRIERESHE (B8)

Other emoluments

Hitds
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (note e) contributions emoluments
LB
R #ES BIRER
ik HitigR (FffEe) BEEeA iane
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
2021 b Gl
Executive Directors (note a) BITESE (Mita)
Liu Lit Chi B8 300 9,702 - 559 10,561
Liu Kam Fai, Winston Bi1fE 200 6,167 - 391 6,758
Lee Wai Hung Mk 200 3,757 - 376 4,333
Non-executive Director (note b)  JEHTEE (fifith)
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HER 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BUIFRITES (Miko)
Directors (note c)
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses b 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur &R 300 - - - 300
Ma Hung Ming, John EBtk 300 - - - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo eyl 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EEXK 300 - - - 300
Total st 2,500 19,626 - 1,326 23,452
notes: M5t
(a)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with ~ (a)  EFBTESZHEBEEEANIARAEASHELZ
the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. R¥%AER o
(b)  The non-executive director's emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of (b))  EFIFRTESZHELEGEATATHMBEATE
the Company or its subsidiaries. EZRBEER -
()  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services  (¢)  EHBUIERTEEZMEBEEARARNESZR
as directors of the Company. BHEM -
(d)  During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five ~ (d) &R AEEHENINESKELEEHAT (B
highest paid individuals (including directors) as an inducement to join or upon joining the EE) 3 AEAME  FANALERRMA L EER
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under which a ZREYERAE #E_S"“F+-A=+—H
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December RZE_—E+-A=+—HILREEE  IHEF
2022 and 31 December 2021. BERAMREZHEMEHZH
(e)  The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the individual () #®EZE__F+_-_A=+—HKZZE-—5+-H8

(f)

performance of the directors and approved by the remuneration committee of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The Group has been providing accommodation to the directors at no charge. The estimated
money value of the benefit in kind is HK$4,348,000 (2021: HK$4,495,000).

Zt-HEMEFEERREM RERESNER
REEE URAEEFHESEHE
FEF-EEEREFRMEERE - BYAENEHE
BEAB4,348,0007T (22— : #B¥4,495,000
7o) °



11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included three directors (2021: three directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out as above. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2022 of the
remaining two (2021: two) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

11. EE - THHRHEREEM= (B)

FATEER LG ESHEBOE=8E
BE(ZEZ—F =ZREFE) » H#bNFE
BEIME - BE-_ET-__F+_H~
=E+—HLEFENGTRR(ZZEZ—
F M) EeHES (LESATESR
ITEAR L) ROETEMEE BN T -

follows:
2022 2021
—EC_CE T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BRTR BT
Salaries and other benefits TEHNEMER 4,411 3,785
Retirement scheme contributions BREF R 371 345
4,788 4,130

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FERNBFEENREHMNETAHRN
T EFMENTHER :

No. of employee

BTAY
2022 2021
b ot ZEI-F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 71,500,001 TE A 2,000,000 7 - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 FTE:#H2,500,0007C 2 1
12. DIVIDENDS 12. &2
2022 2021
ZEICE ZEI-F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT
Dividends recognised as distribution during FEREADRZRE
the year:
Interim dividend paid for 2022 — HK$0.18 ZEICEERTBRESRER0.18T
per share (2021: interim dividend paid for (ZE-—&  BR-Z-—FHHRE
2021 — HK$0.18 per share) BkE®0.187) 68,145 68,145
Final dividend paid for 2021 — HK$0.28 ZEC-FERKBREEREK0.28 T
per share (2021: final dividend paid for (CE-—£  BR-S-ZEAHPRE
2020 — HK$0.25 per share) SHAR0.257) 106,003 94,646
174,148 162,791

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.20
(2021: final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2021 of HK$0.28) per share, in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$75,717,000 (2021: HK$106,003,000) has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ERBEHERE BE_S &
+ZBA=1t—HLEEEZFBEREESRK
BI020T(CE_—F  HE_T_—
F+_A=+—BHLEEEZXRERES
BE B 0.287T) » HAAWE 75,717,000
7T (ZZT—4F : #%106,003,0007T) °
KHEEZES VEANRERREBE
AE L ESRE"E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$86,148,000 (2021: HK$427,302,000) and on
378,583,440 (2021: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and
industrial units and retail stores under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to five years, with unilateral rights to extend the

lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

mE R AR M EE

13. BREFTEF
ARBRREGEESRERBF KL
FEARTDRREHZENO B
86,148,000 c( Z T - — F: B &
427,302,00070) RAFEBEETEER
378,583,440 ( = & — F:
378,583,440 %) 515

BE_E__F+-HA=t+—HRKZ
:—¢+_H:+—Etﬁzmﬁmﬁ
ABESER  FtEESREFNFE
2o

14. BEME
AEEREBELSEHAEHMEZEEE &
EMITEBMURTERE  SBAX
e HEREAP—FIRFE > LH
BEEFEEFANRBEELEREERAEA
R A BIRIIRHAASM ©

HRFTAREIUERBERES BRINEE
ERFE > WAEBRAEEBENZ
MmARINERR - HEGEFEF R
BEEARN, AR ATTHEE R
ERBEMENERE -

HK$'000

AT
FAIR VALUE NEEE
At 1 January 2021 RZE2_—-F—F—H 9,000,490
Currency realignment Bz 88,447
Additions )| 57,494
Gain on changes in fair value NEESHEE 379,142
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—-&+-B=1+—H 9,525,573
Currency realignment EZEx (279,733)
Additions i) 7,078
Disposal RE (1,882)
Adjustments to construction costs BREpEAHER (7,211)
Gain on changes in fair value NLEEEHNE 236,530
At 31 December 2022 WZE-Z“#+-A=1+—-H 9,480,355




14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year, the unrealised gain on property revaluation
amounting to HK$235,689,000 (2021:HK$379,142,000) is
included in profit or loss.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the
Group’s policy to engage an independent qualified professional
valuer to perform the valuations. The management works closely
with the valuer to establish the appropriate valuation model or
techniques and inputs to the model.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, independent
valuations were undertaken by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Ltd. (“Vigers”), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group which has appropriate professional
qualifications and recent experience in the valuations of similar
properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison
method by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties in the same locations and conditions or,
where appropriate, by capitalising the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted
is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer
for the similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on
the valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

14. REME (8)

FR RERMEEH R B
235,689,000t (B = —F: B &
379,142,0007T) BEEIEEIBHEIRA ©

EEAMEATEER > AEENKR
BRI SERERGEMETHE -
EEERGEMEYSE BIIEEDN
HEXRMMGEEERRARE -

MNR_E__&H#+_-_HA=+—HK_E
——H+ZHA=+—8 > BikERH
BT E ETMAREER AR AR (TEEH)
T T ARKNER T REEZE
N EEREEMGER > WEAERMEE
L EETHEREEENEXERR
T RAASER o

EENBERIEBUAT 22 HRME KK
BNECMENTRERIS2ETHA
BZEZMEEU R EEUYERE
BERUE S Y EFA R B
ISR E(RERE) S - EFFAN
BRCLERDESEAEMMZMERN
BUMEBRAESNONR=E > BERE
LEMMAAMAESEYEERNGEERE
RABEBEA -

EEAMEATEER  MENREK
REARAEBRIAR -

TRILARKRBEVENLQFEEDMA
BEENEN (ERERERFANGER
MRBAEE) » UREATEESER
N ASHAIUERNEE > BRATE
B EDEEATEERBPHRR (5B
—EFZMRA) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
SEERENRENES]
REEHMBRAR

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
EERREEEY

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EXTAREGLNEY

=
R

N

PaN
M|

AT F5 R R MY 5

14. BEME ()

Relationship

of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FURRGHNEH
ARATRENRE

Investment properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$670,730,000 (2021:
HK$1,590,670,000) (note)
EEBNRENFERERERE
670,730,000 (ZE=—%
#11,590,670,0007%) (Hi3)

Investment properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$5,704,100,000 (2021:
HK$4,633,900,000) (note)
EERNRENELRERERS
5,704,100,0007 (ZE=—f .
#14,633,900,0007%) (i)

Direct comparison method

BEREILRE

The key input is
FTEEYA

(1) Unit sale rate

(1) EfsEEsg

Income capitalisation
method

WAL

The key inputs are
FEEYA

(1) Reversion yield

(1) BEHROEERR

(2)  Monthly market rent

(2 BATHHEE

Unit sale rate, taking into account the time,
location, and individual factors, such as
frontage and size, between the comparable
and the property, ranging from HK$97 to
HK$28,329 (2021: HK$97 to HK$28,726)
per square feet for properties and ranging
from HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,300,000 (2021:
HK$1,390,000 to HK$2,300,000) per unit
for car park spaces.

ZREIRRE AR ERYEANERS 2 RN
ERRR > MAmRAE  MENBAHEERE
EASTAREAL TEAK 28,3297 (ZF
T BT BB 28726 T) » BEIGH
HBIEBIME 1,500,000t E A 2,300,000
7o (2B 1,390,000 T E B
2,300,0007z) ©

Reversion yield, taking into account of the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property and prevailing
market condition, ranging from 2.5% to
3.5% (2021: 2.5% t0 3.5%).
ZRIEERERABRE  WERERRET
o BERENEREEA2.5%£3.5%
(CB-—F:25%F3.5%)

Monthly market rents, taking into account
of time, location and individual factors
such as frontage and size, between the
comparable and the property, ranging from
HK$40 to HK$199 (2021: HK$30 to HK$195)
per square feet per month.

ZRIINE A RHRYERNERS 2 BN
BARZ  MARRFE  EATHEHREIAS
FHREAEAOTERE19T (CE-F !
BRI TERL195T) ©

An increase in the unit sale rate
used would result in an increase in
the fair value measurement of the
investment properties by the same
percentage increase, and vice versa.
FIEMEHERK—BLH > §SRE
MENATREGERARNE DL
> 25

A'slight increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
significant decrease in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
FANERENRREEREN LA &
TRENMZNATEEAEEEATH
RZMHR o

Aslight increase in the monthly
market rent used would result in a
significant increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
FANSATRREEREM LA 82
REMENATEEHEEEALA K
2R e



14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
SEERENRENES)
REERMBRAR

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
EERTREELY

Significant
unohservable input(s)

EXTURRGLNEN

14. BHEME (&)

Relationship

of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FUREFHNEY
AATEENRE

Investment properties in the PRC
with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$484,905,000 (2021:
HK$370,475,000)

ERERNRENF BREEEE
484,905,0007% (2B :
#%370,475,0007T)

Investment properties in the PRC
with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$2,620,620,000 (2021:
HK$2,930,528,000)
ERENRENFEREERS
2,620,620,000T (ZE=—%F:

71 2,930,528,0007T)

Direct comparison method

BRI

The key input is
TELHA

(1)
(1

Unit sale rate

EfIsiEER

Income capitalisation
method
KB

The key inputs are

IREYS

(1)
o)

(2)
@

Reversion yield

RRNEER

Monthly market rent
FAMGHEE

Unit sale rate, taking into account the time,
location, and individual factors, such as
frontage and size, between the comparable
and the property, ranging from Renminbi
(“RMB”) 14,250 to RMB21,100 (2021:
RMB4,650 to RMB22,500) per square meter
for properties.

TR S RERMERNERG 2 BN
EREZ > MArmkEE EiHERREAS
THAAARE 14250 E ARHE21,1007T
(ZB-—F: AR¥4,650EAEH22,5007T) ©

Reversion yield, taking into account of the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property and prevailing
market condition, ranging from 4.6% to
5.0% (2021: 5.0% t0 6.0%).
ZRIBERESWAENE  MERERRED
o BHRENEHEEEAL.6%E5.0%(ZF
——E:50%%6.0%) °

Monthly market rents, taking into account
of time, location and individual factors
such as frontage and size, between the
comparable and the property, ranging from
RMB241 to RMB650 (2021: RMB320 to
RMB800) per square meter per month.
TR  HRRERMERNERS 2 BN
EARR > MAaRkFE  EATHEHREAR
AR ST ARHEARE 4L TEARE
6507 (ZBZ—4 : AR¥320EARKES00
7o) °

An increase in the unit sale rate
used would result in an increase in
the fair value measurement of the
investment properties by the same
percentage increase, and vice versa.
FEMEHERR—B LA BRE
WENATEBHERFRENEDLE
> RZ7RA

Aslight increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
significant decrease in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
FIANRRENEREEEEH LA &
SRENMENATEEHAEEEATH
2754 ©

A slight increase in the monthly
market rent used would result in a
significant increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
FENSATRHEEEEM LA 82
REMENATEEHEREALA R
2R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 &M BIWRERM T

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

note:  As at 31 December 2022, following the increase in occupancy rate, valuation techniques for
investment properties in Hong Kong with carrying amount of approximately HK$932,500,000
have been changed from direct comparison method to income capitalisation method in
deriving a more representative fair value.

As at 31 December 2021, following by completion of re-development for investment
properties in Hong Kong with carrying amount of approximately HK$914,900,000, the
respective valuation techniques have been changed from residual method to direct
comparison in deriving a more representative fair value.
The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021 were measured using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs and hence were

classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

14. I EWME (48)

Wi BE-E--#+-B=+—H BELEELHA-
BE B 492581 932,500,000 THY B BB EE »
BRI ER AT BB AN A R R BA(E U
BHEAREMNATEE o

RIEZ—F+ZA=+—0 ' BERAEENEE
914,900,000 TR EBREMENEETH, » 18R
ERNEHRGIFRAERLBRBHERERR
HNATEE -
T E__HF+__RA=+—HBKR-ET_—
F+ZHA=1+—HFEREMENLTF
BEDMNABATRENERHAZE
ZEEEM Mo BEARTEEREES
=#RA °

FRREBAHELE =R -



uul
4
>
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BMERRHE 2
urniture,
Other fixtures, 3
Hotel leasehold motor vehicles g
land and land and Plant and and computer o
buildings buildings machinery equipment Total b=
EELi HithiEL il BB S
RigF RigF MRk ERRERE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BB BT BT
COST 7%
At 1 January 2021 RZE_—&—HA—H 1,117,575 105,136 50,807 326,588 1,600,106
Currency realignment ExFER = = 1,372 760 2,132
Additions g - - 3,018 14,706 17,724
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) WKEEIBAT (Hizk35) 471,507 = = 108,361 579,868
Disposals HE — - - (6,121) (6,121)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+-F=1+—-H 1,589,082 105,136 55,197 444 294 2,193,709
Currency realignment i (27,700) - (4,333) (6,110) (38,143)
Additions 110 12,919 = 4,900 24,600 42,419
Disposals HE - - (323) (9,792) (10,115)
At 31 December 2022 RZE--“F#+-F=+—-H 1,574,301 105,136 55,441 452 992 2,187,870
DEPRECIATION AND RER MM
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2021 RZE_—&—HA—-H 35,609 22,172 30,050 116,643 204474
Currency realignment ERE - - 826 777 1,603
Charge for the year TEESH 33,253 2,370 3,547 32,795 71,965
Eliminated on disposals PSR = - - (2,467) (2,467)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—-F+-A=+-H 68,862 24542 34,423 147,748 275,575
Currency realignment B (27) - (2,756) (2,035) (4,818)
Charge for the year AEETH 44353 2,385 3,447 49,116 99,301
Eliminated on disposals R ERE - - (270) (3,385) (3,655)
At 31 December 2022 RIE-“F#+-HF=1+—-H 113,188 26,927 34,844 191,444 366,403
CARRYING VALUE IRE{E
At 31 December 2022 RZE--“#+-HF=1+-H 1,461,113 78,209 20,597 261,548 1,821,467
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-%#+"B=1+—H 1,520,220 80,594 20,774 296,548 1,918,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 &M BIWRERM T

15.

notes:

(a)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
at the following rates per annum:

Hotel land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease or 2% to 3%

Other leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or

2% t0 3%
Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles and 10 —20%

computer equipment
No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The management of the Group concluded there was indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property, plant and
equipment relating to hotel operation in Hong Kong and Thailand with aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$1,154,123,000 (2021: HK$1,216,584,000) and
HK$444,888,000 (2021: HK$nil) respectively. The management of the Group estimated the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which the assets belong
based on fair value less costs of disposal. In determining the fair value of the relevant
properties, the Group engaged an independent qualified professional valuers to perform the
valuation. The hotel in Hong Kong was measured using residual approach on a
redevelopment basis. The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation included the gross
development value on completion status and estimated project redevelopment cost. While
the other hotel in Thailand was measured using income approach and discounted cash flow
projections with 3% growth rate and pre-tax discount rate of 10%.

Based on the results of the assessment, management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amount of the respective CGUs based on the fair value less cost of disposal was
higher than its carrying amount. No impairment is recognised for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

15. M%¥ - BERRE (&)

sk

(a)

LM% BERRFEEENREREENUTIIEX
e

BIELHRIEF BEEZENERS
2% E 3%

HtfE Lt RigF EE 2 N EH
2% E 3%

R K3 10%

Rifh B BE K 10-20%

BB

AR SHRNE o

FEREEBAALFERENS  LARNBKREE
#) A B¥L154,123000(Z 2 Z—F: Bl
1,216,584,0007c) K #% 444,888,000 7T (ZE=—
FRB)NEHREERREBEEEEZNE  BERR
BETT RENE - AEREREREATEERRE
ERAMEHEEMBNREELEUNEREE &
RERRNENATEER  r&EZEEIAER
EEGEMETIEME - FRBERBRBREHE
ERER - ARGERMMENTIERTRESAE
BEETRENERSEENEHREEERE - &
EREBERRARAZNERRERBRGEN
FREREA3% > HABRER10% o

REFEER > 2EWERERT > BATEERE
HEMFHE HHREELEMZTREESHESR
HEHBE -BE_F__ER-ZT-_-%+_8
=Zt+—HIEFEBRETHE o



16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FHEEE
Leased
properties
HEME
HK$'000
BT
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-Z&+-RA=+—H
Carrying amount EEE 2,307
As at 31 December 2021 AZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H
Carrying amount e 5,629
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HECS-E+-RASt+—HULEE
Depreciation charge ITE 3,041
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z--F+-A=t+—-HLEE
Depreciation charge IE 3,446
2022 2021
k- St ZEI-fF
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Expenses relating to short-term leases BEHREEENER 3,912 3,952
Total cash outflow for leases HERSTHEE 1,124 7,614
Additions to right-of-use assets EREGELN - 3,054

The Group leases various offices, director and staff quarters for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
one to fifteen years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for various
offices, director and staff quarters. As at 31 December 2022
and 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the expense relating to
short-term leases recognised above.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, lease liabilities of
HK$3,054,000 are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of HK$3,054,000.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

FEFEAKEEFHEIMAE - ESR
MEIEE HESRANEEFHA—
FE+LF - HERREZREENER
MEREN > EFEIZBAEER
MEM - AEBEHEER SR TG
AETHEERVRAMREY > SRAGENERIL
HEE & E IR FIITEVHAR

rEETHAZSHEE EEKETHE
UG AEESER LT
RZIEZ—F+ZHB=+—H " %
HEASEE P ERAEEEMANE
Bz EHASHE M -
glE—=——+"H=+—H> &
B EANE3,054,000 c AHRBAERES
E B3 054,000 T B T HEE o

BT HEARSENEEEETIEFRE
mhh > HEBERARMEFEMAOE -
HENEEFSRFEENERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of properties under

development for sale of approximately HK$1,474,233,000

(2021: HK$1,313,819,000) was expected to be realised after

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of properties held
for sale of approximately HK$344,204,000 (2021:
HK$459,620,000) and HK$11,714,000 (2021:
HK$11,714,000) are located in the PRC and Hong Kong,
respectively.

The carrying amount of leasehold lands approximately
HK$868,129,000 (2021:HK$948,508,000) is measured at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The residual values are determined as the estimated
disposal value of the leasehold land component. No depreciation
charge is made on the leasehold lands taking into account the
estimated residual values as at 31 December 2022.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an expense
during the year amounted to approximately HK$81,755,000
(2021: HK$152,697,000).

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

mE R AR M EE

17. SHERRPYE SLHEME

RZBE__F+"RB=+—H>FHE
ERAIAYWERBENABE
1,474,233,000c (Z B - —4F : A&
1,313,819,0007c) FEfAE SRS AR+
BRBER -
RZE__F+"B=+—H > FHE
YEIRMEEA A B 344,204,0007T (=
T —4F [ B18459,620,000 7T) RAA
117140000 (222 —5F © B
11,714,000 75) BRI P E R & o

HMELIHMNEREBEENOAS BIK
868,129,000t ( —_ T - —F: A I
948,508,000 7T) MR s iB = E A Rt
ENEAREERLTE - FFEERR
HELMBINTRALEEEMETE °
EZRI B F+ZRA=+—HMN
STRIRERE > WAHBE L MEIRITE
&R o

FR BERIAHIZEHEYMERS
4 AHBIER81,755,000 (=8 = —4 :
152,697,000 7T) ©

18. AEE KN

2022 2021

—EC-C R

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Cost of investments in joint ventures — unlisted RERSELEZHRA— L 90,660 90,660

Loans advanced to joint ventures (note d) BHISBLE (Hizd) 364,268 187,089
Share of post-acquisition results and other PR e R St EIES

comprehensive income, net of dividends IREWERE
received 116,334 151,806
571,262 429,555




18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. A8 XK= (48)
Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 31 Ty AKXKEBNR _T__F£+_H
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows: =+—HRZIE-_—F+”"“HB=+—8

BATEGERE !

Place of Proportion Proportion
incorporation/ Class of of ownership of voting
Name of company Notes operations shares held interest power held Principal activities
RELELR Wit RN EEM FRiSRIRIVER AR FERERZILE TEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
k- bt 3 kSt ZECCE k- St 3
Value Investing Group Company (@) Hong Kong/Japan Ordinary 0% 50% 0% 50%  Property investment
Limited (“Value Investing”) EA/BE EiER MELE
EEREERERAR
Clear Miles Hong Kong (b)  Hong Kong/Australia Ordinary 0% 50% 0% 50%  Property investment
Limited (“Clear Miles") &8/ 1M LiEk MERE
AM 310 Ann Strest Investor (c) Australia Ordinary 15% 15% 15% 15%  Property investment
Unit Trust (“Ann Street Unit Trust”) | EiER MELE

The Group and the other joint venturers are contractually agreed AEEAEHMEEERGONTED ZE
sharing of control and have rights to the net assets of these HE TEANELEHEBNFEENE
entities. The decisions about the relevant activities of these 1l ° ARELERNMERZEHRER
entities required unanimous consent of the Group and the other BEAEENMAEMEGESTN—RER -
joint venturers. Accordingly, these investments are accounted It ERBEEDHEEEEAR -

for as joint ventures.

Notes: MifeE

(a) In November 2017, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value (@) KZ?ZEE‘I'TH ’ Zt%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ/’\&_ﬂ(ri%
Partners Group Limited (“Value Partners”) to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in #)) ET;‘EEEWF:’% " ﬁ%?\f%f_ﬁhﬁ%\ﬁﬁhﬂ 5004’
Value Investing which in turn through a wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the trust @Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ: ’ ﬂﬁﬁl@_ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ?EAE ' {5 100%
beneficial interests in the properties located in Japan, held under operating leases to earn RmfAAWE  RELEROURRES -
rentals.
Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Value Investing and the financial ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ i Zt%ﬁ%fﬁﬁfé%ﬁ[‘ AR B
results and financial positions of Value Investing is incorporated in the Group’s consolidated EJE%UE"J‘TEH ’ ﬁ@@kiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. fqgﬁﬁﬂkﬂ s RO ES ATEBRNGSHBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 &M BIWRERM T

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) In September 2018, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value
Partners to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Clear Miles which in turn through a
wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the beneficial interests in the properties located in

Australia, held under operating leases to earn rentals.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Clear Miles and the financial results
and financial positions of Clear Miles is incorporated in the Group’s consolidated financial

statements using the equity method of accounting.

On 21 December 2021, the Group and Value Partners have agreed with Clear Miles under a
contribution agreement (“Contribution Agreement”) that each of the shareholders will inject
by way of interest-free and unsecured shareholder loan with no fixed repayment date of
AUD55,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$307,340,000) pro rata to their respective

equity interest in Clear Miles.

Such contribution is to enable Clear Miles to acquire 25% attributable interest in a property
situated at Kent Street, Sydney (“Property”) (with each of the Group and Value Partners
acquiring 12.5% attributable interest in the Property) through the subscription of an
aggregate of 110,000,000 units in the AM Kent Street Investor Trust at an issue price of
AUD1 per unit at a total consideration of AUD110,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$614,680,000). 11,000,000 units are to be subscribed on or before 21 December 2021
while the remaining 99,000,000 units are to be subscribed on 31 March 2022. Advances of
the shareholders loan under the Contribution Agreement are to be made by the Group and
Value Partners in tranches as required by Clear Miles to meet its subscription payment
obligations. During the year, the Group made an advance of shareholder loan to Clear Miles
amounting to AUD49,500,000 (approximately HK$279,131,000) (2021: AUD 5,500,000

(approximately HK$30,734,000)) under the Contribution Agreement.

(c) In February 2021, the Group entered into a unit holder deed with Valuer Partners and AM
310 Ann Street Equity Pty Ltd to establish Ann Street Unit Trust which holds 100% of the
trust beneficial interests the land and buildings located at 310 Ann Street, Brishane in
Queensland, held under operating leases to earn rentals, at a consideration of approximately

AUD15,000,000 (approximately HK$90,660,000).

Upon establishment of Ann Street, the Group exercises joint control over Ann Street Unit
Trust and the financial results and financial positions of Ann Street Unit Trust is
incorporated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements using the equity method of

accounting.

(d) Loans advanced to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment
terms. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the loans are considered as part of

the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures.

The consolidated financial information of Value Investing, which
is prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards, is set out below:

18. A8 XK= (B)
Wi ()

(b)

RIBE-N\ENB sEEHREETUEE R B
AClear Miles 50% KB #1TRe A » B EH 2B E
AR FHEL00%ERNRMNIE  RELCERAOYN
BT o

RH5H% » REEH Clear Miles B FIZEHIAI#
712 MiClear Miles BB B £ EM MM » B LUER
HEAEEN SHBRET -

RZB-_—-&+-B-+—-H > s4EKEEEA
Clear Miles ZR—IAL B (THEWE) » UK
RRZHE B Clear MilesHIRIELLH > LR E -« &
IR & EEE R H R R E R 155,000,000
7o (FERAEE 307,340,000 7) WA LE

ZEHERThE Clear MilesBUBBREEMREL
TR ITEREZETE110,000,000 BB S
U B — A & Kent Street 941 (TEM%)) B
5%ENERE(FERNEESANEZMEN
12.5% FEfhER) » AR EARE 110,000,000 7t (18
ER##%614,680,0007T) ° 11,000,000fHE I E
RIEZ—F+ZBZ+—-HHAZHRE,; RkiET
99,000,000 AENER_E__F=A=1+—HF
EoHERRETRRETNETEHAERRSE
HRiE Clear Miles WERAHEH > UBTHRERR
Bt o £FER AERRELERZER Clear MilesE
TR ETCREE 49 500,000 7T (49781 279,131,000
7)) (ZEZ—%F: B15500,0007 7t (4 # #&
30,734,0007%)) °

RIEZ—EZF > AEEEFEMAM 310 Ann
Street Equity Pty Ltd S5:TEMIRA AL » BILAn
Street Unit Trust » &ZfEsERFA MR BT EMAEHN
310 Ann Street B9 T AN EHAM 100% St B 1
HRBEERANBRAS KBHARK
15,000,000 7t (437#%# 90,660,000 7) ©

RH5EME » NEEH Ann Street Unit Trust B[R
PEEIRORE S > T Ann Street Unit Trust B9E475 4 R18+
B BUES LA ARERN G S BRKA

mEETERENERARER REEEEEER
R AAREEAAAEREEAGELEREN
—&5 o

THABEREEMARADRBERE
BTSRRI S S A TSR ©

2022 2021

ZECCHE -t

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Current assets MHEE 1,058 808

Non-current assets FREgEE 431,265 606,976

Current liabilities nEaf 112,634 304,742

Cash and cash equivalents RERFSEEER 1,058 808
Current financial liabilities (excluding other RENH AR (TOEEMETRNNEHE)

payables and provisions) 112,525 304,605
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. @& ¥ = (&) E

X

2022 2021 §

ZECCE —BC-F ~

HK$'000 HKS$'000 g

BETR BT -

Profit for the year FEERF 16,364 38,664 L
Other comprehensive income for the year FEEEMEENE 2173 210
Total comprehensive income for the year TEERERELE 16,637 38,874

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial Y F{EEBEEBRERATZIHitES

information of Value Investing to the carrying amount of the BAFB RIS ELZSHFBIRTRDEL
interest in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated SE RS .
financial statements:

2022 2021

k- ot k- St

HK$000 HK$'000

BETR BT

Net assets BEFE 319,689 303,042

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in FEEFGEBEREERERARZ

Value Investing FERELEZ S 50% 50%

159,845 151,521

Deemed investments HRAREME 66,052 156,355

Pre-acquisition profits BB (5,080) (5,080)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in KEENBEREERERAT ZERRER

Value Investing 220,817 302,796

The summarised financial information below represents the W TF#fif Z Bt FEERHEREBNERIE
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually BEAZ SE ¥ LR .
material:

2022 2021
ZEICE “EC-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
The Group's share of (loss) profit for the year REEREBAS (5518) i5A (32,309) 8,042
The Group's share of other comprehensive AEEXERFEEMEZESH
expense for the year (5,495) -
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AEEXERMERE (HH) B
(expense) income for the year (37,804) 8,042
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEARZAE 7 ERIREERE
interests in these joint ventures 350,445 126,759
247
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19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI AND FINANCIAL

ASSETS AT FVTPL

AT F5 R R MY 5

19. BRAFEESHARMEEREZ
BETARBAFEEFART

ZEMBEE
Financial Equity
assets instruments
notes at FVTPL at FVTOC! Total
HATEETA
BATREHA Rft2EE2
Mz Bz EmMEE fEHTE an
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
2022 —ECCE
Listed equity securities LHREES (a) 18,866 259 19,125
Unlisted equity securities ELEhREES (b) - 233,966 233,966
Perpetual capital securities EIRIEELHES (c) - 41,595 41,595
18,866 275,820 294,686
Analysed as: NiEA .
Listed in Hong Kong REBLH 18,866 41,854 60,720
Unlisted L - 233,966 233,966
18,866 275,820 294,686
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  L{EREZBR1EA
Non-current assets EhEEE 215,820
Current assets MHEE 18,866
294,686
Financial Equity
assets instruments
notes at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
BATEEHA
BRATEEA Hitr2ENE
Mz BRzEHEE BRIA e
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BB
2021 —E--§
Listed equity securities FhREES (a) 17,620 357 17,977
Unlisted equity securities EEhRAES (b) - 256,212 256,212
Perpetual capital securities ERRELSES (c) - 48,070 48,070
17,620 304,639 322,259
Analysed as: AL
Listed in Hong Kong REALS 17,620 48,427 66,047
Unlisted kLt - 256,212 256,212
17,620 304,639 322,259
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  LEREZBREA .
Non-current assets ErEEE 304,639
Current assets THEE 17,620
322,259




19.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI AND FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED)

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets

at FVTPL that are denominated in currencies other than the

functional currency of the relevant group entity are set out

below:

19. HATEEAAHMZEWREZ
BETARKAFEENAED
ZEMEE (&)

A& B LB R B B AR ThAE & HE LS T

BEZRAFEEFAEMEEIKE Z#

mTAREATEEFABRZEME

EWT

Denominated
in United States
dollars (“US$”)

HERSIE

HK$'000

BT

As at 31 December 2022 RZE2_"F#+_B=+-H 61,074
As at 31 December 2021 RZE_—&+-A=1—H 74,095

notes:

(a)

()

As at 31 December 2022, listed equity securities classified as financial instruments at
FVTOCI held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$259,000 (2021: HK$357,000) are
carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company disposed one of the Group’s listed
equity securities following the privatisation of that listed issuer for a cash consideration of
HK$357,468,000, with a gain of HK$43,664,000 transferred from investment revaluation
reserve to accumulated profits upon disposal.

As at 31 December 2022, unlisted equity securities classified as financial instruments at
FVTOCI held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$233,966,000 (2021:
HK$256,212,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held perpetual capital securities amounting to
approximately HK$41,595,000 (2021: HK$48,070,000) which are carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Such investments are issued in August 2020 and July 2019 with
a fixed distribution rate of 5.5% and 5.7% per annum payable semi-annually for the first
five years and reset to the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury plus the initial margin every five
years thereafter.

st

(a) WIBIZE+ZA=+-B FEERFEURS
HANATEENE  PEARATEBEHAHMS
HRE 2z EE TEN EHRAEHNAEE 259,000
T (ZEZ—£ : #¥357,0007T) °

EHE2021F12831 ANEER » FRFHELHHE
TARLBERUREAERE 357,468,000 THESR
ERMEP-EEmRAES  HERAKNZEY
43,664,000 THREELHFBARHEF o

() RIFBZZF+-B=+-0 sEBMFAEURSE
BANATEENE  DEARATEES AR ME
HWEZ#ETANFETREAZSNAHEY
233,966,0007T (ZEZ—4F : ##256,212,0007c) °

(c) MIBZZE+-A=+—H ' FEEMBZEURE
HANATEENE Y EABERPESEENS
415950007 (ZBZ—4 : ##48,070,000
T) c REHENR_E_EENRR_Z-hELR%
7 RERECASESSLR5.7% BRESYE
KE—R HASXSIENERZFAEREXMNS
MBREXEE o

=
=z
=
=
o
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=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

20. INVENTORIES 20. F8
2022 2021
k- ekt 2 -2
HK$’000 HK$'000
RETT BT
The Group’s inventories comprise: rEEERAE:
Raw materials EMEL 2,078 2,396
Work in progress E 8,240 12,411
Finished goods RS 19,560 18,542
Other inventories & 3,116 2,212
32,994 35,561
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during MNRAFEERIEASTHZEERERNAE

the year amounted to approximately HK$75,687,000 (2021:
HK$79,573,000).

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

75 687,000c(— = —4F: B
79,573,0007T) °©

21. BERRHEMBUIRTR

2022 2021

- et - 3 —E-—&

HK$'000 HK$'000

i BEFR

Trade receivables B o REIRERET 39,138 37,562
Lease receivables HEEKH 5,673 11,697
44,811 49,259

Deposits paid Bfifls 15,323 10,396
Other receivables and prepayments Hit KRS R TR (R 42,141 51,664
VAT receivables el e ERR 46,193 24,207
148,414 135,526

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to HK$29,358,000.

notes:

(a) Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers pursuant to the
terms of the sale and purchase agreements. There is no credit period given on billing for
rental of properties. Monthly rent are payable in advance by the tenants. Trade customers or
tenants settle their accounts with an average credit period of 30 to 90 days. The aged
analysis of trade receivables and lease receivables of approximately HK$44,811,000 (2021:

A B —F—B—H ' EREHNZE
5 EURBR TN A 81 29,358,000 7T ©
Wit

(a) EBEXREEANENERMHEENEZAE  HNE
MERERAEEH BEEBRGAR -BREFIM
FRIRFH30-90 B2 EBHMEN « RAREHE
REZAHAAEZERBERRAERREROBE
44,811,0007t (ZSZ—4% : #%49,259,0007%) Z

HK$49,259,000) presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as RECDITINT ¢
follows:

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Within 30 days 30HA 16,775 15,816
Between 31 days to 90 days 31Z90H 18,677 21,180
Over 90 days BiB90H 9,359 12,263
44,811 49,259

As at 31 December 2022, included in the trade receivable and lease receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$10,620,000 (2021: HK$14,227,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$2,906,000 (2021: HK$7,335,000) were past
due and aged over 90 days at the end of reporting period but the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. Debtors that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
customers that have a good track record of credit with the Group. Based on past credit
history, the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered to be fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

R-B__F+_A=+—H st AREBRYERD
AEEFRWERREERKIRR 2 ERREEES
#1510,620,0007c (ZS = —4F : 14,227,000
) RESHEAH - AHGET REEABE
2,906,000 M EWERH(Z B _—F: B
7,335,00070) > HARESHN RS HIREBBIA0H
FEBUEMZEERZAEBRH RS MR A
EEEFBENERLTRRY > SURAABHMEY
RMEAERE REBENEELH EEEDA
LEERNEEERRBEANE  BRENRIAS
Ax2fE RtEERZEERRAERE A&
B w2 SRR R A TR o
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 21. B REMEUERER (&) 2
notes: (Continued) Wik : (48) E
(¢) Al of the Group’s trade receivables and lease receivables are denominated in the functional ~ (¢) ZAEBFBEZEKEINBERKIEIULEER =_°°|
currency of the individual entities within the Group. BRI ERZINAEEESIE o 8
(d)  Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in note 37h. (d) EHEZREMEWRRDRERETG  FEENITE g
37be wt

22. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE 22. FAZEBEIMBMZERIRGTE

MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/BANK ;BT ERRRS

BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from $R{ITERMEUTBFRAEHF L »
0.01% to 0.5% (2021: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. The fixed TFEF0.01%ZE0.5%(ZF_—%F:
deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 1.06% to 5.37% 0.01% ZE0.35%) ° EHEFEHRMBEEEF)
(2021: 0.11% to 4.3%) per annum. B NFEF1.06%EL37% (ZE_—
F:0.11%FE4.3%) ©

The Group’s bank balances and fixed bank deposits that are ZAEBEUIEIEBEEERERINFES Kt
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of {ERIRITEREEHARITER > IRYIWM

the relevant group entity are set out below: T
Denominated in
Japanese Yen Denominated Denominated Denominated
(“JPY”) in HK$ in RMB in US$
LRE5IE LEksIE HMAR¥SSIE EIE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT
As at 31 December 2022 KZE-Z£+-B=+-R 77,658 408 616,561 185,516
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZA=1+-H = 1,382 728,940 79,555

Details of pledge and impairment assessment are set out in I3 R E A B MIEE31 K&37b ©
notes 31 and 37b.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ERREMBETIRRR
2022 2021
ZE-C —B--%
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETR BUETFR
Trade payables BREMRN 9,599 8,264
Construction costs and retention payables EARERARELFES 136,570 192,666
Deposits received in respect of rental of RENERS ZEWEL
investment properties 130,582 137,708
Rentals receipt in advance B 11,597 13,662
Deposits received (note) BliRS (M) 153,433 167,639 251
Other payables HAFEfRH 45,757 45361 =
487,538 565,300 2
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months # : ¥+ —EARZISBKABEE ﬁ
shown under current liabilities (381,153) (458,154) B
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown R+—{ARAZHEEREEE s
under non-current liabilities 106,385 107,146 o
note:  The amounts represent refundable deposits received from subcontractors for the purpose of ~ Mist | SBEARU P EHREUEMNTRERSE  UBFRER :}T
securing their performance in respect of construction contracts in favour of the Group. REFRAERNBESRNETT I

BEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the

23. E5 R HMEMSRMR (8)
B2 R R IRES U ZE ZEHE DAY

invoice date. & @
2022 2021
- et 3 B
HK$'000 HK$'000
i BEFR
Within 30 days 308A 9,599 8,264

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

24. LEASE LIABILITIES

BESYZFI9EEHA30R - A5
EHEMBREIGEEER » UREFRAE
FEM BRI EE RIS AT ©

24. THEEE

2022 2021
—BCfF —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT M T
Lease liabilities payable: EfifiEaH:
Within one year —ER 2,433 3,253
Within a period of more than one year but not more —&F#%ETRBBMHE
than two years n 2,663
2,504 5,916
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months 3§ : ¥+ —{EEREHEEE
shown under current liabilities (2,433) (3,253)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown R+—{EE%IHEZIERHEE
under non-current liabilities n 2,663
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. &R
2022 2021
ot Skt 3 —E--fF
note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mzt #BTR ET T
Sales of properties MR (a) 8,401 9,693
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRETEAFEERINKSZFEZS/DE
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. EHESANEERR
Sales of properties
MEHE
2022 2021
ot - 3 B
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTR BETT
Revenue recognised that was included RENRRAEaNER
in the contract liabilities balance at the BREEA
beginning of the year 9,693 771




2
s
=
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 25. §&EE (8) =
)
As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to RZTZ—F—F—H > aHN&REE
HK$771,000. 238 771,000 7T © Z
notes: M5 g
(a)  Sales of properties (a) YIEHE b
The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase FEERBEERZNEIENELANEE  KBEE
agreement. The deposits result in contract liabilities being recognised until the customer RENEERED  BEERANBETITYENZEH
obtains control of the completed property. 1o

(b)  Contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period are expected to be recognised as ~ (b) ~ SERSHANSHNEEEAEET—ERIARA ©
revenue in subsequent year.

26. BORROWINGS 26. 8™
2022 2021
ot Skt 3 —B-—fF
notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mzt EBTT BT
Secured bank borrowings BikmsR1TE 1,301,793 1,369,864
Unsecured bank borrowings WIS 900,000 479,000
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FE{tIEERRERIE (@) 6,527 10,358
2,208,320 1,859,222
The carrying amounts of the secured bank ~ HiBEEESARBERE (b)
borrowings that are repayable:
Within one year —FR 85,703 74,487
Within a period of more than one year but —FHERBEME
not exceeding two years 918,370 64,094
Within a period of more than two years but ~ RHE&BRBBRE
not exceeding five years 108,336 989,806
More than five years BRLE 189,384 241 477
1,301,793 1,369,864
The carrying amounts of unsecured bank ERBRTERNREBESS
borrowings that contain a repayable on EEREBERD (BTERY
demand clause (shown under current BET) BEEE:
liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year —ER 900,000 479,000
The carrying amounts of other borrowings that EtEZNERBESZEKREBEED
contain a repayable on demand clause 6,527 10,358
2,208,320 1,859,222

Less: Amounts due within one year shown A ERSERET—ER
under current liabilities BEMSEE (992,230) (563,845)

1,216,090 1,295,377

253

| BT E%xTHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

26.

notes:

(a)

27.

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2021, an
amount of approximately HK$263,000 bears variable interest at an effective interest rate of
1.41% per annum, while the remaining amounts are non-interest bearing. As at 31
December 2022, the entire amount is non-interest bearing.

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

As at 31 December 2022, HK$ denominated secured bank borrowings of approximately
HK$945,800,000 (2021: HK$993,400,000) and unsecured borrowings of approximately
HK$900,000,000 (2021: HK$479,000,000), RMB denominated secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$22,411,000 (2021: HK$24,487,000) and Thai Bahts (“THB") denominated
secured bank loans of approximately HK$333,582,000 (2021: HK$349,531,000) are variable-
rate bank borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR plus a margin of 0.9% to 1.25% (2021:
0.8% to 1.25%) per annum, 100% (2021: 100%) of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”)
prescribed interest rate per annum and Minimum Loan Rate announced by the Bank of
Thailand (“MLR”) minus 1.5%, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, RMB denominated bank loans of approximately HK$2,446,000 are
fixed-rate bank borrowings which carry interest at 4.75% per annum. The balance was
settled during the year.

The effective interest rates ranged from 4.5% to 5.6% (2021: 0.96% to 4.82%) per annum.
Details of assets pledged are set out in note 31.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract to

manage its exposure to currency exchange fluctuation on its

operations in Japan with principal amount of JPY305,000,000

at fixed currency exchange rate of Japanese Yen (“JPY”) to HK$
at 0.07 and due in 2021. Under this swap contract, the Group
would receive interest monthly at a floating rate of HIBOR plus

1.44% per annum based on the principal amount of

approximately HK$21,320,000 and pay interest monthly at

fixed rate at 1.19% per annum based on the principal amount
of JPY305,000,000. The swap contract was matured in July
2021.

. AW (8])

Bﬁ&

(@) ZEENABRERRAREXREE R-F_—-F
+ZA=+—R> ©EK263,000 T2 RESFRF
BHRHE ﬁ[‘“ﬂx?&’éﬁl 41% > BRERAIA RS o
RZBZZE+-RA=+—R > 2BEBRHHE -

b))  BRRREERGERBRTER BRI

) RIB-Z&E+ZA=+—8  WEEIIEZEER
$R1TE H B 945,800,000 (ZE-—F: B
993 400, 0007T) R % &7 &% 900,000,000 7T

(ZEZ—%: #15479,000,0007T) » UAREFIE
ZIRITERBB22411,0007t (ZB-—F: B
24,487,000 70) MM R #FIEZ B IERRTET A
333,582,0007% (ZB = —4 : #1349,531,0007T)
AHNANEBETRAEREHFESM0.9%E1.25% (=

TT—F08%E1.25%) MERENIEETR R

BL100% (ZE=—4% : 100%) ZHE A RRITHRER
EHZ B ENRRERTARNREEDRFIER1L.5% o

RIEZ—S+ZA=+—H ' AREHENRTE
RK BB 446,000 TAE TR RER XS
4 75% o &EERERERGEE ©

BRNENTFEEL5%E5.6%(ZFZ—%F:0.96%

£4.82%) o BIEMEESERNHE31 -
27. EMEHTEIR
AEABEERXXNERENREHEGH > K
EEHETHAEZNINERBREAR &
%6 7305,000,000 H[E > R|BTEE
BXA0.07 MRS —F3H R
BEERASH  NEBERZBWER
BAREHBEE 21,320,000 TTAEBIRTT
EX2FEN1.44% FEFHAEHF S >
RESE%F1R#E 4% 305,000,000 HE
MEEMZEL19% EFERAHNFE o
BRSNS —FtBEI-



28. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

28. IREERIE
MEINGEMBRARMES » ETIEL
MIBEEREBEBECIRNYE - UTAMME
BRI B2 IEIERIBAERR D -

2022
———

2021

ce-= kS
HK$'000 HK$000

RETR AU

Deferred tax assets EIERBEE 16,898 18,414
Deferred tax liabilities EIRIEAE (325,203) (322,760)
(308,305) (304,346)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years.

Difference

UTFAEEBMNAEERN G EEDHE
B IBEERIBEE (EE) WREE
B o

Revaluation

of accounting of investment Dividend
and tax properties withholding
depreciation in the PRC tax Tax losses Total
GEHERRE BEftERE
MEZER ZIREME RSN RIERSHE i
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT AT BT AT BT
At 1 January 2021 A\_E_—&£—F—H 44,501 224,963 - (29,346) 240,118
Charge (credit) to profit or loss  PEZERFI G A) 5,561 49,936 3,900 (1,188) 58,209
Currency realignment ExE - 6,019 - - 6,019
At 31 December 2021 WZE-_—-&#+-B=1+—-H 50,062 280,918 3,900 (30,534) 304,346
Charge (credit) to profit or loss  PMEZEEHIR GIA) 3,475 22,421 (3,900) (992) 21,004
Currency realignment EXER - (17,045) - - (17,045)
At 31 December 2022 WZE__&#+"A=1+-H 53,537 286,294 - (31,526) 308,305
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax R IR EH K> FEB H B Y B &
losses of approximately HK$956,994,000 (2021: 956,994,000 c( =T = —F . B iK

HK$802,486,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$191,067,000 (2021: HK$186,201,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately
HK$765,927,000 (2021: HK$616,285,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 are tax losses of
approximately HK$2,407,000 (2021: HK$3,195,000) that will
expire within 5 years from the year of originating. Other tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

802,486,0007T) Z R BIFAMIBRER A
ERBERERM & P OB
191,067,000 c( B = —F: #B &
186,201,0007T) ERBAIRLERIEE
E o AR EATERIR K EFRIR > HER
4781 765,927,000 T (ZEBE-_—F : 8
# 616,285,000 7t) Z M IBRSE I R FERD
ARIEREBEEE - M2 ”"F+°H
=+—HB > XERREGEEFOEEE
FEEAENIANREBGEOEE
2407000 ( Z 8B Z— — F: B &
3,195,0007T) ~ HtiRIEESIHTRE R R
HEEET—FE o
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=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$76,209,000 (2021: HK$68,079,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of these
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$511,625,000 (2021:
HK$499,616,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not

28. IREMIA (&)
RIBFFETEMBRE BZTEN\E
—B—BiE » hEHEAEERBGEF M
BEIkZKREBEHMTENR - ANAER
RESEEHRCIERERE R MARM
BREERERAGR A RiGHRERE > &
HRRIGEMERRETPEHRBLAT R
iRz ERERB76,209,0007T (=
T —4F : #B¥68,079,0007T) fEHIE
JEFIESE M o

RBERR ZEETIENERERA
B#511,625,000T (ZE-_—F : B
499,616,0007T) ° AARKAISERFER
MRiEF AR E RN G R =R »

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the MW EMZEIRINEREERMBERIE
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. ERIEEE ©
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. &7
Number
of shares HK$'000
RREE BETT
Issued and fully paid: BETREERAE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and RZE--F—A—-R>
31 December 2022 —E_—%+"A=1+-Hk
Z$IZE+ZR=1-H
Ordinary shares of no par EEEZLER 378,583,440 381,535

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2012, for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees, and expired on 24 April 2022. Under the
2012 Scheme, the Company could grant options to eligible
employees, including executive directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company at HK$10
per option. Additionally, the Company could, from time to time,
grant share options to outside eligible third parties at the
discretion of the Board of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted under the 2012 Scheme was not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.
The number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted to any individual was not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

30. BRI HEAREETEY
ZIS’&TWHEE\_—\,—:EIE}%:-I-EEI

BRZRAERRMAROBPEAE(TZE
—ZF5E)) TEENRAHRERE
EREERES  ZFtEERZIE—CZ
FNB-+MBEE®R  RE-_SZ_-F
518 ARF U EEERES (B1FFA
ARERBARZHITES) IR
USSP HIREBEE 10 TR B A QT RD °
g » AT AR EMRRE > HEEY
HEREMEERIINRE=ZFRHKRD
HARE o

EREREATRRELIAET > RIE
“E - FEEAR B R B

T EBHAATNEMRERE BTN

2 10% » mEMERE R A L% L2

ROBEAESBHAQXTRTAEEE
BTN Z2 1% ©



30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price was to be determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the higher of the nominal
value of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing price of
the shares on the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2012 Scheme since it was
adopted. The 2012 Scheme expired on 24 April 2022.

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as below
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities made
available to the Group.

30. BripHAREST B (48)

RIDHAME AT IC IR I B BRRESt A F AR
RE{TE - THERFABDEFERE >
ERAMBEREABRROIRIRLBAZEE
REZFZH B AER S B Z RO F
MRHERREE R ZRHDBHEZR
S

T R E R LR EE IR
HEfE . _E—_F8N_S -
A Z+ME & ©

31. EEKMT

RIBEHER > THEECHER FIRT
MEAEERERT—MRRBITHE

2022 2021

et 2 —E-&

HK$’000 HK$'000

EBTR BT

Freehold land under hotel land and buildings EE AR EY PR A LR 552,112 238,531
Leasehold land and buildings BETHRIEF 54,211 67,076
Investment properties REYE 4,986,720 5,259,103

In addition, fixed bank deposits with more than three months to
maturity when raised amounting to HK$nil (2021:
HK$50,024,000) were pledged to banks to secure the bank
guarantee issued for the main contractors in relation to property
development project in PRC.

te4h > it F A =B B & EIE 2 E B R
THER(ZZEZ—F : #B¥50,024,000
7C) IR FIRTT > LUE R BB it ZE 5
RIE R T2 AR HAIRITER o

=
=z
=
=
o
>
=
X
m
v
o
X
|
g
#
#
b

N
(3]
~N

| BT E%xTHEE

I
L
I
I

BEEE



2

(%))
[

2202 140d3Y TYNNNY | Q3LINIT INIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHO NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fm e R AR M EE

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BEFKIE
2022 2021
k- ekt 2 -2
HK$’000 HK$'000
RETT BT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided EZABRRESHERE HREZ
in the consolidated financial statements in BAEY .
respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment/investment — % BERRE/
properties REME 5,049 8,565
— Commitment to provide shareholder loanto a — A#EmAEL2EHREER
joint venture - 280,512
— Capital commitment to unlisted equity — R EmREESNEREE
security 20,317 20,317
33. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 33. BERLOKIE
THE GROUP AS LESSOR SEEALHBAA
All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next FIBEYERERZD[H—F/N\FHEL -

one to eight years.

The Group as lessor had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments:

FEEFEAHBEASRUATRRRMER
X HEBRETA -

2022 2021

ot ekt 2 —E-—fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

RETT BT

Within one year —ER 219,097 287,213
In the second to fifth year inclusive REZZLER (BEERMF) 334,819 310,161
613,916 597,374

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a
defined contribution schemes registered under the MPF
Scheme.

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective
schemes and are charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees contribute 5% of the
relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme while the Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.

34. BAEFE
FEBABTEZGEREERTER
EMRRETE > MRS FT 8 TEEM -

FEBRBBBEZE ZEBARURE
EERMZMER > RBEGSIRERIOG -
BEEH B EEARTAUBRETE
H BAEBEEBEEDHEE - RIFMA
Rests BT ARHEAMABMMKE%
MREREEE A > MAEETFRIEER
BT ABHI5% m3RiRE st &I HR o



34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
In addition, certain employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefits schemes. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these retirement benefits
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 1 June 2021, Great Essential Holdings Limited, Premium
Access International Limited and Real Epic Holdings Limited,
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company (collectively
referred to as the “Purchasers”), had entered into a share
purchase agreement with independent third parties, namely
NYE Estate Co., Ltd, SBPS Mauritius Ltd. and two individuals
(collectively referred to as the “Sellers”). Pursuant to the share
and the
Purchasers agreed to purchase, the entire issued share capital

purchase agreement, the Sellers agreed to sell,

of Choengmon Real Estate Company Limited (“Choengmon Real
Estate”), a company with plans to construct a holiday resort on
a freehold land at the Northeastern Koh Samui District in
Thailand, for an adjusted purchase price of approximately
THB2,147,621,000 (approximately HK$501,469,000). On 13
December 2021, completion of the acquisition had taken place
following by the completion of hotel construction work and
confirmation of hotel opening date. Upon completion, the
Company, through those abovementioned indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, hold 100% equity interest in Choengmon Real
Estate.

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test in
accordance with HKFRS 3 and concluded that property, plant
and equipment is considered as a single identifiable asset.
Consequently, the Group determined that substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets (excluding cash and cash
equivalents) acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset and concluded that the acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business.

BAEFGE (8)
tesh s AEBERABERIZBBATZ
ETREEABRREBERKRENE Z MK
B -ZFEMBARARENEETES
EEmBRAREF 5T EI(FH R > LUBENEE
BER - AEEHRZFRABHFEZ
ME—BETEHIEE R -

35. WESKIE A H
—E—FXB—H’> AREZEER
BB A
Limited ~ Premium Access International
Limited Bz Real Epic Holdings Limited (4t
WIEER)) BEBIE=ATIRNE
E 1% > BINYE Estate Co., Ltd. ~ SBPS
Mauritius Ltd. A& EA (FHBIEH ) o
REROEENRZ BEAREHE M
B 7 [ & B 5 Choengmon Real Estate
Company Limited (TChoengmon Real
Estate)) W& E#EITRA » ZABE
ERBEIEIEESRICEPRIKAFEE T L
BE—EERBH  KABRENEESE
1§ 4 %2,147,621 oooﬁ ®(WAEE
501,469,0007t) e —E - —%+_"H
+=8> WERBEERTETHRRBE
[EFRZEBHARENEBTH - Tl % > =2
AEBLEEEEZENBABESR
Choengmon Real Estate 100% HIBZHE o

&) Great Essential Holdings

FEREZREFEMFRESERF IR
FERAEEMEDRIE > BTAME - K
B R ERRm— B #AIEE - Ft
FEEBREWENREE (FREEREM
REFEER) WEFRAEATEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RECOGNISED AT THE DATE OF
ACQUISITION

fm e R AR M EE

35. BB 28 ()
HEHMBEEZNEENAR

HK$'000
BT
Property, plant and equipment E  BERRE 579,868
Other receivables HitpElEr 2,296
Bank balances and cash TR RRE 42,463
Trade and other payables B B REMETRR (7,342)
Bank borrowings FITET (347,448)
Shareholder’s loan EIEN (115,816)
154,021
Consideration was satisfied by: REZFU
Consideration paid in cash RETANRE 154,021
Assignment of bank borrowings (note) SBITER () 347,448
501,469
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition of It Choengmon Real Estate 4
Choengmon Real Estate: REMHEE .
Consideration paid in cash YRS ZANAE 154,021
Less: bank balances and cash acquired B RITERREENRE (42,463)
111,558

note:  Upon completion, the bank borrowings of approximately THB1,488,000,000 (approximately

HK$347,448,000) had assigned to the Group in accordance with the share purchase
agreement.

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net cash, which
includes the borrowings, net of bank deposits and cash, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

MzE: % B %> #1,488,000,000% #%( 4 # &

347,448,000 70) MRITEREBRETAERE o

36. EXEBER
FEBHEEAETER ) URREAE
EETESERTEERSASEEER
g BARRATEBHERS ZEEFTE
> ARRERRALIR AEBMZE
R A E M mE L o

FEBZEXNEBHFRE (BEER
HRRITERRIRE) KA AT RREMD
i (BEE R TRAKRZIEMRE) 46K

EABDEZEMRABESEE - FAR
NZz—8D EFEREAMAERBIL
EEZHBARRE RIEEFZER > &
ERREBZARE « FITHMRUKRE
THEERNBEORARES AN TEHHE
BEBAREE -



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
37A.CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

37. EMIT A
37A. &M I AN

2022 2021

. et -
HK$’000 HK$'000
i BT
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL WATBEFAESZEHEE 18,866 17,620
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEEHARMZEKGE ERZTE 275,820 304,639
Financial assets at amortised cost MBHRAARNERHEE 2,097,071 2,303,688
Financial liahilities b0
Amortised cost HIERA 2,671,603 2,396,321
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37B. B EIGEEEBIEREE

POLICIES

Details of the Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), liquidity risk, and credit risk and impairment
assessment. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities, including intra-group balances at the end of
the reporting period that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant entities are as
follows:

ZETMIAZFRNERMMERR
B-UZFTRMIAMERAZRAREES
SRR (R ER - FRERRESR
%) ~ RBEZ AR - FERERREET
it - BRANAFEZERRZBEERET
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i
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1) HEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIEBIEREE (45)

Market risk (Continued) hiEE b (48)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued) ) EEEE (&
Assets Liahilities
BE &R
2022 2021 2022 2021
k- b —E-— —ECCE —E-—&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR BETFT BETR BT
Group £0
HK$ against RMB e | R 408 1,382 - -
JPY against HK$ AER B 71,658 - - -
US$ against HK$ e i 246,590 153,650 = -
RMB against HK$ ARERBE 616,561 728,940 - -
Intra-group balances EEATRRER
HK$ against RMB B \ Rk 103,784 113,393 1,204,395 1,260,517
THB against HK$ RHR A 110,616 123,504 = -

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1%
(2021: 1%) increase and decrease in HK$ against US$ and
10% (2021: 10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against JPY,
RMB and THB. The respective percentages are the sensitivity
rates used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and also intra-
group balances denominated in foreign currencies and adjusts
their translation at the year end for the respective percentages
change in the exchange rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
or equity where HK$ weaken 1% (2021: 1%) against US$ and
HK$ weaken 10% (2021: 10%) against JPY, RMB and THB.
For a 1% (2021: 1%) strengthening of the HK$ against US$
and HK$ strengthening 10% (2021: 10%) against RMB and
THB, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Z< 5 [ B A0 3 8 5 BE ¥R R o AT
EEESERMEZOIIERR  TEE
BEREREZEH P EINERRKIR o

BRE D

TREFSETEEHBERETEER LFH
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THE - A\EBKRRHBKEX EA KR TR’
10% (ZEBEZ—F:10%) NBERKE - &
EESLBREATETEEEASE
%EH#FE%E’J'&&WHI:E ﬁi%? EE}E
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1 T8 I e DU S 1 1 0 5 B 2 ) S
B EHERSBNEH LRBEEFR
e o

TRAEHRTABBERETRELR (Z
E_—F:1%) REHE - AREMZR
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIREERECE (48)

Market risk (Continued) hiZE b (48)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued) 1) EMERE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE S ()
2022 2021
=g== —3- =
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BETT
Profit or loss fiE
HK$ against RMB BEIARE (34) (115)
US$ against HK$ ET R 1,549 664
RMB against HK$ ARBER K 51,483 60,866
JPY against HK$ HEREE 6,484 -
Other comprehensive income Hit2Eikis
HK$ against RMB BESARE 110,061 114,712
US$ against HK$ EREE 611 741
THB against HK$ TSR B (11,062) (12,350)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate fixed bank deposits, lease liabilities and borrowings
(see notes 22, 24 and 26 for details). The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank
balances and borrowings (see notes 22 and 26 for details). The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly attributable to
fluctuation of HIBOR and prevailing interest rates offered by the
PBOC and MLR. It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings
at floating rates of interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

REEEENER  SIRESNHESR
BYSMNEE R R A6 A B A RME - R F&K
R B9 ERR I A 2 BREE PO R BY RLRR o

1) FIEEEZ
RERENXARBSEMITAZ RKER
ERERETHHRESHMKE Z R
Z< 5= [ B A0 I R A R E SRR o 2AT
EEBEERMENMEREAR  78E
BEREREZEHPETENREAMRKIR o

FEBMESEHRITER - HEGR
RIEREAZATFENERR GHERWE
22~ 24 % 26) - ZEBTFMEF BIRTT
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MERBEEERENERBRTRAZENRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is

Interest rate risk (Continued)

being undertaken globally including replacement of some
interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly risk-
free rates. Details of the impacts on the Group’s risk
management strategy arising from the interest rate benchmark
reform and the progress towards implementation of alternative
benchmark interest rates are set out under “interest rate

benchmark reform” in this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s derivative and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis points)
fluctuation is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

2022
—m——

= A
e

BA ¥ 8RR M 5

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIEBIEREE (45)

iR A (48)

(i) FIEREE ()
EREAHFTEMNREEETRAMEN
2> aERAATEARNEANRER
—LERITERREFN T - FIRERENE
HAEBREAREERRNTERBERAE

EFNERNERERF B AN TFXREE
ME o
B E D

TXHHRESRDRESEBRGTE
RIFGTETREERSHRARHNFERE

RHEE c MAEDTE BRIV BEHRR
AN ERMTEEEFAMKREL - &
BHTEEBASERMXRAREA L
SOREFERMBTE (ZF - —F 505
F)  AREERHFRESIET AT
B & ERYTE o

2021

Z%o= o
Change in basis points Change in basis points
HEEH H2E
+30 -50 +50 50
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i BT BB BT
Profit or loss (net of tax) BHEEE (8h%) (2,529) 2,529 119 (119)
Numbers in bracket mean decrease. ERAPEF AR o

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

REEEENER  SESHFHES
MAMRRELARERRMYE > BRaELK
2 09 LB A A BR G P KRR R SRR o



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities measured at FVTPL and
FVTOCI, and perpetual capital securities measured at FVTOCI.
For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock
Exchange, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group also invested in certain listed equity
securities and unquoted equity securities for long term strategic
purposes which had been designated as FVTOCI. The
management will closely monitor the price movement of the
securities and regularly review the performance and asset
allocation of the portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity instruments and
perpetual capital securities had been 10% (2021: 10%) higher/
lower:

e  the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2022 would increase by approximately HK$1,575,000
(2021: HK$1,471,000) or decrease by approximately
HK$1,575,000 (2021: HK$1,471,000), respectively, as
a result of the changes in fair value of listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL; and

e  the Group’s investment revaluation reserve would increase
by approximately HK$4,185,000 (2021: HK$4,843,000)
or decrease by approximately HK$4,185,000 (2021:
HK$4,843,000), respectively, as a result of changes in
fair value of listed equity securities and perpetual capital
securities measured at FVTOCI.

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIREEREE (48)

iR A (48)

(irr) 1B E B

FEEZBHEURATEEFABRE R
AFEEFAEMEZEREEZ LT
RAFESMBEATEEFARMEEY
mEt B2 EBRABAESZREAER
BRE - MR ZFARERUATFEE
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BEEKEATARBNREMEGRE
IR o Ib5h > AEBTKRERET
REBBNNIELHRAERES > His
EABRATEESARMEZERZ - &
BEEREYERZERFZERES
TEIRSBREE 2 RBEREEDE

BREDH
TXHBREDRTIRERS BEAR
RIRERRERE °

ERBEBLTRATEMNEREE, TR
10% (ZZEZ—4F : 10%) > 81 :

e AERBE_ZS__£+_-A
=+—BHLEFENREBEMNIHNE
1 hN497E%E 1,575,000 5 (B -—
F 1 B8 1,471,000 7T) SRE49HE
#1,575,0007T (T - —F : Bl
1,471,0007T) * ERRDEAUA
FEEFABENESREEN LT
RAF/S 2 AT BEES ; K

o AEENKBMHEMES N ZIEM
#7818 4,185,000 5 (ZE - —%:
B #4,843,0007T) TR LA B
4,185,000t (Z 2 = —&F . B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and

maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by the management to finance its operations and

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The

management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$121,285,000 (2021: HK$542,745,000). Details of the
amounts utilised at the end of the reporting period are set out in
note 26.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on the
contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial liabilities
and lease liabilities including interest that will accrue, with
reference to their respective contractual interest rate, and for
those variable-rate instruments, by using the appropriate
prevailing market rates at the end of the reporting period as
stated in their contracts.

fm e R AR M EE

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIEBIEREE (45)

REVE = B

TEERDESREE > AEFEEER
REEEERAERHNEERRESE
HEKY SEEXBEEREES IR
KPEERERPIZE - EEEEER
TERZERRT KRR ET R o

NEBKBIRTEREARBEEZE
BRRE -N_E__F+_-_BA=+—H"
AEBBAABAMERIENZEITEMR
XA A 1121,285,000 0 (Z 8B = —
F 1 BIE542 745,0007T) © HIREHEARS
EHHEEAEREZFREMNMEE26 o

FEENFETESREERBERRTR
BREIHAEFTIIR TR o TRERBARR
ReMafNiAEafGeiRiRAEN
BHNEEBEMHET > MBSHNIENE
EFHERFBFHNETA > 2RERS
HAR ERFRYTISFRMIE o



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. ERM I A (&)
37B. SRS EIREAIEREE (8)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REYE = AP (48)
Within More than Total
Weighted ~ Within 1 year 1year undiscounted
average or repayahle but less than More than financial Carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years 5 years liabilities amounts
—ERE —E§E KA
IntEF9F) = EEREE LEREE AFEEE SMEREE IREfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2022 ZE_CE
Non-derivative financial liahilities ~ JEfTE&E&E
and lease liabilities RHEE&E
Trade and other payables B S REMEMIRE - 357,072 106,211 - 463,283 463,283
Lease liabilities HEaR 2.69 2,833 800 - 3,633 2,504
Bank borrowings (note) SRITfER () 534 1,050,501 1,115,768 209,261 2,315,530 2,201,793
Amounts due to non-controlling IR RS
shareholders - 6,527 - - 6,527 6,527
Total b 1,416,933 1,222,719 209,261 2,848,973 2,674,107
2021 ZEC-F
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfTE&RERE
and lease liabilities RHEaE
Trade and other payables ESREMEMRE - 431510 105,589 - 537,099 537,099
Lease liabilities HEaR 2.54 3,367 2,701 - 6,068 5,916
Bank borrowings (note) SRATfERR (Mf3E) 2.00 566,436 1,096,714 297,702 1,960,852 1,848 864
Amounts due to non-controlling IR RS
shareholders
— Interest bearing —HE 1.41 263 - - 263 263
— Non-interest bearing — %8 - 10,095 - - 10,095 10,095
Total iam 1,011,671 1,205,004 297,702 2514377 2,402,237
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MisE : LREAAFTEERERISIRZEE  RIVFE
MEZEHARKENRRERAEE 2 G RED
FEERHES -

note:  The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “within 1 year or repayable on demand” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2022, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$900,000,000 (2021: HK$479,000,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank loans will be
repaid within one year after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements, and the total undiscounted cash outflows
amounted to HK$948,871,000 (2021: HK$484,371,000).

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, several of the Group’s HIBOR bank
borrowings may be subject to the interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group is closely monitoring the market and
managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates,
including announcements made by the relevant IBOR regulators.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average (“HONIA")
has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan
to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has been
adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA will co-
exist.

(i)  Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
The following are the key risks for the Group arising from the
transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the relevant
alternative benchmark rates and without detailed fallback
clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with the Group’s
counterparties are not successfully concluded before the
cessation, there are significant uncertainties with regard to the
interest rate that would apply. This gives rise to additional
interest rate risk that was not anticipated when the contracts
were entered into.

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIEBIEREE (45)

B R = AP (48)

LFHEEAA P > HEEBERERN
IRITERESE RERK—FREE]
B MRTE__F+-B=+—H"
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900,000,000 (=8B = — F: B K
479,000,0007T) ° & & EIE R FEAR
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BHEERILEEERE - ARFTESEE
ZERITERBRBREHRE—FEAIR
BERGEFBZECERBRERES
FMERMNRERTELBLEABIE
948,871,000t (T — —F: A K
484,371,000 JT) ©

HEBENE

SNMIEE 26 FRFY > ANEEBIE T UERIR
TRZEHFESMRITERAIEEREFE
BENZENTZE - AEFEETETIRE
mISL EERMEBENRNIEE > S1F
18RA IBOR EE BB AS -

BEBIR{TEEHFE

HAB TR PIVEHEREEATE
IRITEERBNEALE > BUEERLL
BRRTEAXEHFESNSE - FEERAS
MEAN > BRRITRAXHFEMETIE
RFIIIRERALTF ©
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

HIBOR (Continued)

(i)  Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
(Continued)

Interest rate related risks (Continued)

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the

various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward looking

term rates published for a period (e.g. 3 months) at the

beginning of that period and include an inter-bank credit

spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates are typically risk-

free overnight rates published at the end of the overnight period

with no embedded credit spread. These differences will result in

additional uncertainty regarding floating rate interest payments.

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates which are
typically published on overnight basis will require additional
liquidity management. The Group’s liquidity risk management
policy has been updated to ensure sufficient liquid resources to
accommodate unexpected increases in overnight rates.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest rate
benchmark reform on contracts which have not been
transitioned to the relevant alternative benchmark rates (e.g.
arising from differing interpretation of existing fallback terms),
there is a risk of prolonged disputes with counterparties which
could give rise to additional legal and other costs. The Group is
working closely with all counterparties to avoid this from
occurring.

(ii) Progress towards implementation of alternative benchmark
interest rates

As part of the Group’s risk management for transition, new

contracts entered into by the Group are linked to the relevant

alternative benchmark rates or interest rates which are not

subject to reform to the extent feasible.

For the floating rate bank borrowings of HK$1,795,800,000
(2021:HK$1,472,400,000) that are linked to HIBOR (the
“Contracts”), the management expects the Contracts will
continue to maturity and the Group does not intend to transition
the Contracts to HONIA.

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIREERECE (48)

FIEBENE (R
BBIRITEIZENFE ()
(i) FIRBEFERBEROVER (&)

M RAER R (48)
RITAERSASERRBENRZH
FAERETER - RITRAXFEREZN
IR (BN =@ A) 2RI LA
RAZE > GERTEAGHENE > MEA
BEEFNRXBEEZERTBMERFLMG
BERERREERNFZAERANEHMNE -
BEZERERFHMERIIHEINT
FEEM o

MENEE A
BEERRAMBZEE AT R9EES
FTHREMRBEZRINIRBEER - F
EEPRBMRREEBREEN > U
HEARE AR EEREHRRA X
BRI £k

BENEA

ORBEFL R IBEEAAMBAEEF X
&L (FIMNRHIRE R IFRE AR 7
BMEL) MERMNREERFERT
& RIFIRE S AR ZHFERERMULY
WMATAES| BRI ERMEMER o
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KIR1TEE (TE491) B 1,795,800,000
TL(ZEZ—F.8#1,472,400,0007T) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, leases receivables,
deposits paid and other receivables, loans advanced to joint
ventures and bank deposits. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables and lease receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 34% (2021: 29%)
and 68% (2021: 73%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the trading and manufacturing business
segment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group also has policies in place to ensure
the new customers/tenants are with sound credit quality.

In addition, the Group performs ECL assessment on debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired
individually. The remaining debtors are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration of grouping of internal
credit rating by reference to past due information and relevant
credit information, and forward-looking macroeconomic
information that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIEBIEREE (45)

(S5 BB B i (HE Tk
EFERARRETERNRZHFENH
BREHMGAERENMFRRNAE
R AEENERAARBOEZERAN
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Deposits paid and other receivables

The management of the Group regularly review and assess the

credit quality of the counterparties. The Group uses 12m ECL to

assess the loss allowance of deposits paid and other receivables

since these amounts are neither past due nor with fixed

repayment terms, and there has not been a significant increase

in credit risk since initial recognition. In this regard, the

directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is

not significant.

Loans advanced to joint ventures

The Group regularly monitors the business performance of joint
ventures. The Group’s credit risks in these balances are
mitigated through the value of the assets held by these entities
and the power to jointly control the relevant activities of these
entities. The management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition.
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
assessed the ECL for loans advanced to joint ventures are
insignificant and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

37. €@ I A (8)
37B. HERMEIREEIEREE (8)

(SE AR REETE (4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank balances (including fixed bank deposits)

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the

counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings

assigned by international credit agencies. The Group assessed

12m ECL for bank balances by reference to information relating

to probability of default and loss given default of the respective

credit rating grades published by external credit rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

fm e R AR M EE

37. M I A (8)
37B. MRS EIREIE R (48)

(S SR B iR ET & (%)

IR1TFL (B1FIRITERI %)

H ¥ F 75 A E R E ST R B ER
BIEETRNIRT MBS RITHE
RNEEREAR - SEESZ HEIHMNED
ERTRIEBEMAVERERTRER
MENBRMIBRGENIRRBRNGE
B A 12@ARREEBIRHIRITE
BRIELHETAE o

BREERRETREASEENRNE
FIRITEURBERSI > AEFLEER
EEEMEXREERR

FEENREEERRFREEUTD

8.

Trade and lease

Other financial

Internal credit rating Description receivables assets
PEREETR fait B 5% R GREKERT HittEMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
EER HEFMENERE B REFAERE 2EREESE — 12 AR BHEESE
UEEEHE
Watch list Debtor usually settle after due date Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not credit-impaired
ERyE BEBARERRREEE 2HTEEESE — 12{BAEMEEEE
UEEEHE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
ik EERREERANRIMIE RN GREARIEM 2HTEBEESE — 2EBEESE
UEEEHE UEEEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
3 BrEEERERRENER SHRHREERE — SHRHREERE —
EERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
Hiss BErEBARRRENBRENEE  BAEALEERKE EaEit b Ea Etb

ByATaE
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. ERM I A (&) =
)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37B. HEAMERBEIEREE (48) 3
POLICIES (CONTINUED) Z
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) S8 A RiA{EF L (48) g
Bank balances (including fixed bank deposits) (Continued) R1T17= (B 1EiR1TERITZ =) (48) '}
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TR AEFSHESETENEER
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: % > A FAHRE BG IR ETE
External 2022 2021
credit Internal —E_CE —BC-F
Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
Wi SMBEEER AT 12{ARN 2BIRAEREA BIEE BEEE
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK000

BETT BETT BT AR

Financial assets at amortised cost

NEERBARNEREE
Trade receivables 21 NA (note 2) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 14,952 10,780
and lease receivables TER (HizE2) 2HEBEEHE RaT)
BRRIRI RIS NA Low risk Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 26,789 21783
FEURERRR TER BER 2R ESE (BRITG)
NA Watch list Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 3,010 44811 10,696 49259
TEH BmyE 2ITRBEEEE (ERMY)
Deposits paid and 20 NA (note 1) 12m ECL 53,940 59,259
other receivables TER (fzE1) 12{BAEMEREE
BEfifREEH
HitEuiRE:
Loans advanced to 18 NA (note 1) 12m ECL 364,268 187,089
joint ventures TER (FfaE1) 12{BAEMEREE
2T RERE
Bank balances 22 haltoAa3 /A 12m ECL 281,376 102517
RITAEER Aal a3 TER 12{BAEMEREE
Al'to A3 /A 12m ECL 690,279 263,149
AL EA3 @A 2 ERRHEESS
Baal to Baa3 /A 12m ECL 661,739 1,633,394 1,041,911 2,007,571
BaalEBae3  FEA 12{EBBHEEHE
notes: MisE
L. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due informationto 1. RABEERREEMNS  cEEFRRHEN TG
assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. FEERRREBEEIE—EABLH 73
Not past due/ No fixed repayment terms )
R EETEERER 5
2022 2021 °
—ECCE “ZT-F at
HK$'000 HK$'000 =
BRTT BT
Deposits paid and other receivables B REEMEMERES 53,940 59,259 "
Loans advanced to joint ventures BEFAE Y 364,268 187,089 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank balances (including fixed bank deposits) (Continued)

notes: (Continued)

2. For trade and lease receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in
accordance with HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the
expected credit losses on those balances by using a collective assessment, grouped by
internal credit rating.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit rating for
its customers. The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade receivables and leases receivables which are assessed based on collective
assessment within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). As at 31 December 2022, debtors
with significant outstanding balances with gross carrying amount of HK$29,859,000 (2021:
HK$38,479,000) was assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount

fm e R AR M EE

37. M I A (8)
37B. MR EIEBIEREE (45)

(S8 B R EFE (4R)

E{?ﬁié&ff«’ (BZIR1TEHIZ7%) ()

2. HESRURABRRNS  RESBMHEREE
Fo3h AEEEABEA A EEBRAGEERR
MERER  REAKREABHAEEAENEEA
5 AEEERASTEEEUNBEETRDERN
ZEEHNRBERESE

FRAAEENEERREEZ -85 AEEAHE
PEBREBEETR - TRERBEREZBIERE
BRBNER ZEEZRIRRLRE2BEBE
BBEBRANESTE (EREERE) (TG K2
B E+ AT BAREAREREHRER
EfE7AB%29859000t(_FE - —F: B
38,479,000 70) MfE# N EE BT o

HBIREE

Trade receivables

B MR

2022 2021
et i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Internal credit rating ISR
Low rsk BER 9,553 6,603
Watch lst Rzys 3,144 2,062
Doubtful pidd 2,255 2,115
14,952 10,780

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated. No loss allowance was
recognised in the profit or loss as the management considers the amount is immaterial.

37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS
Fair value measurements and valuation processes
The management performs regular reviews to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
qualified professional valuers or other service providers to
perform the valuations. The management works closely with the
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The management reports the findings to
the Board of Directors of the Company regularly to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and
liabilities.

et EREDENEE AR ERERNBERRMAE
MENRMEE TRBRTEEBSHFRZNTRE
MATEMEN SRR - PENHEEREHREL Ui
RAEMEEEBANBRENGUEN - AN EEE
BAETHEDAEX > U BEN BT RDERER o

37C. ERMTAAFEEE

AFEEFEMEETR
EERETENERUEESENMGLE
ATM AT EEFENBARE -

EAFEENEENATFEER » K&
ERAEEATSIRRHE - HES
—RABARE  AEEEBRIGE
BEEGEMSE MR HERETH
B EEEAGEMEESE AHE
BARISENGEESAMBAZE -
EEEERRAREEEREAEGER
mREENaEATEERSNERE -



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. T H (&)
37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 37C. EMIAAFEEE (8)

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued) AFEEEFEMGERE (&)
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in TXKEBHEANECLETHEEKR
determining the fair value of various financial assets and BENATFEENGES EZREAZSH
liabilities is disclosed below. HER o

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are ZAEEILETHMEERSHEBEURR
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The HHRHNAFEESZE - TRIEHEER
following table gives information about how the fair values of ERIBEEZAFEEEALANEN (AEE
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the S *» BM&EES ZRIXARNBAES) o
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
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2022

—ECCE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1RA EHRA E=RA bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB AT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEAREZEHEE
Listed equity securities LRaES 18,866 - - 18,866
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEE AL th2mE
IR
Listed equity securities FhkkES 259 - - 259
Unlisted equity securities ELhRAES - - 233,966 233,966
Perpetual capital securities EIRHERES - 41,595 - 41,595
Total g 19,125 41,595 233,966 294,686
2021
ZEC-F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1R7 B4R B=1R5 bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEI ARG ZERMEE
Listed equity securities IhkEES 17,620 - - 17,620
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEE AL t2mE
ZIERTR
Listed equity securities FhRxES 357 - - 357
Unlisted equity securities ELmRAES - - 256,212 256,212
Perpetual capital securities BREEAES - 48,070 - 48,070 275
bl
Total 17,977 48,070 256,212 322,259 2
i
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the FR > EF— - FIRF=HRAZHEHEE =
year. B (TS o ;

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with EHRAFEHFH2ETHBARXZAP5] |
reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock AN ARTIBEABEELFEE i

I
exchanges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)
The fair values of perpetual capital securities are determined
based on indicative prices provided by the dealers and brokers.
In addition, the Group makes comparison of the indicative
prices with the prices obtained from pricing services providers
to substantiate the indicative prices of these securities. The key
inputs used in the valuation models are the interest rate data,
which are observable at the end of the reporting period. The
objective of valuation models is to arrive at a fair value
estimation that reflects the price of the financial instrument at
the reporting date, which would have been determined by
market participants acting at arm’s length.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined with
reference to market values of underlying assets, which mainly
comprise investment properties located in Hong Kong held by
the investees and take into account the discount for lack of
marketability. The valuation of the properties was principally
arrived at using the comparison method, in which property is
valued on the assumption that the property can be sold with the
benefit of vacant possession. Comparison based on prices
realised on actual sales of comparable properties is made for
similar properties in the similar location.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group’s other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

37. BT A (8)
37C. EMIT BAAFEENE ()

AFFREEMEETR (B
BEAAHHERENKABRESFH
AT EERBEHBRELCAPTRERN
BETRMEERERE - IS FEERET
MEREREEBRBEMHERF LESH
BERMULEER > UL XABREFHIIE
THEERERTRE - AEEANEE
WMASHSMERHE > ZHEEHREH
RAEAURASE - HEEANBERE
ERARMREMTATRSARRHS
BHEENURTEBRSERNATEE
(R

EEFLHTREAESHNATFEERESS
HRAEENTIHEE  TECVEMRE
ABRFANEBEREMENTIRER
hERBERZHIGSEMEL TN - Y%
HETZERLERE  BRRZIVERS
HEEFNMEHIYEMLE - LERER
BEAR LM EERUNYEEERUN
UEBRNERHEESRME o

FABZEERREERARGEMBR
RABHER A RNEMEREEK
TRBEZIREEEZEATEERES -

EHEER =R AT EEERRE

assets
Equity instruments
at FVT0CI
BAFREHA
Hitn2 mikzs
ZHEZTR
HKS$'000
AT
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-B-—4—B—B&hH 259,482
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income  REM2EKES AR FE5E (3,270)
Balance at 31 December 2021 WZB-—#E+-B=+—-B4&H 256,212
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income  REM2ERERREDZ 25E (22,246)
Balance at 31 December 2022 RIE--E+-B=+—R&H 233,966




37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Included in other comprehensive income is loss of

approximately HK$22,246,000 (2021: HK$3,270,000) related

to unlisted equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the end of the

reporting period.

The majority of the Group’s investments are valued based on
quoted market information or observable market data. A small
percentage, 1.5% (2021: 1.6%), of total assets of the Group, is
based on estimates and recorded as financial assets with Level
3 fair value measurements. Whilst such valuations are sensitive
to estimates, it is believed that changing one or more of the
assumptions to reasonably possible alternative assumptions
would not have a big impact on the Group’s financial positions.

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

37. M I A (8)
37C. EMIAAFEEE ()

Hith2mUE A aELEE 22,246,000
THEE(ZTZ—4F . B13,270,000
7o) > MR EHEEEBRENRAT
BEAEMEZEAKEZFELHEST
BB -

HREEBEENRNEG1.5% (ZF
——F 1 1.6%) > IIREBEEEB =R
REGERAR  ILEEHGEHRRE
EMR EE—EXAZARKBEES
BRAEHNAERRE  HEFATHE
EENMBRTERERTE

38. MEEHEENARZHIER

TREFLTHAEBRREETHEENEGR
21> aERSMIIFFESEE - - BMESE
BEENERERPERERE » HRK
NREERE  RELEENGEESRER
BRPEDES/RMEZHNESRM -

Amount due
to former
shareholder of Lease Dividend Interest

Borrowings a subsidiary liabilities payable payable Total

FE(I B AR
iR HREZME  EEARM  EGRE  EAAe g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—-&—F—H 1,473,845 - 6,197 - 145 1480787
Financing cash flows BERE N 34744 (115,816) (3,662) (162,791) (20997) (268 522)
Finance costs BIRRAR - - 177 - 21,980 22157
Dividends recognised as distribution BEIADRZRE - - - 162,791 - 162,791
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) IEE MR (MizE 35) 347,448 115,816 - - - 463,264
New leases entered R - - 3,054 - - 3,004
Currency realignment ExHE 3185 - 150 - - 333
At 31 December 2021 WZE-—-#+-A=+—-H 1,859,222 - 9,916 - 1,128 1,866,866
Financing cash flows HERER 365,056 - (3,212) (184,048) (52,438) 125,358
Finance costs BRRA - - 106 - 57,128 57,834
Dividends recognised as distribution BRIADRZRE - - - 184,048 - 184,048
Currency realignment ExEE (15,958) - (306) - - (16,264)
At 31 December 2022 WZE-Z#+-A=+—-H 2,208,320 - 2,504 - 1,018 2,217,842

=
=z
=
=
o
=
=
X
m
v
=}
2
|
g
#
#
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N
~N
~N

| BT E%xTHEE



2

N
[

2202 140d3Y TYNNNY | Q3LINIT INIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHO NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #%x

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

BMBHRERMEE

39. AR MBIURRRKRFE

2022 2021
ZECCHE —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties BB 2,366,100 2,328,800
Property, plant and equipment ME  BERRE 507,157 520,841
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 193 2,320
Investments in subsidiaries HWEARZRE 790,943 598,052
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEEHARMRERE EEZTE 63,539 76,560
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWH B A BB 5,296,810 5,269,341
Deferred tax assets EIRBEE 16,898 18,414
9,042,240 8,814,328
Current assets TEEE
Properties held for sale HHEE 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables BEREMERES 3,940 3,979
Financial assets at FVTPL WATBEFAESZEHEE 18,866 17,620
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months HZA={EB&ZIE2 EHR1TESR
to maturity when raised 31,107 67,870
Bank balances and cash BTEIREE 939,343 858,462
996,064 950,739
Current liabilities nEafE
Trade and other payables BEREMERES 10,802 9,212
Lease liabilities HEaR 800 1,526
Borrowings — due within one year &2 — P—EREIE 950,000 529,000
961,602 539,738
Net current assets THEETE 34,462 411,001
Total assets less current liabilities wEERTDaG 9,076,702 9,225,329
Non-current liabilities FREaR
Other payables HAFE(IARR 52,121 52,267
Lease liabilities HE&aR - 800
Borrowings — due after one year B2 — P—EB T 895,800 943,400
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries HBARZ kB2 211,345 339,369
1,225,872 1,335,836
1,850,830 7,889,493
Capital and reserves BE Rk
Share capital [ 381,535 381,535
Reserves i 1,469,295 7,507,958
1,850,830 7,889,493

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2023 and are signed on

its behalf by:

MR. LIU LIT CHI
ERIERE

CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

T/E - EFABASTEFITIARE

MBHRREN -2 -=

KREE .

MR. CHENG YUK WO
TR FE
CHAIRMAN OF

AUDIT COMMITTEE

BFRERCTE

F=ZRA+B%E

EFEHERERERT TATIAL
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39. ZATIMBRARKRGHE (8) 2
)

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) g
MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVES BATEEZES Z
Property Investment g
revaluation revaluation Accumulated W

reserve reserve profits Total

MEEGEE REEGHE R @t

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2021 R-E_—&—HA—-H 448 (39,895) 7,439,660 7,400,213

Profit for the year TEERA - - 270,715 270,715

Fair value losses on investments BRATEEAAEMZENGEZ

in equity instruments at FVTOCI BETAZATEERE - (179) - (179)

Total comprehensive (expense) AEERE (S hEesE

income for the year - (179) 270,715 270,536

Dividends recognised as distribution BHEZADRZKE - - (162,791) (162,791)

At 31 December 2021 RZE_—-&+-A=1+—-H 448 (40,074) 7,547,584 7,507,958

Profit for the year AEERF - - 147,703 147,703

Fair value losses on investments BATBEAEM2EREZ

in equity instruments at FVTOCI BEIEZATEESE - (12,218) - (12,218)

Total comprehensive (expense) KEERE () kR8s

income for the year - (12,218) 147,703 135,485
Investment revaluation reserve HERATEEFAEMREREZ

reclassified to accumulated BRTIARERNBEEENZ

profits upon disposal of equity REBftHE

instruments at FVTOCI - (702) 702 -

Dividends recognised as distribution BEDADRZRE - - (174,148) (174,148)

At 31 December 2022 W-E__&#+-A=1+-H 448 (52,994) 7,521,841 7,469,295

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 40. MBIATRESR

(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) FPABKALZSH

The Group had no material significant transactions with related ~ASEEI BRI A LTI ERRS ©
parties.
(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (B) XEEBASH=

The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group &FR > AEETEEEASZHMMT :
during the year were as follows:

2022 2021

- Jehent TET

HK$'000 HiK$'000

RRTR BHTR
Short-term benefits IEHER 51,444 49299 279
Post-employment benefits EEBHKEF 3,353 3,260 z
54,797 52559 2
i
The emoluments of directors and key executives are determined ZEFREZBITHABZFHFMBHFMNZE %
by the remuneration committee having regard to the BEREARRRTHEEZEE - @

performance of individuals and market trends. o

BEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. FERE LT
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 W-ZE_"_F+_-_B=+—HKZ=F
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows: T—H+ZH=1+—H> xREZFE

MEBATERINT :

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
s BRITLERT/ FAFREERTRSEE/
WEAR &R Izt B HMES EfEsZLH TEEE
Directly Indirectly
=t it
an a1 2 aml
ZECCE 3% IBIZE TZZ-fF
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - — Property investment
& ##100,0007¢ S
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 - - Investment holding
EEERAR BB #19,5007 RERR
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - — Property investment
EREEBRAF & #i2,000,0007T MERE
Bright Ocean Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 100 100 Food and heverage
& #10,0007 &t
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - ~ Money lending
BIEMBERAT & #i1,000,0007T BRER
Chong Yip (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - — Provision of nominegs
SErvices
1% (K1) BRAR &A BEIT REREARE
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - — Property investment
BEMEBRAT &E #2007 WERE
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - — Property investment
& #2007 S
Golden Harbour International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Property investment
BERRERA &# BEIT WERE
Harvest Gate Investments Limited Hong Kong Hi$1 100 100 - — Property investment
SERERRAR BB BEIT ESE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HiKS2 100 100 - — Property investment
EEEEBRAT &E BT WERE
Honour Speed Development Limited Hong Kong HiS2 100 100 - ~ Investment holding

FEERARAR L B2 REER



41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. X EMB2TE (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Bk BRITRERS/ FARRECRTRAEE/
LhiEYNGES R/ EE HfES HESZLH TEER
Directly Indirectly
B it
a0 am am w1
- Gl “EC-F  IZECC —EC-f
% % % %
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
BEBRAR BB BE1007T REER
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 - ~ Investment holding
BBERERAT BB BE1007T REER
Jacot Limited Hong Kong Hi$2 100 100 - ~ Investment holding
EBBRAR BB BT REER
Joyce King Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - ~ Investment holding
FHEERAT BB BEIT REER
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - ~ Property investment
BEERAR BB BE2007T S
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 - ~ Investment holding
Limited
BRIREXERAT &E 110,000,000 7T RERR
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 - — Property investment
Limited
BRIBAERERAT BB #172,000,000 7T WERE
Liu Chong Hing Property Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - — Property management
Management and Agency Limited
BRENEEERABEERAR BB 711,000,000 70 WEERE
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HiKS2 - - 100 100 Property investment
B BT MERE
One-Eight-One Hospitality Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Hotel operation and
Management Limited management
& BEIx BEEERER
One-Eight-One Lobby Café Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - ~ Food and beverage
&E #110,0007T ath
(ueen Profit International Hong Kong HK$61,540 83.75 83.75 - ~ Investment holding
Investment Limited
BRERRERRAT & 61,5407 REER
Richview Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 100 100 Property management
Company Limited
ERYEEEERAT BB 7#%10,00078 WEERE

N
00
g

| BT E%xTHEE

BEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. X EMBATE (&)

VAAN
g =]

BA ¥ 8RR M 5

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B BRITEERS/ FRFREERTRSEE/
LhEYNGE S R/ EEH HfES HESZLH TEER
Directly Indirectly
B it
a0 am am i)
8- “EC-F  IECC ZEI-%
% % % %
Royal Best Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - ~ Investment holding
EERERRAT &E BEIT RERR
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HiK$2 100 100 - — Hotel operation
BRERERAR BB B2 BIEEE
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 60 60  Investment holding
ERRERRAT &E BE1007T RERR
Strong Zone International Limited Hong Kong HiK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
BIHERERAR BB BRI REER
Supreme Stone Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
HBEREERAR &E BEIT RERR
Top New Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
MERERRAR BB BHE1007T REER
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - ~ Investment holding
& BE2007T RERR
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HiK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BRERAT BB BRI RERR
Trend Able Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
EBRERRAT &E BEIT RERR
Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HiK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BEIREBRAR BB BRI REER
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - ~ Investment holding
BHREBRAT &E BEIT RERR
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HIK$2,000,000 100 100 - — Property investment
BREZERAF BB 712,000,000 7 MERE
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory Property PRC HK$500,000,000 - - 90 90 Property development
Development Company Limited
HLEEEERMERR HE B S
BRAF 500,000,0007c
Foshan Top New Property PRC HK$612,500,000 - - 90 90 Property development
Development Company Limited
HUmHEENEREERAT HE B MEER

612,500,000 7



41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. X EMB2TE (&)

=
=z
=
=
o
>
=
X
m
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o
X
|
g
#
#
b

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary Notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Bk BRTEERS/ FARRECRTRAEE
hEYNGE S Mat i/ EE HfES HESZLH TEER
Directly Indirectly
B it
a0 am m i)
- Gl “E--&  CZBIC ZEI-%
% % % %
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i PRC HK$8,500,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Consultancy Limited
ENHEREESHERAT HE 718,500,000 7 MERE
Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property (i PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Property management
Management Company Limited
ENTRHNEEEERAT HE 711,000,000 7 WEER
Maanshan GaokeMagnetic (i) PRC RMBG65,370,000 - - 51.54 5154 Manufacturing of
Material Company Limited magnetic materials
BRIBHEMMRERAT HE N SRR
65,370,0007¢
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong Hing (i PRC US$34,600,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Property Development
Company Limited
LERRBRERMERTAR HE 34,600,000%7 MERE
A7
Choengmon Real Estate Thailand THB400,100,000 100 100 - — Hotel operation
Company Limited
ZE 400,100,000 %% BIEEE
Blossom Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US§1 100 100 - ~ Investment holding
Hong Kong
R ERRAT REELHE/BE €S REER
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
Hong Kong
EBRUME/BE 100%57 REER
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 100 - — Share investment
Hong Kong
ERELEHE /BB 1,000%7T Bi&E
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, inthe ZEEA > HAEBEXENBEEESE A 2;3
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets S AEEWBATZECHTNLE &
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the 3£ . BHT A » EI2HEMHEATE .
g
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.  ¥| » B Eig:BRTTE © S
oy
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the IEHB AR Y ERAEKFITIEAETR 0
end of the year. o :»T

BEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% & Bf #5 ¥ & Mt 5%

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The majority of
these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities
of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

41. X EMBATE (&)

RAEREMK > sRFHBEHMEEE
EMESFABEANMBLAR - ZFHE
AB)RAREHEREREE - LFHE
AR EEXZHFHRMIIWOT

Number of subsidiaries

HEBARSE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2022 2021
TBEH TEERMA ot et I b2
Hotel operation and management PRC 1 1
EERERER HE
Investment holding British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong 12 12
RELR EBRLHE/BA
Property investment Hong Kong 2 2
NERE B
Inactive Hong Kong/PRC 8 8
UREH &%/
notes: MteE

(i) The companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.
(ii) The company is non-wholly owned sino-foreign enterprises established in the PRC.

(iii) At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests.

ZERRRNPERILZIEEERE -
(i) ZERFAERPEMRILZPHGELERT

(i)  REREAR > AEFLERFEAFERRREL
HIFREMBAT

U



This report is printe
T F B & AR

03/2023 a




&

BHARGEABRLE

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

23/F Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7777

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

E-mail: info@Ichi.com.hk

Website: www.Ichi.com.hk

Stock Code: 00194

EREWED=+MR
BIERITRO =18
E:E © (852) 2983 7777
K : (852) 2983 7723
BH . info@Ichi.com.hk
434k : www.Ichi.com.hk
B3 4C5% 00194
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